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COMMITMENT TO OUR TEAM, TENANTS AND SHAREHOLDERS
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Our focus continues to be
the health and safety of our
employees and the impact
of COVID-19 on our
tenants-and their
businesses.
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Although-uncertainty
remains regaraing.the
longer-term effect or the
pandemic on the broader
economy, we are
encouraged by the resilience
and strong performance of
our team and our portfolio.




DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Getty had a highly productive year during 2020 which saw each aspect of our business post
significant accomplishments. The net result was that Getty achieved substantially all of our business
objectives and produced growth of both our revenues from rental properties, which increased by 5%
for the year, and our adjusted funds from operations (“AFFQ”) per share, which grew by 7% for the
year. In a normal year, | would be proud to report these results to our shareholders. When you
consider the countless challenges brought upon us by the COVID-19 pandemic, | take even greater
satisfaction from our results, which were only possible due to the extraordinary efforts put forth by the
entire Getty team. | also believe that our performance reflects the value of our in-place portfolio which,
combined with our strong balance sheet and growing pipeline of investment prospects, positions the
Company for continued success as we look towards 2021 and beyond.

COVID-RELATED CHALLENGES

Getty’s business began to feel the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic in March of 2020. Our initial
focus was the health and safety of our employees and the potential negative impacts to our tenants’
businesses. We were fortunate that our portfolio of triple-net leased assets was performing well prior to
the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. With that said, the convenience & gas (“C&G”) sector began to
feel the adverse effects of the public health crisis when several large states on the East and West
Coasts instituted travel restrictions and stay at home orders. Fortunately for Getty, the vast majority of
our C&G and other automotive properties were deemed “essential” under state and federal guidelines
meaning that more than 95% of our assets remained operational throughout 2020. Yet even though
our tenants were open for business, they still faced numerous pandemic-related operational, health
and safety challenges.

Nationally, the COVID-19 pandemic reduced motor vehicle use and, as a result, fuel volumes declined
significantly year-over-year, with the extent of the decline varying by region. While it is impossible to
replace the lost revenue from lower fuel volumes, it is important to note that many of our tenants
benefited from historically high retail fuel margins in 2020 (gross profit made on a per gallon basis).
This increase in retail fuel margins, which was driven by the considerable drop in oil prices, partially
offset the pressure of volume-related weakness at times during the year.

In contrast to fuel-related challenges, our tenants’ convenience store businesses displayed far greater
resiliency during the public health crisis. Several of our tenants actually reported that their
convenience sales grew year-over-year as consumers increased their use of neighborhood stores for
food, traditional merchandise, grocery items, household goods and cleaning products.

| am pleased to report that to date the COVID-19 pandemic has had a minimal impact on Getty’s
business. We collected more than 98% of contractual rent and mortgage payments for the year, and
also collected substantially all of our “COVID-related” rent and mortgage deferrals due in 2020.

Although uncertainty remains regarding the forward impact of COVID-19 to the broader economy, we
are encouraged by the strength exhibited by our tenants and assets since the beginning of the
pandemic. Nevertheless, we will continue to vigilantly monitor the health of our tenants’ businesses, as
we believe the pandemic will continue to impact consumer and retail activity through at least the first
half of 2021 and possibly beyond that.




SUSTAINED BUSINESS STRATEGY EXECUTION

Our team is more focused than ever on executing each of our growth initiatives: (i) enhancing our
portfolio through accretive acquisitions of C&G and other automotive assets that support consumer
mobility; (i) unlocking embedded value through selective redevelopments; and (i) maximizing the
quality of our in-place portfolio through continued active asset management.

The acquisition program at Getty remains our primary growth driver. In 2020, we acquired 34 high-
quality C&G and other automotive properties for $150 million through a combination of portfolio and
individual transactions. This activity reflected our disciplined investment approach, which carefully
considers real estate attributes as well as the operational and credit quality of our prospective tenants.
The pipeline of opportunities was robust; during the year we reviewed approximately $2.1 billion of
potential acquisitions, with approximately 60% being C&G and the remaining 40% focused on other
automotive categories. Included in our acquisitions were two portfolio sale-leaseback transactions with
Go Car Wash in the Kansas City and San Antonio MSAs, as well as a C&G portfolio transaction with
CEFCO Convenience Stores throughout the state of Texas. As we enter 2021, we remain committed
to growing our portfolio in terms of both the convenience store industry which offers consumers food,
traditional merchandise, and fuel, and with other automotive related assets which support consumer
mobility.

Our redevelopment program continued to mature in 2020 as we completed six projects and signed
eight new leases for future projects with national tenants. The completed projects in 2020 were leased
to high-quality national retailers including 7-11, AutoZone, Bank of America, and Wendy’s. We invested
a total of $3.6 million in these projects and generated an incremental return on our investment of
approximately 20%. In terms of our redevelopment outlook, we maintain a solid pipeline, ending the
year with six active projects and four projects in planning stages with signed tenant leases. We
continue to believe that the redevelopment program demonstrates the embedded value of our in-place
portfolio, and that by strategically investing in our assets, we can generate attractive risk-adjusted
returns, improve the credit quality of our portfolio, and diversify our retail tenant base.

On the asset management front, we continued to refine the nature of our portfolio by selectively re-
leasing or disposing of certain assets, while opportunistically exiting third-party leased sites. The net
result is a portfolio of 959 properties that was 99.3% occupied at year end and spans 35 states plus
Washington, DC with 65% of annualized base rent coming from the Top 50 National MSAs.



MAINTAINING OUR FLEXIBLE & CONSERVATIVE BALANCE SHEET

In a year where liquidity and balance sheet flexibility were critical, the Company’s long-held philosophy
of maintaining a conservatively leveraged balance sheet proved itself important to our success. As
further demonstration, we issued a $175 million, 10-year, 3.4% debt private placement to three life
insurance companies in December to more permanently fund our business and support our growth
initiatives. A portion of the issuance was used for the early retirement of our $100 million, 6.0% series
A notes coming due in early 2021. As | sit here today, Getty has a net debt to EBITDA ratio of less
than 5.0x and a revolving credit facility that is essentially undrawn meaning that we have significant
capacity to fund our growth plans as we look ahead. We have no debt maturities until 2023 and the
weighted average term of our indebtedness is the longest in the Company’s history at more than 7
years.

We also financed a significant portion of our growth in 2020 through the issuance of $64.4 million of
common equity through the use of our at-the-market (“ATM”) program. The ATM program continues
to be a valuable tool for our Company as it is a cost effective and efficient way to raise equity capital
and allows us to match fund our acquisitions and redevelopment projects. In February 2021, we
launched a refreshed $250 million ATM equity issuance program, which we believe will help the
Company maintain its conservative leverage profile and help us actively manage our capital structure
to prudently grow over the long-term.

DRIVING GROWTH AND SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Our 2020 financial results, strategic growth and capital markets activities resulted in our Board’s
decision to increase our dividend by 5.6% to an annualized rate of $1.56 per share — making 2020 the
sixth consecutive year that the Company has rewarded shareholders with a significant increase in its
recurring cash dividend rate. The dividend remains well-covered and its increase stems from the
stability of our current portfolio along with our expectation of continued growth in AFFO.

Financial Highlights (for the years ended December 31)

2020 2019 2018
Number of Properties 959 945 933
Total Revenues $147,346 $140,655 $136,106
Adjusted Funds from Operations $79,134 $71,816 $69,669
Adjusted Funds from Operations Per Share $1.84 $1.72 $1.71

Dividends Per Share $1.50 $1.42 $1.31




COMMITTED TO A FUTURE OF CONSUMER SPENDING TIED TO
AUTOMOTIVE-BASED MOBILITY

Our portfolio was built around serving the needs of automobile-based consumers, and it is continuing
to do so — whether it is stopping for convenience store items including beverages, meals, snacks,
other merchandise, and fuel, or getting a car washed or serviced. These needs are in high demand
today and we believe they will continue to be staples for consumer spending tied to mobility for years
to come.

As we enter 2021, we feel encouraged about our nearly 1,000 properties and our target asset classes.
Our ability to underwrite and acquire properties, invest in targeted geographies, and optimize our
portfolio through active asset management continues to demonstrate the value of our platform and our
focus on owning well-located real estate in stable and growing metropolitan markets.
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Note: All data is as of December 31, 2020.

1) Annualized GAAP base rent.

2) Adjusted Funds From Operations per share annual growth 2015-2020.

3) Excludes six properties classified as redevelopment.

4) Unitary lease portfolio coverage calculated one quarter in arrears based on site level information provided by tenants.




In addition, our service and consumer-oriented portfolio of C&G and other automotive properties is
considered essential and serves many aspects of the retail marketplace which are insulated from the
growth of e-commerce.

Despite fuel-related headwinds for the C&G industry, 2020 was a year which saw the convenience
side of the business outperform due to the wide array of products offered by many of our tenants. The
C&G industry continues to evolve, and our tenants are placing additional emphasis on branding and
customer loyalty inside their stores to drive higher margin sales and reduce their overall dependence
on customer visits derived solely from refueling. We believe that our portfolio of well-located properties
in major metropolitan markets will remain resilient and thrive in the ever-changing consumer retail
landscape.
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ABR in Top 50 MSAs
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SAYING GOODBYE

In February 2021, we announced that Leo Liebowitz, our Chairman & Co-Founder, retired from the
Board of Directors. Leo was our Chairman for more than 50 years and also served as our Chief
Executive Officer from 1985 until 2010 and as our President from 1971 until 2004. Leo co-founded
the Company, along with Milton Safenowitz, through the acquisition of a single gas station in New
York City in 1955. From there, they built a significant portfolio of gas and service stations, which
eventually went public in 1971 and grew to become the largest independent gasoline distributor
on the East Coast. In 1985, Leo led the acquisition of all of the Northeastern gasoline stations,
terminals, and retail supply contracts from the Getty Oil Company, and changed the name of our
predecessor company to Getty Petroleum Corp. In 1997, Leo orchestrated the spin-off of the
petroleum marketing and distribution assets formerly held by the company to a newly created
public company, unlocking significant value for stockholders at the time, and formed Getty Realty
to manage and lease the Company’s retained real estate portfolio. Many of the properties
purchased by our predecessor entities remain core to our business today, and Leo’s vision and
leadership is one of the primary reasons that we have become a leading net lease REIT focused
on C&G and other automotive-related real estate. On a personal note, | want to thank Leo for his
many years of dedicated and distinguished service to the Company as our Chairman and CEO. Leo
always made himself available to all of us, and his deep knowledge of the petroleum marketing
and distribution business has been critical to our understanding of our tenants’ businesses,
making us better investors as a result. We will miss having him in the office and on our Board of
Directors and wish him the best in his retirement.

THANK YOU

| will conclude by reiterating how proud | am of Getty's 2020 accomplishments and how optimistic
| am about Getty's prospects. | believe we have the right growth strategy and a first-rate team in
place to execute on it and to create value for our shareholders for years to come. While it is an
honor to lead the Company, we would not be as successful without the contributions of Board of
Directors, our management team, and our employees. | would like to personally thank everyone
for all of their hard work during the past year. | would also like to thank our shareholders for their
continued support.

Best Regards,

L

Christopher J. Constant
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
federal securities laws, including Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Statements preceded by, followed by, or that otherwise include
the words “believes,” “expects,” “seeks,” “plans,” “projects,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “predicts” and similar expressions or future
or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,” “may” and “could” are generally forward-looking in nature and are not
historical facts. (All capitalized and undefined terms used in this section shall have the same meanings hereafter defined in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.)
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Examples of forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, our
statements regarding our network of convenience store and gasoline station properties; substantial compliance of our properties with
federal, state and local provisions enacted or adopted pertaining to environmental matters; the effects of U.S. federal tax reform and
other legislative, regulatory and administrative developments; the impact of existing legislation and regulations on our competitive
position; our prospective future environmental liabilities, including those resulting from preexisting unknown environmental
contamination; the impact of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic on our business and results of operations; quantifiable
trends, which we believe allow us to make reasonable estimates of fair value for the future costs of environmental remediation
resulting from the removal and replacement of USTs; the impact of our redevelopment efforts related to certain of our properties; the
amount of revenue we expect to realize from our properties; our belief that our owned and leased properties are adequately covered by
casualty and liability insurance; our workplace demographics, recruiting efforts, and employee compensation program; AFFO as a
measure that best represents our core operating performance and its utility in comparing the sustainability of our core operating
performance with the sustainability of the core operating performance of other REITSs; the reasonableness of our estimates, judgments,
projections and assumptions used regarding our accounting policies and methods; our critical accounting policies; our exposure and
liability due to and our accruals, estimates and assumptions regarding our environmental liabilities and remediation costs; loan loss
reserves or allowances; our belief that our accruals for environmental and litigation matters including matters related to our former
Newark, New Jersey Terminal and the Lower Passaic River, our MTBE multi-district litigation cases in the states of Pennsylvania and
Maryland, and our lawsuit with the State of New York pertaining to a property formerly owned by us in Uniondale, New York, were
appropriate based on the information then available; our claims for reimbursement of monies expended in the defense and settlement
of certain MTBE cases under pollution insurance policies; compliance with federal, state and local provisions enacted or adopted
pertaining to environmental matters; our beliefs about the settlement proposals we receive and the probable outcome of litigation or
regulatory actions and their impact on us; our expected recoveries from UST funds; our indemnification obligations and the
indemnification obligations of others; our investment strategy and its impact on our financial performance; the adequacy of our current
and anticipated cash flows from operations, borrowings under our Restated Credit Agreement and available cash and cash equivalents;
our continued compliance with the covenants in our Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes; our belief that certain
environmental liabilities can be allocated to others under various agreements; our belief that our real estate assets are not carried at
amounts in excess of their estimated net realizable fair value amounts; our beliefs regarding our properties, including their alternative
uses and our ability to sell or lease our vacant properties over time; and our ability to maintain our federal tax status as a REIT.

These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs and assumptions and information currently available to us,
and are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors and were derived utilizing numerous important
assumptions that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from any future results, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors and assumptions involved in the derivation of
forward-looking statements, and the failure of such other assumptions to be realized as well as other factors may also cause actual
results to differ materially from those projected. Most of these factors are difficult to predict accurately and are generally beyond our
control. These factors and assumptions may have an impact on the continued accuracy of any forward-looking statements that we
make.

Factors which may cause actual results to differ materially from our current expectations include, but are not limited to, the risks
described in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as such risk factors may be updated from time to time in our public filings, and risks
associated with: complying with environmental laws and regulations and the costs associated with complying with such laws and
regulations; substantially all of our tenants depending on the same industry for their revenues; the creditworthiness of our tenants; our
tenants’ compliance with their lease obligations; renewal of existing leases and our ability to either re-lease or sell properties; our
dependence on external sources of capital, counterparty risks; the uncertainty of our estimates, judgments, projections and
assumptions associated with our accounting policies and methods; our ability to successfully manage our investment strategy;
potential future acquisitions and redevelopment opportunities; changes in interest rates and our ability to manage or mitigate this risk
effectively; owning and leasing real estate; our business operations generating sufficient cash for distributions or debt service; adverse
developments in general business, economic or political conditions; adverse effect of inflation; federal tax reform; property taxes;
potential exposure related to pending lawsuits and claims; owning real estate primarily concentrated in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic
regions of the United States; competition in our industry; the adequacy of our insurance coverage and that of our tenants; failure to
qualify as a REIT; dilution as a result of future issuances of equity securities; our dividend policy, ability to pay dividends and



changes to our dividend policy; changes in market conditions; provisions in our corporate charter and by-laws; Maryland law
discouraging a third-party takeover; changes in LIBOR reporting practices or the method in which LIBOR is calculated or changes to
alternative rates if LIBOR is discontinued; the loss of a member or members of our management team or Board of Directors; changes
in accounting standards; future impairment charges; terrorist attacks and other acts of violence and war; our information systems;
failure to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting; and negative impacts from the continued spread of the COVID-
19 pandemic, including on the global economy or on our tenants’ businesses, financial position, or results of operations.

As a result of these and other factors, we may experience material fluctuations in future operating results on a quarterly or
annual basis, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results, our growth or
reinvestment strategies, our ability to pay dividends or stock price. An investment in our stock involves various risks, including those
mentioned above and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and those that are described from time to time in our other
filings with the SEC.

You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect our view only as of the date hereof. Except
for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to release
publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to report the occurrence of unanticipated events, unless
required by law. For any forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in any other document, we
claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995.



PART 1
Item 1. Business

Company Profile

Getty Realty Corp., a Maryland corporation, is the leading publicly traded real estate investment trust (“REIT”) in the United
States specializing in the acquisition, ownership, leasing, financing and redevelopment of convenience stores, gasoline stations and
other automotive-related and retail real estate, including express car washes, instant oil change centers, automotive service centers,
automotive parts retailers and select other properties. Our predecessor was originally founded in 1955 and our common stock was
listed on the NYSE in 1997.

Our portfolio includes 959 properties located in 35 states and Washington, D.C., and our tenants operate under a variety of
national and regional brands. We are internally managed by our management team, which has extensive experience acquiring, owning
and managing convenience stores, gasoline stations and other automotive-related and retail real estate.

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws beginning January 1, 2001. The Internal Revenue Code
permits a qualifying REIT to deduct dividends paid, thereby effectively eliminating corporate level federal income tax and making the
REIT a pass-through vehicle for federal income tax purposes if certain REIT qualifications are met. To meet the applicable
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, a REIT must, among other things, invest substantially all of its assets in interests in real
estate (including mortgages and other REITs) or cash and government securities, derive most of its income from rents from real
property or interest on loans secured by mortgages on real property, and distribute to stockholders annually a substantial portion of its
taxable income. As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our taxable income to our stockholders each year and would
be subject to corporate level federal income taxes on any taxable income that is not distributed.

Our company is headquartered in New York, New York and as of February 25, 2021, we had 31 employees.

Company Operations

As of December 31, 2020, we owned 901 properties and leased 58 properties from third-party landlords. Our nationwide
portfolio includes a concentration in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions that we believe is unique and not readily available for
purchase or lease from other owners or landlords. Our typical property consists of between one-half and one acre of land in a
metropolitan area and is used as a convenience store and gasoline station or to provide other automotive-related services. Many of our
properties are located at highly trafficked urban intersections or conveniently close to highway entrances or exit ramps.

Substantially all of our properties are leased on a triple-net basis to convenience store operators, petroleum distributors and other
automotive-related and retail tenants. Our tenants either operate their business at our properties directly or sublet our properties and
supply fuel to third parties that operate the convenience store and gasoline station businesses. Our triple-net lease tenants are
responsible for the payment of all taxes, maintenance, repairs, insurance and other operating expenses relating to our properties, and
are also responsible for environmental contamination occurring during the terms of their leases and in certain cases also for
environmental contamination that existed before their leases commenced. For additional information regarding our environmental
obligations, see Note 5 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

Convenience store and gasoline station properties are an integral component of the transportation infrastructure supported by
demand for refined petroleum products, day-to-day consumer goods and convenience foods. Substantially all of our tenants’ financial
results depend on the sale of refined petroleum products, convenience store sales or rental income from their subtenants. As a result,
our tenants’ financial results are highly dependent on the performance of the petroleum marketing industry, which is highly
competitive and subject to volatility. (For additional information regarding risks related to our tenants’ dependence on the
performance of the petroleum industry, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Substantially all of our tenants depend on the same industry for
their revenues” in this Form 10-K.) During the terms of our leases, we monitor the credit quality of our triple-net lease tenants by
reviewing their published credit rating, if available, reviewing publicly available financial statements, or reviewing financial or other
operating statements which are delivered to us pursuant to applicable lease agreements, monitoring news reports regarding our tenants
and their respective businesses, and monitoring the timeliness of lease payments and the performance of other financial covenants
under their leases.

Our Properties

Net Lease. As of December 31, 2020, we leased 946 of our properties to tenants under triple-net leases.

Our net lease properties include 829 properties leased under 31 separate unitary or master triple-net leases and 117 properties
leased under single unit triple-net leases. These leases generally provide for an initial term of 15 or 20 years with options for
successive renewal terms of up to 20 years and periodic rent escalations. As of December 31, 2020, our contractual rent weighted
average lease term, excluding renewal options, was approximately 9.5 years.



Several of our leases provide for additional rent based on the aggregate volume of fuel sold. For the year ended December 31,
2020, additional rent based on the aggregate volume of fuel sold was not material to our financial results. In addition, certain of our
leases require the tenants to invest capital in our properties, substantially all of which are related to the replacement of underground
storage tanks (“UST” or “USTs”) that are owned by our tenants. As of December 31, 2020, we have a remaining commitment to fund
up to $6.8 million in the aggregate with our tenants for our portion of such capital improvements. For additional information regarding
our leases, see Note 2 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

Redevelopment. As of December 31, 2020, we were actively redeveloping six of our properties either as a new convenience
and gasoline use or for alternative single-tenant net lease retail uses. For additional information regarding our redevelopment
properties, see “Redevelopment Strategy and Activity” below.

Vacancies. As of December 31, 2020, seven of our properties were vacant. We expect that we will either sell or enter into new
leases on these properties over time.

Human Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2020, we had 31 full-time employees, all of which are located in our New York office. In 2020, we hired
our new Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Brian Dickman, following the planned departure of Danion Fielding
for personal reasons. Our employees are offered necessary flexibility to meet personal and family needs. We aim to maintain a
workplace that is free from discrimination or harassment on the basis of color, race, sex, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability,
sexual orientation, gender identification or expression or any other status protected by applicable law. We conduct annual training to
prevent harassment and discrimination and monitor employee conduct year-round. Our recruiting efforts, as well as employee training,
compensation and advancement are all based on qualifications, performance, skills and experience. We believe that our employees are
fairly compensated, without regard to gender, race and ethnicity, and are routinely recognized for outstanding performance. Our
compensation program is designed to attract and retain talent, and includes the employee benefit plans described in Note 8 “Employee
Benefit Plan” included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We continually assess and strive to enhance employee
satisfaction and engagement. Our employees, many of whom have a long tenure with the Company, frequently express satisfaction
with management. Our employees are offered regular opportunities to participate in various professional development programs.

Investment Strategy and Activity

As part of our overall growth strategy, we regularly review acquisition and financing opportunities to invest in additional
convenience stores, gasoline stations and other automotive-related and retail real estate. We primarily pursue sale-leaseback
transactions and other real estate acquisitions that result in us owning fee simple interests in our properties. Our investment activities
may also include purchase money financing with respect to properties we sell, real property loans relating to our leasehold portfolios
and construction loans. Our investment strategy seeks to generate current income and benefit from long-term appreciation in the
underlying value of our real estate. To achieve that goal, we seek to invest in high quality individual properties and real estate
portfolios that are in strong primary markets that serve high density population centers. A key element of our investment strategy is to
invest in properties that will enhance our geographic and tenant diversification.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in 34 properties for an aggregate purchase price of
$150.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2019, we acquired fee simple interests in 27 properties for an aggregate purchase
price of $87.2 million. For additional information regarding our property acquisitions, see Note 13 in “Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

Over the last five years, we have acquired 209 properties, including single property and portfolio transactions located in various
states, for an aggregate purchase price of $537.0 million.

Redevelopment Strategy and Activity

We believe that certain of our properties are well-suited for either new convenience store use or for alternative single-tenant net
lease retail uses, such as automotive parts and service, quick service restaurants, specialty retail and bank branches. We believe that
the redeveloped properties can be leased or sold at higher values than their current use.

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rent commenced on six and four completed redevelopment projects,
respectively, that were placed back into service in our net lease portfolio. Since the inception of our redevelopment program in 2015,
we have completed 19 redevelopment projects.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we spent $0.3 million (net of write-offs) of construction-in-progress costs related to our
redevelopment activities and transferred $1.6 million of construction-in-progress to buildings and improvements on our consolidated
balance sheet. For the year ended December 31, 2019, we spent $0.4 million of construction-in-progress costs related to our
redevelopment activities and transferred $0.5 million of construction-in-progress to buildings and improvements on our consolidated
balance sheet.



As of December 31, 2020, we had six properties under active redevelopment and others in various stages of feasibility planning
for potential recapture from our net lease portfolio, including four properties for which we have signed new leases and which will be
transferred to redevelopment when the appropriate entitlements, permits and approvals have been secured.

Major Tenants
As of December 31, 2020, we had four significant tenants by revenue:

e We leased 150 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to three separate unitary leases and two
stand-alone leases to subsidiaries of Global Partners LP (NYSE: GLP) (“Global”). In the aggregate, our leases with
subsidiaries of Global represented 16% and 18% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively. All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries of Global are guaranteed by the parent company.

e We leased 129 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to four separate unitary leases to subsidiaries
of Arko Corp. (NASDAQ: ARKO) (“Arko”). In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Arko represented 15% of
our total revenues for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries
of Arko are guaranteed by the parent company.

e We leased 77 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to three separate unitary leases to Apro, LLC
(d/b/a “United Oil”). In the aggregate, our leases with United Oil represented 12% and 13% of our total revenues for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

e We leased 74 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to two separate unitary leases to subsidiaries
of Chestnut Petroleum Dist., Inc. (“Chestnut”). In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Chestnut represented
10% and 11% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The largest of these
unitary leases, covering 56 of our properties, is guaranteed by the parent company, its principals and numerous

Chestnut affiliates.

Our major tenants are part of larger corporate organizations and the financial distress of one subsidiary or other affiliated
companies or businesses in those organizations may negatively impact the ability or willingness of our tenant to perform its
obligations under its lease with us. For information regarding factors that could adversely affect us relating to our leases with these

tenants, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors”.

Competition

The single-tenant net lease retail real estate sector in which we operate is highly competitive and we expect major investors with
significant capital will continue to compete with us for attractive acquisition opportunities. These competitors include petroleum
manufacturing, distributing and marketing companies, other REITs, public and private investment funds, and other individual and
institutional investors.

Trademarks

We own the Getty® name and trademark in connection with our real estate and the petroleum marketing business in the United
States and we permit certain of our tenants to use the Getty® trademark at properties that they lease from us.

Regulation

Our properties are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations including matters related to the protection of
the environment such as the remediation of known contamination and the retirement and decommissioning or removal of long-lived
assets including buildings containing hazardous materials, USTs and other equipment. These laws include: (i) requirements to report
to governmental authorities discharges of petroleum products into the environment and, under certain circumstances, to remediate soil
and groundwater contamination, including pursuant to governmental order and directive, (ii) requirements to remove and replace
USTs that have exceeded governmental-mandated age limitations and (iii) the requirement to provide a certificate of financial
responsibility with respect to potential claims relating to UST failures. Our triple-net lease tenants are directly responsible for
compliance with environmental laws and regulations with respect to their operations at our properties.

We believe that our properties are in substantial compliance with federal, state and local provisions pertaining to environmental
matters. Although we are unable to predict what legislation or regulations may be adopted in the future with respect to environmental
protection and waste disposal, we do not believe that existing legislation and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our
competitive position. For additional information regarding pending environmental lawsuits and claims, see “Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” in this Form 10-K.

For substantially all of our triple-net leases, our tenants are contractually responsible for compliance with environmental laws
and regulations, removal of USTs at the end of their lease term (the cost of which in certain cases is partially borne by us) and
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remediation of any environmental contamination that arises during the term of their tenancy. Under the terms of our leases covering
properties previously leased to Getty Petroleum Marketing Inc. (“Marketing”) (substantially all of which commenced in 2012), we
have agreed to be responsible for environmental contamination at the premises that was known at the time the lease commenced, and
for environmental contamination which existed prior to commencement of the lease and is discovered (other than as a result of a
voluntary site investigation) during the first 10 years of the lease term (or a shorter period for a minority of such leases). After
expiration of such 10-year (or, in certain cases, shorter) period, responsibility for all newly discovered contamination, even if it relates
to periods prior to commencement of the lease, is contractually allocated to our tenant. Our tenants at properties previously leased to
Marketing are in all cases responsible for the cost of any remediation of contamination that results from their use and occupancy of
our properties. Under substantially all of our other triple-net leases, responsibility for remediation of all environmental contamination
discovered during the term of the lease (including known and unknown contamination that existed prior to commencement of the
lease) is the responsibility of our tenant.

For additional information, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “Environmental Matters” and
“Contractual Obligations” in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
Note 5 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

Additional Information

Our website address is www.gettyrealty.com. Information available on our website shall not be deemed to be a part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K
and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are available on our
website, free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with, or furnish them to, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Our website also contains our business conduct guidelines (“Code of Ethics”), corporate governance guidelines and the charters
of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committees of our Board of Directors. We intend to make
available on our website any future amendments or waivers to our Code of Ethics within four business days after any such
amendments or waivers become effective.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We are subject to various risks, many of which are beyond our control. As a result of these and other factors, we may experience
material fluctuations in our future operating results on a quarterly or annual basis, which could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. An investment in our stock
involves various risks, including those mentioned below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and those that are
described from time to time in our other filings with the SEC.

Summary of Risk Factors

Our business is subject to risks and uncertainties, including those risks and uncertainties discussed at-length below, that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the
following:
Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

e The risks inherent in owning or leasing real estate.

e The real estate industry is highly competitive.

e Our future cash flow is dependent on the performance of our tenants of their lease obligations, renewal of existing leases and
either re-leasing or selling our properties.

e  Substantially all of our tenants depend on the same industry for their revenues.
e It may be difficult for our investors to determine the creditworthiness of our tenants.

e An increase in costs and liability accruals as a result of environmental laws and regulations could adversely affect our
business.

e We are defending pending lawsuits and claims that may subject us to material losses.



e  We may be subject to losses that may not be covered by insurance.

e The concentration of a significant number of our properties in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States,
and adverse conditions in those regions, in particular, could negatively impact our operations.

e  Property taxes on our properties may increase without notice.
e Our business operations may not generate sufficient cash for distributions or debt service.
e Adverse developments in general business, economic or political conditions could have a material adverse effect on us.

e Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the market on which our common stock trades, the markets in
which we operate, our operations and our results of operations.

e Qur exposure to counterparty risk.
e Inflation may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
e  QOur assets may be subject to impairment charges.

e QOur accounting policies and methods require management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions about matters that
are inherently uncertain.

e Amendments to the Accounting Standards Codification made by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) or
changes in accounting standards may adversely affect our reported revenues, profitability or financial position.

e If we fail to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately and timely report
our financial results.

e  Qur reliance on certain members of our management team or Board of Directors, the loss of any one of which could
adversely affect our business or the market price of our common stock.

e Our reliance on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security
failure of that technology could harm our business.

e QOur business and results of operations have been, and our financial condition may be, impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Risks Related to Financing Our Business

e Our dependency on external sources of capital, which may or may not be available on favorable terms, or at all.

e Interest rate risk and our ability to manage or mitigate this risk effectively.

e Adverse effects by changes in LIBOR reporting practices or the method in which LIBOR is calculated.
Risks Related to Our Investment Strategy

e We may not be able to successfully implement our investment strategy.

e We expect to acquire new properties and this may create risks.

e We are pursuing redevelopment opportunities and this creates risks to our Company.



Risks Related to Our Status as a REIT
e  The failure to qualify as a REIT under the federal income tax laws would have adverse consequences to our stockholders.
Uncertain tax matters may have a significant impact on the results of operations for any single fiscal year or interim period or
may cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT.

e A risk of changes in the tax law applicable to REITs.

e U.S. federal tax reform legislation could affect REITs generally, our tenants, the markets in which we operate, the price of
our common stock and our results of operations.

e In order to preserve our REIT status, our charter limits the number of shares a person may own, which may discourage a
takeover that could result in a premium price for our common stock or otherwise benefit our stockholders.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities
e Changes in market conditions could adversely affect the market price of our publicly traded common stock.
e Changes in our dividend policy and the dividends we pay may be subject to significant volatility.
e  Future issuances of equity securities could dilute the interest of holders of our equity securities.

e Maryland law may discourage a third-party from acquiring us.

Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

We are subject to risks inherent in owning and leasing real estate.

We are subject to varying degrees of risk generally related to leasing and owning real estate, many of which are beyond our
control. In addition to general risks applicable to us, our risks include, among others: our liability as a lessee for long-term lease
obligations regardless of our revenues; deterioration in national, regional and local economic and real estate market conditions;
potential changes in supply of, or demand for, rental properties similar to ours; competition for tenants and declining rental rates;
difficulty in selling or re-leasing properties on favorable terms or at all; impairments in our ability to collect rent or other payments
due to us when they are due; increases in interest rates and adverse changes in the availability, cost and terms of financing; uninsured
property liability; the impact of present or future environmental legislation and compliance with environmental laws; adverse changes
in zoning laws and other regulations; acts of terrorism and war; acts of God; the unforeseen impacts of climate change, compliance
with any future laws or regulations designed to prevent or mitigate the impacts of climate change, and any material costs related
thereto; the potential risk of functional obsolescence of properties over time the need to periodically renovate and repair our
properties; and physical or weather-related damage to our properties. Certain significant expenditures generally do not change in
response to economic or other conditions, including: (i) debt service, (ii) real estate taxes, (iii) environmental remediation costs and
(iv) operating and maintenance costs. The combination of variable revenue and relatively fixed expenditures may result, under certain
market conditions, in reduced earnings and could have an adverse effect on our financial condition.

Each of the factors listed above could cause a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. In addition, real estate investments are relatively illiquid, which means that our ability
to vary our portfolio of properties in response to changes in economic and other conditions may be limited.

We are in a competitive business.

The real estate industry is highly competitive. Where we own properties, we compete for tenants with a large number of real
estate property owners and other companies that sublet properties. Our principal means of competition are rents we are able to charge
in relation to the income producing potential of the location. In addition, we expect other major real estate investors, some with much
greater financial resources or more experienced personnel than we have, will compete with us for attractive acquisition opportunities.
These competitors include petroleum manufacturing, distributing and marketing companies, convenience store retailers, other REITs,
public and private investment funds, and other individual and institutional investors. This competition has increased prices for
properties we seek to acquire and may impair our ability to make suitable property acquisitions on favorable terms in the future.
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Our future cash flow is dependent on the performance of our tenants of their lease obligations, renewal of existing leases and
either re-leasing or selling our properties.

We are subject to risks that financial distress, default or bankruptcy of our tenants may lead to vacancy at our properties or
disruption in rent receipts as a result of partial payment or nonpayment of rent or that expiring leases may not be renewed. Under
unfavorable general economic conditions, there can be no assurance that our tenants’ level of sales and financial performance
generally will not be adversely affected, which in turn could negatively impact our rental revenues. We are subject to risks that the
terms governing renewal or re-leasing of our properties (including, compliance with numerous federal, state and local laws and
regulations related to the protection of the environment, such as the remediation of contamination and the retirement and
decommissioning or removal of long-lived assets, the cost of required renovations, or replacement of USTs and related equipment)
may be less favorable than current lease terms.

We are also subject to the risk that we may receive less net proceeds from the properties we sell as compared to their current
carrying value or that the value of our properties may be adversely affected by unfavorable general economic conditions. Unfavorable
general economic conditions may also negatively impact our ability to re-lease or sell our properties. Numerous properties compete
with our properties in attracting tenants to lease space. The number of available or competitive properties in a particular area could
have a material adverse effect on our ability to lease or sell our properties and on the rents we are able to charge. In addition to the risk
of disruption in rent receipts, we are subject to the risk of incurring real estate taxes, maintenance, environmental and other expenses
at vacant properties. The financial distress, default or bankruptcy of our tenants may also lead to protracted and expensive processes
for retaking control of our properties than would otherwise be the case, including, eviction or other legal proceedings related to or
resulting from the tenant’s default. These risks are greater with respect to certain of our tenants who lease multiple properties from us.
If a tenant files for bankruptcy protection it is possible that we would recover substantially less than the full value of our claims
against the tenant. If (i) our tenants do not perform their lease obligations, (ii) we are unable to renew existing leases and promptly
recapture and re-lease or sell our properties, (iii) lease terms upon renewal or re-leasing are less favorable than current or historical
lease terms, (iv) the values of properties that we sell are adversely affected by market conditions, or (v) we incur significant costs or
disruption related to or resulting from tenant financial distress, default or bankruptcy, then our cash flow could be significantly
adversely affected.

Substantially all of our tenants depend on the same industry for their revenues.

We derive substantially all of our revenues from leasing, primarily on a triple-net basis, and financing convenience store and
gasoline station properties to tenants in the petroleum marketing industry. Accordingly, our revenues are substantially dependent on
the economic success of the petroleum marketing industry, and any factors that adversely affect that industry, such as disruption in the
supply of petroleum or a decrease in the demand for conventional motor fuels due to conservation, technological advancements in
petroleum-fueled motor vehicles or an increase in the use of, and consumer demand for, alternative fuel, electric and battery-operated
vehicles, or other “green technologies,” could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. The success of participants in the petroleum marketing industry depends
upon the sale of refined petroleum products at margins in excess of fixed and variable expenses. The petroleum marketing industry is
highly competitive and volatile. Petroleum products are commodities, the prices of which depend on numerous factors that affect
supply and demand. The prices paid by our tenants and other petroleum marketers for products are affected by global, national and
regional factors. A large, rapid increase in wholesale petroleum prices would adversely affect the profitability and cash flows of our
tenants if the increased cost of petroleum products could not be passed on to their customers or if automobile consumption of gasoline
was to decline significantly. We cannot be certain as to how these factors will affect petroleum product prices or supply in the future,
or how in particular they will affect our tenants.

Because certain of our tenants are not rated and their financial information is not available to you, it may be difficult for our
investors to determine their creditworthiness.

The majority of our properties are leased to tenants who are not rated by any nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations. In addition, our tenants’ financial information is not generally available to our investors. Additionally, many of our
tenants are part of larger corporate organizations and we do not receive financial information for the other entities in those
organizations. The financial distress of other affiliated companies or businesses in those organizations may negatively impact the
ability or willingness of our tenant to perform its obligations under its lease with us. Because of the lack of financial information or
credit ratings it is, therefore, difficult for our investors to assess the creditworthiness of our tenants and to determine the ability of our
tenants to meet their obligations to us. It is possible that the assumptions and estimates we make after reviewing publicly and privately
obtained information about our tenants are not accurate and that we may be required to increase reserves for bad debts, record
allowances for deferred rent receivable or record additional expenses if our tenants are unable or unwilling to meet their obligations to
us.
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We incur significant operating costs and, from time to time, may have significant liability accruals as a result of environmental
laws and regulations, which costs and accruals could significantly increase, and reduce our profitability or have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

We are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, including matters relating to the protection of the
environment. Under certain environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real estate may be liable for contamination
resulting from the presence or discharge of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum products at, on, or under, such property, and
may be required to investigate and clean-up such contamination. Such laws typically impose liability and clean-up responsibility first
on the party responsible for the contamination, but can also impose liability and clean-up responsibility on the owner and the current
operator without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or caused the presence of the contaminants, or the timing or cause
of the contamination. Liability under such environmental laws has been interpreted to be joint and several unless the harm is divisible
and there is a reasonable basis for allocation of responsibility and the financial resources are available to perform the remediation. For
example, liability may arise as a result of the historical use of a property or from the migration of contamination from adjacent or
nearby properties. Any such contamination or liability may also reduce the value of the property. In addition, the owner or operator of
a property may be subject to claims by third-parties based on injury, damage and/or costs, including investigation and clean-up costs,
resulting from environmental contamination present at or emanating from a property. We cannot predict what environmental
legislation or regulations may be enacted in the future, or how existing laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted with
respect to products or activities to which they have not previously been applied. Additionally, compliance with more stringent laws or
regulations, as well as more vigorous enforcement policies of the regulatory agencies or stricter interpretation of existing laws, which
may develop in the future, could have an adverse effect on our financial position, or that of our tenants, and could require substantial
additional expenditures for future remediation. Accordingly, compliance with environmental laws and regulations could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

The properties owned or controlled by us are leased primarily as convenience store and gasoline station properties, and therefore
may contain, or may have contained, USTs for the storage of petroleum products and other hazardous or toxic substances, which
creates a potential for the release of such products or substances. Some of our properties are subject to regulations regarding the
retirement and decommissioning or removal of long-lived assets including buildings containing hazardous materials, USTs and other
equipment. Some of the properties may be adjacent to or near properties that have contained or currently contain USTs used to store
petroleum products or other hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, certain of the properties are on, adjacent to, or near properties
upon which others have engaged or may in the future engage in activities that may release petroleum products or other hazardous or
toxic substances. There may be other environmental problems associated with our properties of which we are unaware. These
problems may make it more difficult for us to re-lease or sell our properties on favorable terms, or at all.

We enter into leases and various other agreements which contractually allocate responsibility between the parties for known and
unknown environmental liabilities at or relating to the subject properties. We are contingently liable for these environmental
obligations in the event that our tenant does not satisfy them, and we are required to accrue for environmental liabilities that we
believe are allocable to others under our leases if we determine that it is probable that our tenant will not meet its environmental
obligations. It is possible that our assumptions regarding the ultimate allocation method and share of responsibility that we used to
allocate environmental liabilities may change, which may result in material adjustments to the amounts recorded for environmental
litigation accruals and environmental remediation liabilities. We assess whether to accrue for environmental liabilities based upon
relevant factors including our tenants’ histories of paying for such obligations, our assessment of their financial capability, and their
intent to pay for such obligations. However, there can be no assurance that our assessments are correct or that our tenants who have
paid their obligations in the past will continue to do so. We may ultimately be responsible to pay for environmental liabilities as the
property owner if our tenant fails to pay them. The ultimate resolution of these matters could cause a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

For substantially all of our triple-net leases, our tenants are contractually responsible for compliance with environmental laws
and regulations, removal of USTs at the end of their lease term (the cost of which in certain cases is partially borne by us) and
remediation of any environmental contamination that arises during the term of their tenancy. Under the terms of our leases covering
properties previously leased to Marketing (substantially all of which commenced in 2012), we have agreed to be responsible for
environmental contamination at the premises that was known at the time the lease commenced, and for environmental contamination
which existed prior to commencement of the lease and is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation) during the
first 10 years of the lease term (or a shorter period for a minority of such leases). After expiration of such 10-year (or, in certain cases,
shorter) period, responsibility for all newly discovered contamination, even if it relates to periods prior to commencement of the lease,
is contractually allocated to our tenant. Our tenants at properties previously leased to Marketing are in all cases responsible for the cost
of any remediation of contamination that results from their use and occupancy of our properties. Under substantially all of our other
triple-net leases, responsibility for remediation of all environmental contamination discovered during the term of the lease (including
known and unknown contamination that existed prior to commencement of the lease) is the responsibility of our tenant.

We anticipate that a majority of the USTs at properties previously leased to Marketing will be replaced over the next several
years because these USTs are either at or near the end of their useful lives. For long-term, triple-net leases covering sites previously
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leased to Marketing, our tenants are responsible for the cost of removal and replacement of USTs and for remediation of
contamination found during such UST removal and replacement, unless such contamination was found during the first 10 years of the
lease term and also existed prior to commencement of the lease. In those cases, we are responsible for costs associated with the
remediation of such preexisting contamination. We have also agreed to be responsible for environmental contamination that existed
prior to the sale of certain properties assuming the contamination is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation)
during the first five years after the sale of the properties.

In the course of certain UST removals and replacements at properties previously leased to Marketing where we retained
continuing responsibility for preexisting environmental obligations, previously unknown environmental contamination was and
continues to be discovered. As a result, we have developed an estimate of fair value for the prospective future environmental liability
resulting from preexisting unknown environmental contamination and have accrued for these estimated costs. These estimates are
based primarily upon quantifiable trends which we believe allow us to make reasonable estimates of fair value for the future costs of
environmental remediation resulting from the removal and replacement of USTs. Our accrual of the additional liability represents our
estimate of the fair value of cost for each component of the liability, net of estimated recoveries from state UST remediation funds
considering estimated recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds. In arriving at our accrual, we analyzed the ages
of USTs at properties where we would be responsible for preexisting contamination found within 10 years after commencement of a
lease (for properties subject to long-term triple-net leases) or five years from a sale (for divested properties), and projected a cost to
closure for preexisting unknown environmental contamination.

We measure our environmental remediation liabilities at fair value based on expected future net cash flows, adjusted for
inflation, and then discount them to present value. We adjust our environmental remediation liabilities quarterly to reflect changes in
projected expenditures, changes in present value due to the passage of time and reductions in estimated liabilities as a result of actual
expenditures incurred during each quarter. As of December 31, 2020, we had accrued a total of $48.1 million for our prospective
environmental remediation obligations. This accrual consisted of (a) $11.7 million, which was our estimate of reasonably estimable
environmental remediation liability, including obligations to remove USTs for which we are responsible, net of estimated recoveries
and (b) $36.4 million for future environmental liabilities related to preexisting unknown contamination.

For additional information regarding pending environmental lawsuits and claims, and environmental remediation obligations
and estimates, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings”, “Environmental Matters” in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Notes 3 and 5 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this
Form 10-K.

Environmental exposures are difficult to assess and estimate for numerous reasons, including the amount of data available upon
initial assessment of contamination, alternative treatment methods that may be applied, location of the property which subjects it to
differing local laws and regulations and their interpretations, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and
equipment, the availability of state UST remediation funds and the possibility of existing legal claims giving rise to allocation of
responsibilities to others, as well as the time it takes to remediate contamination and receive regulatory approval. In developing our
liability for estimated environmental remediation obligations on a property by property basis, we consider, among other things, laws
and regulations, assessments of contamination and surrounding geology, quality of information available, currently available
technologies for treatment, alternative methods of remediation and prior experience. Environmental accruals are based on estimates
derived upon facts known to us at this time, which are subject to significant change as circumstances change, and as environmental
contingencies become more clearly defined and reasonably estimable.

We cannot predict if state UST fund programs will be administered and funded in the future in a manner that is consistent with
past practices and if future environmental spending will continue to be eligible for reimbursement at historical recovery rates under
these programs. As a result, our estimates in respect of recoveries from state UST remediation funds could change, which could
adversely affect our accruals for environmental remediation liabilities.

Any changes to our estimates or our assumptions that form the basis of our estimates may result in our providing an accrual, or
adjustments to the amounts recorded, for environmental remediation liabilities. Additional environmental liabilities could cause a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

We are defending pending lawsuits and claims and are subject to material losses.

We are subject to various lawsuits and claims, including litigation related to environmental matters, such as those arising from
leaking USTs, contamination of groundwater with methyl tertiary butyl ether (a fuel derived from methanol, commonly referred to as
“MTBE”) and releases of motor fuel into the environment, and toxic tort claims. The ultimate resolution of certain matters cannot be
predicted because considerable uncertainty exists both in terms of the probability of loss and the estimate of such loss. Our ultimate
liabilities resulting from the lawsuits and claims we face could cause a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. For additional information with respect to certain pending
lawsuits and claims, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” and Note 3 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this
Form 10-K.
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We are subject to losses that may not be covered by insurance.

We and our tenants carry insurance against certain risks and in such amounts as we believe are customary for businesses of our
kind. However, as the costs and availability of insurance change, we may decide not to be covered against certain losses (such as
certain environmental liabilities, earthquakes, hurricanes, floods and civil disorder) where, in the judgment of management, the
insurance is not warranted due to cost or availability of coverage or the remoteness of perceived risk. Furthermore, there are certain
types of losses, such as losses resulting from wars, terrorism or certain acts of God, that generally are not insured because they are
either uninsurable or not economically insurable. There is no assurance that the existing insurance coverages are or will be sufficient
to cover actual losses incurred. The destruction of, or significant damage to, or significant liabilities arising out of conditions at, our
properties due to an uninsured loss would result in an economic loss and could result in us losing both our investment in, and
anticipated profits from, such properties. When a loss is insured, the coverage may be insufficient in amount or duration, or a lessee’s
customers may be lost, such that the lessee cannot resume its business after the loss at prior levels or at all, resulting in reduced rent or
a default under its lease. Any such loss relating to a large number of properties could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

A significant portion of our properties are concentrated in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States, and
adverse conditions in those regions, in particular, could negatively impact our operations.

A significant portion of the properties we own and lease are located in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United
States and, as of December 31, 2020, 43.6% of our properties are concentrated in three states (New York, Massachusetts and
Connecticut). Because of the concentration of our properties in those regions, in the event of adverse economic conditions in those
regions, we would likely experience higher risk of default on payment of rent to us than if our properties were more geographically
diversified. Additionally, the rents on our properties may be subject to a greater risk of default than other properties in the event of
adverse economic, political or business developments, natural disasters or severe weather that may affect the Northeast or Mid-
Atlantic regions of the United States and the ability of our lessees to make rent payments. This lack of geographical diversification
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or
stock price.

Property taxes on our properties may increase without notice.

Each of the properties we own or lease is subject to real property taxes. The leases for certain of the properties that we lease
from third-parties obligate us to pay real property taxes with regard to those properties. The real property taxes on our properties and
any other properties that we acquire or lease in the future may increase as property tax rates change and as those properties are
assessed or reassessed by tax authorities. To the extent that our tenants are unable or unwilling to pay such increase in accordance with
their leases, our net operating expenses may increase.

Our business operations may not generate sufficient cash for distributions or debt service.

There is no assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be
available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay dividends on our common stock, to pay our indebtedness or to fund our
other liquidity needs. We may not be able to repay or refinance existing indebtedness on favorable terms, which could force us to
dispose of properties on disadvantageous terms (which may also result in losses) or accept financing on unfavorable terms.

Adverse developments in general business, economic or political conditions could have a material adverse effect on us.

Adverse developments in general business and economic conditions, including through recession, downturn or otherwise, either
in the economy generally or in those regions in which a large portion of our business is conducted, could have a material adverse
effect on us and significantly increase certain of the risks we are subject to. Among other effects, adverse economic conditions could
depress real estate values, impact our ability to re-lease or sell our properties and have an adverse effect on our tenants’ level of sales
and financial performance generally. As our revenues are substantially dependent on the economic success of our tenants, any factors
that adversely impact our tenants could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the market on which our common stock trades, the markets in which
we operate, our operations and our results of operations.

Terrorist attacks or other acts of violence or war could affect our business or the businesses of our tenants. The consequences of
armed conflicts are unpredictable, and we may not be able to foresee events that could have a material adverse effect on us. More
generally, any of these events could cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in increased volatility in the United
States and worldwide financial markets and economy. Terrorist attacks also could be a factor resulting in, or which could exacerbate,
an economic recession in the United States or abroad. Any of these occurrences could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.
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We are exposed to counterparty risk and there can be no assurances that we will effectively manage or mitigate this risk.

We regularly interact with counterparties in various industries. The types of counterparties most common to our transactions and
agreements include, but are not limited to, landlords, tenants, vendors and lenders. We also enter into agreements to acquire and sell
properties which allocate responsibility for certain costs to the counterparty. Our most significant counterparties include, but are not
limited to, the members of the bank syndicate related to our Restated Credit Agreement, the lenders that are the counterparties to our
senior unsecured notes and our major tenants from whom we derive a significant amount of rental revenue. The default, insolvency or
other inability or unwillingness of a significant counterparty to perform its obligations under an agreement, including, without
limitation, as a result of the rejection of an agreement in bankruptcy proceedings, is likely to have a material adverse effect on us.

As of December 31, 2020, we leased 150 convenience store and gasoline station properties in three separate unitary leases and
two stand-alone leases to subsidiaries of Global. In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Global represented 16% and 18% of
our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries of Global
are guaranteed by the parent company. As of December 31, 2020, we leased 129 convenience store and gasoline station properties in
four separate unitary leases to subsidiaries of Arko. In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Arko represented 15% of our total
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries of Arko are guaranteed by the
parent company. As of December 31, 2020, we leased 77 convenience store and gasoline station properties in three separate unitary
leases to United Oil. In the aggregate, our leases with United Oil represented 12% and 13% of our total revenues for each of the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, we leased 74 convenience store and gasoline station
properties in two separate unitary leases to subsidiaries of Chestnut. In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Chestnut
represented 10% and 11% of our total revenues for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The largest of
these unitary leases, covering 56 of our properties, is guaranteed by the parent company, its principals and numerous Chestnut
affiliates.

We may also undertake additional transactions with these or other existing tenants, which would further concentrate our sources
of rental revenues. Many of our tenants, including those noted above, are part of larger corporate organizations and the financial
distress of one subsidiary or other affiliated companies or businesses in those organizations may negatively impact the ability or
willingness of our tenant to perform its obligations under its lease with us. The failure of a major tenant or their default in their rental
and other obligations to us is likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

Inflation may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Although inflation has not materially impacted our results of operations in the recent past, increased inflation could have a more
pronounced negative impact on any variable rate debt we incur in the future and on our results of operations. During times when
inflation is greater than increases in rent, as provided for in our leases, rent increases may not keep up with the rate of inflation.
Likewise, even though our triple-net leases reduce our exposure to rising property expenses due to inflation, substantial inflationary
pressures and increased costs may have an adverse impact on our tenants if increases in their operating expenses exceed increases in
revenue, which may adversely affect our tenants’ ability to pay rent.

Our assets may be subject to impairment charges.

We periodically evaluate our real estate investments and other assets for impairment indicators. The judgment regarding the
existence of impairment indicators is based on GAAP, and includes a variety of factors such as market conditions, the accumulation of
asset retirement costs due to changes in estimates associated with our estimated environmental liabilities, the status of significant
leases, the financial condition of major tenants and other assumptions and factors that could affect the cash flow from or fair value of
our properties. During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we incurred $4.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively, of
impairment charges. We may be required to take similar impairment charges, which could affect the implementation of our current
business strategy and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position and results of
operations, and they require management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions about matters that are inherently
uncertain.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position and results of
operations. We have identified several accounting policies as being critical to the presentation of our financial position and results of
operations because they require management to make particularly subjective or complex judgments about matters that are inherently
uncertain and because of the likelihood that materially different amounts would be recorded under different conditions or using
different assumptions. We cannot provide any assurance that we will not make subsequent significant adjustments to our consolidated
financial statements. Estimates, judgments and assumptions underlying our consolidated financial statements include, but are not
limited to, receivables and related reserves, deferred rent receivable, income under direct financing leases, asset retirement obligations
(including environmental remediation obligations and future environmental liabilities for pre-existing unknown environmental
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contamination), real estate, depreciation and amortization, carrying value of our properties, impairment of long-lived assets, litigation,
accrued liabilities, income taxes and allocation of the purchase price of properties acquired to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If our accounting policies, methods, judgments, assumptions, estimates and allocations prove to be incorrect, or if
circumstances change, our business, financial condition, revenues, operating expense, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay
dividends or stock price may be materially adversely affected.

Amendments to the Accounting Standards Codification made by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) or
changes in accounting standards issued by other standard-setting bodies may adversely affect our reported revenues, profitability
or financial position.

Our consolidated financial statements are subject to the application of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) in
accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification, which is periodically amended by the FASB. The application of GAAP is
also subject to varying interpretations over time. Accordingly, we are required to adopt amendments to the Accounting Standards
Codification or comply with revised interpretations that are issued from time-to-time by recognized authoritative bodies, including the
FASB and the SEC. Those changes could adversely affect our reported revenues, profitability or financial position.

If we fail to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately and timely report our
financial results.

Effective internal controls over financial reporting are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports, effectively prevent
fraud and operate successfully as a public company. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our reputation and
operating results would be harmed. We are required to perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal control over
financial reporting to allow management to report on, and our independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

As a result of material weaknesses or significant deficiencies that may be identified in our internal control over financial
reporting in the future, we may also identify certain deficiencies in some of our disclosure controls and procedures that we believe
require remediation. If we or our independent registered public accounting firm discover any such weaknesses or deficiencies, we will
make efforts to further improve our internal control over financial reporting controls. However, there is no assurance that we will be
successful. Any failure to maintain effective controls or timely effect any necessary improvement of our internal control over financial
reporting controls could harm operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations, which could affect the listing of
our common stock on the NYSE. Ineffective internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls could also cause
investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which would likely have a negative effect on the per share trading
price of our common stock.

The loss of certain members of our management team or Board of Directors could adversely affect our business or the market
price of our common stock.

Our future success and ability to implement our business and investment strategy depends, in part, on our ability to attract and
retain key management personnel and directors, and on the continued contributions of such persons, each of whom may be difficult to
replace. As a REIT, we employ only 31 employees and have a cost-effective management structure. We do not have any employment
agreements with any of our executives. In the event of the loss of key management personnel or directors, or upon unexpected death,
disability or retirement, we may not be able to find replacements with comparable skill, ability and industry expertise, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock
price. Additionally, certain of our directors beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock. If any of
these directors cease to be a director of the Company and they or their estate sell a significant portion of such holdings into the public
market, it could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We rely on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security failure of that
technology could harm our business.

We rely on information technology networks and systems, including the Internet, to process, transmit and store electronic
information and to manage or support a variety of our business processes, including financial transactions and maintenance of records,
which may include personal identifying information of tenants and lease data. We rely on commercially available systems, software,
tools and monitoring to provide security for processing, transmitting and storing confidential tenant information, such as individually
identifiable information relating to financial accounts. Although we have taken steps to protect the security of the data maintained in
our information systems, it is possible that our security measures will not be able to prevent the systems’ improper functioning, or the
improper disclosure of personally identifiable information such as in the event of cyberattacks. Security breaches, including physical
or electronic break-ins, computer viruses, attacks by hackers and similar breaches, can create system disruptions, shutdowns or
unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. Any failure to maintain proper function, security and availability of our

16



information systems could interrupt our operations, damage our reputation, subject us to liability claims or regulatory penalties and
could materially and adversely affect us.

Our business and results of operations have been, and our financial condition may be, impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and
such impact could be materially adverse.

The global spread of COVID-19 has created significant volatility, uncertainty, and economic disruption. The extent to which
the COVID-19 pandemic impacts our business, operations and financial results is uncertain, and will depend on numerous evolving
factors that we may not be able to accurately predict, including the duration and scope of the pandemic; governmental, business and
individual actions taken in response to the pandemic and the impact of those actions on global economic activity; the actions taken in
response to economic disruption; the reduced economic activity, if not closures from time to time of our tenants’ facilities, may impact
our tenants' businesses, financial condition and liquidity, and may cause one or more of our tenants to be unable to meet their
obligations to us in full, or at all, or to otherwise seek modifications of such obligations; general decline in business activity and
demand for real estate transactions could adversely affect our ability or desire to grow our portfolio of properties; the financial impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic could negatively impact our future compliance with financial covenants of our Restated Credit Agreement
and our senior unsecured notes and result in a default and potentially an acceleration of indebtedness, which non-compliance could
negatively impact our ability to make additional borrowings under our Revolving Facility and pay dividends; and a deterioration in
our or our tenants’ ability to operate in affected areas or delays in the supply of products or services to us or our tenants from vendors
that are needed for our or our tenants’ efficient operations could adversely affect our operations and those of our tenants.

We have granted a small number of tenants short-term rent or mortgage payment relief requests, most of them in the form
of deferral of payments. Notwithstanding the granting of such deferrals, certain of our tenants may be unable to make timely
rental payments in whole or in part under their leases or may seek further waivers or deferrals of rental payments. Accordingly,
the worsening of estimated future cash flows could result in our recognition of increased impairment charges on certain of our
properties. Moreover, in the event of any of our tenants default under or seek early termination for their leases, we might not be able to
fully recover and/or experience delays and additional costs in enforcing our rights under the terms of our leases due to potential
COVID-19-related moratoriums imposed by various jurisdictions on landlord initiated commercial eviction and collection actions.
Further, one or more of our tenants may seek the protection of the bankruptcy laws as a result of the prolonged impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic, which could result in the termination of its lease. Tenant bankruptcies may make it more difficult for us to release or
redevelop the property or properties in which the bankrupt tenant operates, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as to the full adverse impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. Nevertheless, the COVID-19 pandemic presents material uncertainty and risk with respect to our performance, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and performance. Moreover, many risk factors set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2020, should be interpreted as heightened risks as a result of the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Risks Related to Financing Our Business

We are dependent on external sources of capital which may not be available on favorable terms, or at all.

We are dependent on external sources of capital to maintain our status as a REIT and must distribute to our stockholders each
year at least 90% of our net taxable income, excluding any net capital gain. Because of these distribution requirements, it is not likely
that we will be able to fund all future capital needs, including acquisitions, from income from operations. Therefore, we will have to
continue to rely on third-party sources of capital, which may or may not be available on favorable terms, or at all. We may need to
access the capital markets in order to execute future significant acquisitions. There can be no assurance that sources of capital will be
available to us on favorable terms, or at all.

Our principal sources of liquidity are the cash flows from our operations, funds available under our $300.0 million senior
unsecured credit agreement (as amended, the “Restated Credit Agreement”), with a group of commercial banks led by Bank of
America, N.A., proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock through offerings, from time to time, under our at-the-market
program (“ATM Program”) and available cash and cash equivalents. The Restated Credit Agreement consists of a $300.0 million
unsecured revolving facility (the “Revolving Facility”), which is scheduled to mature in March 2022. Subject to the terms of the
Restated Credit Agreement and our continued compliance with its provisions, we have the option to (a) extend the term of the
Revolving Facility for one additional year to March 2023 and (b) request that the lenders approve an increase of up to $300.0 million
in the amount of the Revolving Facility to $600.0 million in the aggregate. We have also issued $525.0 million of senior unsecured
notes. For additional information, see “Credit Agreement” and “Senior Unsecured Notes” in Note 4 in “Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

The Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes contain customary financial covenants such as leverage,
coverage ratios and minimum tangible net worth, as well as limitations on restricted payments, which may limit our ability to incur
additional debt or pay dividends. The Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes also contain customary events of

17



default, including cross defaults to each other, change of control and failure to maintain REIT status (provided that the senior
unsecured notes require a mandatory offer to prepay the notes upon a change in control in lieu of a change of control event of default).
Our ability to meet the terms of the agreements is dependent upon our continued ability to meet certain criteria, as further described in
Note 4 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K, the performance of our tenants and the other
risks described in this section. If we are not in compliance with one or more of our covenants, which could result in an event of default
under our Restated Credit Agreement or our senior unsecured notes, there can be no assurance that our lenders would waive such non-
compliance. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operation, liquidity, ability to pay
dividends or stock price.

Under our ATM Program, we may issue and sell shares of our common stock with an aggregate sales price of up to $125.0
million through a consortium of banks acting as agents. Sales of shares of our common stock under our ATM Program may be made
from time to time in at-the-market offerings as defined in Rule 415 of the Securities Act of 1933, including by means of ordinary
brokers’ transactions on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to
prevailing market prices or as otherwise agreed to with the applicable agent. Sales of shares of our common stock under our ATM
Program, if any, will depend on a variety of factors to be determined by us from time to time, including among others, market
conditions and the trading price of our common stock. Our agents are not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of our
common stock, but each agent will use its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal trading and sales practices and
applicable law and regulation to sell shares designated by us in accordance with the terms of the distribution agreement with our
agents. The net proceeds we receive will be the gross proceeds received from such sales less the commissions and any other costs we
may incur in issuing the shares of our common stock.

We may use a portion of the net proceeds from any of such sales to reduce our outstanding indebtedness, including borrowings
under our Revolving Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility includes lenders who are affiliates of our agents. As a result, a portion of
the net proceeds from any sale of shares of our common stock under our ATM Program that is used to repay amounts outstanding
under our Revolving Credit Facility will be received by these affiliates. Because an affiliate may receive a portion of the net proceeds
from any of these sales, each of our agents may have an interest in these sales beyond the sales commission it will receive. This could
result in a conflict of interest and cause such agents to act in a manner that is not in the best interests of us or our investors in
connection with any sale of shares of our common stock under our ATM Program.

Our access to third-party sources of capital depends upon a number of factors including general market conditions, the market’s
perception of our growth potential, financial stability, our current and potential future earnings and cash distributions, covenants and
limitations imposed under our Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes, and the market price of our common stock.

We are exposed to interest rate risk and there can be no assurances that we will manage or mitigate this risk effectively.

We are exposed to interest rate risk, primarily as a result of our Restated Credit Agreement. Borrowings under our Restated
Credit Agreement bear interest at a floating rate. Accordingly, an increase in interest rates will increase the amount of interest we must
pay under our Restated Credit Agreement. Our interest rate risk may materially change in the future if we increase our borrowings
under the Restated Credit Agreement or amend our Restated Credit Agreement or our senior unsecured notes, seek other sources of
debt or equity capital or refinance our outstanding indebtedness. A significant increase in interest rates could also make it more
difficult to find alternative financing on desirable terms. For additional information with respect to interest rate risk, see “Item 7A.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in this Form 10-K.

We may be adversely affected by changes in LIBOR reporting practices or the method in which LIBOR is calculated.

On July 27, 2017, the United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”), which regulates LIBOR, announced that it
intends to stop compelling banks to submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR after the end of 2021. The U.S. Federal Reserve Board
and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York convened the Alternative Reference Rates Committee (“ARRC”), a steering committee
comprised of large U.S. financial institutions, to identify an alternative reference rate. ARRC identified the Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (“SOFR”), calculated by reference to short-term repurchase agreements backed by U.S. Treasury securities, as the
recommended alternative reference rate for USD-LIBOR in derivative and other financial contracts and proposed a paced transition
plan to transition USD-LIBOR to SOFR. The first publication of SOFR was released by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in
April 2018. In November 2020, the ICE Benchmark Administration Limited (the administrator of LIBOR) announced that it would
consult on its intention to cease the publication of the one-week and two-month USD-LIBOR tenors only on December 31, 2021 and
all other USD-LIBOR tenors on June 30, 2023. The consultation period ended on January 25, 2021; however, no official statement
has been made as of the date of this report.

We cannot predict when LIBOR will cease to be available and there is no guarantee that a transition from LIBOR to an
alternative rate will not result in financial market disruptions, significant increases in benchmark rates or financing costs to borrowers.
If LIBOR is discontinued, pursuant to the Second Amendment to the Restated Credit Agreement, the administrative agent and the
borrower may amend the Restated Credit Agreement to replace LIBOR with a SOFR-based rate or an alternative rate otherwise agreed
upon. Such an event would not affect our ability to borrow or maintain already outstanding borrowings, but the alternative rate could
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be higher and more volatile than LIBOR prior to its discontinuance. If a LIBOR successor rate has not been implemented under the
Restated Credit Agreement, interest on borrowing shall accrue at the base rate. Accordingly, the potential effects of the foregoing on
our cost of capital cannot yet be determined. As of December 31, 2020, we had $25,000,000 of borrowings based on LIBOR.

Risks Related to Our Investment Strategy

We may not be able to successfully implement our investment strategy.

We may not be able to successfully implement our investment strategy. We cannot assure you that our portfolio of properties
will expand at all, or if it will expand at any specified rate or to any specified size. As part of our overall growth strategy, we regularly
review acquisition, financing and redevelopment opportunities, and we expect to continue to pursue investments that we believe will
benefit our financial performance. We cannot assure you that investment opportunities which meet our investment criteria will be
available. Pursuing our investment opportunities may result in additional debt or new equity issuances, that may initially be dilutive to
our net income, and such investments may not perform as we expect or produce the returns that we anticipate (including, without
limitation, as a result of tenant bankruptcies, tenant concessions, our inability to collect rents and higher than anticipated operating
expenses). Further, we may not be able to successfully integrate investments into our existing portfolio without operating disruptions
or unanticipated costs. To the extent that our current sources of liquidity are not sufficient to fund such investments, we will require
other sources of capital, which may or may not be available on favorable terms or at all. Additionally, to the extent that we increase
the size of our portfolio, we may not be able to adapt our management, administrative, accounting and operational systems, or hire and
retain sufficient operational staff to integrate investments into our portfolio or manage any future investments without operating
disruptions or unanticipated costs. Moreover, our continued growth will require increased investment in management personnel,
professional fees, other personnel, financial and management systems and controls and facilities, which will result in additional
operating expenses. Under the circumstances described above, our results of operations, financial condition and growth prospects may
be materially adversely affected.

We expect to acquire new properties and this may create risks.

We may acquire properties when we believe that an acquisition matches our business and investment strategies. These
properties may have characteristics or deficiencies currently unknown to us that affect their value or revenue potential. It is possible
that the operating performance of these properties may decline after we acquire them, or that they may not perform as expected.
Further, if financed by additional debt or new equity issuances, our acquisition of properties may result in stockholder dilution. Our
acquisition of properties will expose us to the liabilities of those properties, some of which we may not be aware of at the time of such
acquisitions. We face competition in pursuing these acquisitions and we may not succeed in leasing acquired properties at rents
sufficient to cover the costs of their acquisition and operations.

Newly acquired properties may require significant management attention that would otherwise be devoted to our ongoing
business. We may not succeed in consummating desired acquisitions. Consequences arising from or in connection with any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay
dividends or stock price.

We are pursuing redevelopment opportunities and this creates risks to our Company.

We have commenced a program to redevelop certain of our properties, and to recapture select properties from our net lease
portfolio in order to redevelop such properties, for either a new convenience and gasoline use or for alternative single-tenant net lease
retail uses. The success at each stage of our redevelopment program is dependent on numerous factors and risks, including our ability
to identify and extract qualified sites from our portfolio and successfully prepare and market them for alternative uses, and project
development issues, including those relating to planning, zoning, licensing, permitting, third party and governmental authorizations,
changes in local market conditions, increases in construction costs, the availability and cost of financing, and issues arising from
possible discovery of new environmental contamination and the need to conduct environmental remediation. Occupancy rates and
rents at any particular redeveloped property may fail to meet our original expectations for reasons beyond our control, including
changes in market and economic conditions and the development by competitors of competing properties. We could experience
increased and unexpected costs or significant delays or abandonment of some or all of these redevelopment opportunities. For any of
the above-described reasons, and others, we may determine to abandon opportunities that we have already begun to explore or with
respect to which we have commenced redevelopment efforts and, as a result, we may fail to recover expenses already incurred. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully redevelop and lease any of our identified opportunities or that our overall
redevelopment program will be successful. Consequences arising from or in connection with any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.
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Risks Related to Our Status as a REIT

Failure to qualify as a REIT under the federal income tax laws would have adverse consequences to our stockholders. Uncertain
tax matters may have a significant impact on the results of operations for any single fiscal year or interim period or may cause us
to fail to qualify as a REIT.

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws beginning January 1, 2001. To qualify for taxation as a
REIT, we must, among other requirements such as those related to the composition of our assets and gross income, distribute annually
to our stockholders at least 90% of our taxable income, including taxable income that is accrued by us without a corresponding receipt
of cash. Accordingly, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on qualifying REIT income, provided that distributions to
our stockholders equal at least the amount of our taxable income as defined under the Internal Revenue Code. But, we may have to
borrow money or sell assets to satisfy such distribution requirements even if the then prevailing market conditions are not favorable
for these borrowings. Many of the REIT requirements are highly technical and complex. If we were to fail to meet the requirements,
we may be subject to federal income tax, excise taxes, penalties and interest or we may have to pay a deficiency dividend. We may
have to borrow money or sell assets to pay such a deficiency dividend.

We cannot guarantee that we will continue to qualify in the future as a REIT. We cannot give any assurance that new legislation,
regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions will not significantly change the requirements relating to our
qualification. If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to stockholders in computing our
taxable income and will again be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates, we could be subject to the federal alternative
minimum tax for taxable years beginning before 2019, we could be required to pay significant income taxes and we would have less
money available for our operations and distributions to stockholders. This would likely have a significant adverse effect on the value
of our securities. We could also be precluded from treatment as a REIT for four taxable years following the year in which we lost the
qualification, and all distributions to stockholders would be taxable as regular corporate dividends to the extent of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits. Loss of our REIT status could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.

There is a risk of changes in the tax law applicable to real estate investment trusts.

Because the IRS, the United States Treasury Department and Congress frequently review federal income tax legislation, we
cannot predict whether, when or to what extent new federal tax laws, regulations, interpretations or rulings will be adopted. Any of
such legislative actions may prospectively or retroactively modify our tax treatment and, therefore, may adversely affect taxation of us
and/or our investors.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, or the TCJA, as amended by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, or
the CARES Act, has significantly changed the U.S. federal income taxation of U.S. businesses and their owners, including REITs and
their shareholders. Changes made by the TCJA and the CARES Act that could affect us and our shareholders include:

e temporarily reducing individual U.S. federal income tax rates on ordinary income; the highest individual U.S. federal
income tax rate has been reduced from 39.6% to 37% for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1,
2026;

e permanently eliminating the progressive corporate tax rate structure, with a maximum corporate tax rate of 35%, and
replacing it with a flat corporate tax rate of 21%;

e permitting a deduction for certain pass-through business income, including dividends received by our shareholders from
us that are not designated by us as capital gain dividends or qualified dividend income, which will generally allow individuals, trusts,
and estates to deduct up to 20% of such amounts for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2026;

e reducing the highest rate of withholding with respect to our distributions to non-U.S. stockholders that are treated as
attributable to gains from the sale or exchange of U.S. real property interests from 35% to 21%;

e limiting our deduction for net operating losses to 80% of REIT taxable income (prior to the application of the dividends
paid deduction) for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2020;

e generally limiting the deduction for net business interest expense in excess of a specified percentage (50% for taxable
years beginning in 2019 and 2020 and 30% for subsequent taxable years) of a business’s adjusted taxable income except for taxpayers
that engage in certain real estate businesses and elect out of this rule (provided that such electing taxpayers must use an alternative
depreciation system for certain property); and

e climinating the corporate alternative minimum tax.
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You are urged to consult with your tax advisor with respect to the status of legislative, regulatory, judicial or administrative
developments and proposals and their potential effect on an investment in our securities.

U.S. federal tax reform legislation could affect REITs generally, our tenants, the markets in which we operate, the price of our
common stock and our results of operations, in ways, both positively and negatively, that are difficult to predict.

Certain federal tax legislation (the “2017 Legislation”) included significant changes to corporate and individual tax rates and the
calculation of taxes. As a REIT, we are generally not required to pay federal taxes otherwise applicable to regular corporations if we
distribute all of our income and comply with the various tax rules governing REITs. Stockholders, however, are generally required to
pay taxes on REIT dividends. The 2017 Legislation changed the way in which dividends paid on our stock are taxed by the holder of
that stock and could impact the price of our common stock or how stockholders and potential investors view an investment in REITs.
In addition, while certain elements of the 2017 Legislation do not impact us directly as a REIT, they could impact our tenants and the
markets in which we operate in ways, both positive and negative, that are difficult to predict. Prospective stockholders are urged to
consult with their tax advisors with respect to the 2017 Legislation and any other regulatory or administrative developments and
proposals and the potential effects thereof on an investment in our common stock.

In order to preserve our REIT status, our charter limits the number of shares a person may own, which may discourage a takeover
that could result in a premium price for our common stock or otherwise benefit our stockholders.

Our charter, with certain exceptions, authorizes our Board of Directors to take such actions as are necessary and desirable to
preserve our qualification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes. Unless exempted by our Board of Directors, no person may
(i) own, or be deemed to own by virtue of certain constructive ownership provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, in excess of 5.0%
(in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the aggregate of the outstanding shares of our common stock or
(il) own, or be deemed to own by virtue of certain other constructive ownership provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, in excess of
9.9% (by value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the outstanding shares of our common stock, which may
discourage large investors from purchasing our stock. This restriction may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a
change in control, including an extraordinary transaction (such as a merger, tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our assets)
that might provide a premium price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities

Changes in market conditions could adversely affect the market price of our publicly traded common stock.

As with other publicly traded securities, the market price of our publicly traded common stock depends on various market
conditions, which may change from time-to-time. Among the market conditions that may affect the market price of our publicly traded
common stock are the following: our financial condition and performance and that of our significant tenants; the market’s perception
of our growth potential and potential future earnings; the reputation of REITs generally and the reputation of REITs with portfolios
similar to us; the attractiveness of the securities of REITs in comparison to securities issued by other entities (including securities
issued by other real estate companies); an increase in market interest rates, which may lead prospective investors to demand a higher
distribution rate in relation to the price paid for publicly traded securities; the extent of institutional investor interest in us; and general
economic and financial market conditions.

We may change our dividend policy and the dividends we pay may be subject to significant volatility.

The decision to declare and pay dividends on our common stock in the future, as well as the timing, amount and composition of
any such future dividends, will be at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon such factors as the Board of
Directors deems relevant and the dividend paid may vary from expected amounts. Any change in our dividend policy could adversely
affect our business and the market price of our common stock. In addition, each of the Restated Credit Agreement and senior
unsecured notes prohibit the payments of dividends during certain events of default. No assurance can be given that our financial
performance in the future will permit our payment of any dividends or that the amount of dividends we pay, if any, will not fluctuate
significantly. Under the Maryland General Corporation Law, our ability to pay dividends would be restricted if, after payment of the
dividend, (i) we would not be able to pay indebtedness as it becomes due in the usual course of business or (ii) our total assets would
be less than the sum of our liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if we were to be dissolved, to satisfy the rights of any
stockholders with liquidation preferences. There currently are no stockholders with liquidation preferences.

No assurance can be given that our financial performance in the future will permit our payment of any dividends. Each of the
Restated Credit Agreement our senior unsecured notes contain customary financial covenants such as availability, leverage and
coverage ratios and minimum tangible net worth, as well as limitations on restricted payments, which may limit our ability to incur
additional debt or pay dividends. As a result of the factors described above, we may experience material fluctuations in future
operating results on a quarterly or annual basis, which could materially and adversely affect our business, stock price and ability to
pay dividends.
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Future issuances of equity securities could dilute the interest of holders of our equity securities.

Our future growth depends upon our ability to raise additional capital. If we were to raise additional capital through the issuance
of equity securities, such issuance, the receipt of the net proceeds thereof and the use of such proceeds may have a dilutive effect on
our expected earnings per share, funds from operations per share and adjusted funds from operations per share. The actual amount of
such dilution cannot be determined at this time and will be based on numerous factors. Additionally, we are not restricted from issuing
additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock, including any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that
represent the right to receive, common stock or preferred stock or any substantially similar securities in the future. The market price of
our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common stock in the market after an offering or
the perception that such sales could occur.

Maryland law may discourage a third-party from acquiring us.

We are subject to the provisions of the Maryland Business Combination Act (the “Business Combination Act”) which prohibits
transactions between a Maryland corporation and an interested stockholder or an affiliate of an interested stockholder for five years
after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. Generally, pursuant to the Business
Combination Act, an “interested stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, beneficially owns, directly or
indirectly, 10% or more of a Maryland corporation’s voting stock. These provisions could have the effect of delaying, preventing or
deterring a change in control of our Company or reducing the price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the future for
shares of our capital stock. Additionally, the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act may deny voting rights to shares involved in an
acquisition of one-tenth or more of the voting stock of a Maryland corporation. In our charter and bylaws, we have elected not to have
the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act apply to any acquisition by any person of shares of stock of our Company. However, in
the case of the control share acquisition statute, our Board of Directors may opt to make this statute applicable to us at any time by
amending our bylaws, and may do so on a retroactive basis. Finally, the “unsolicited takeovers” provisions of the Maryland General
Corporation Law permit our Board of Directors, without stockholder approval and regardless of what is currently provided in our
charter or bylaws, to implement certain provisions that may have the effect of inhibiting a third-party from making an acquisition
proposal for our Company or of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our Company under circumstances that
otherwise could provide the holders of our common stock with the opportunity to realize a premium over the then current market price
or that stockholders may otherwise believe is in their best interests.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Substantially all of our properties are leased on a triple-net basis to convenience store retailers, petroleum distributors, operators
of other automotive-related and retail businesses. Our tenants are engaged in the sale of day-to-day consumer goods and services,
convenience foods and refined petroleum products and are responsible for the operations conducted at our properties, including the
payment of all taxes, maintenance, repair, insurance and other operating expenses. In those instances where we determine that the best
use for a property is no longer its existing use and the property is not subject to a lease, we will either redevelop the property or seek
an alternative tenant or buyer for the property. We manage and evaluate our operations as a single segment.

We independently obtain and maintain a program of insurance which we believe adequately covers our owned and leased
properties for casualty and liability risks. Our insurance program is underwritten in view of primary insurance coverages in amounts
and on other terms satisfactory to us, which we require to be provided by most of our tenants for properties they lease from us,
including in respect to casualty, liability, pollution legal liability, fire and extended coverage risks.
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The following table summarizes the geographic distribution of our properties as of December 31, 2020, including the number
and location of properties we lease from third-parties. In addition, we lease approximately 11,100 square feet of office space at 292
Madison Avenue, New York, New York for our corporate headquarters, which we believe will remain suitable and adequate for such
purposes for the immediate future.

Total Percent
Owned by Leased by Properties of Total
Getty Realty Getty Realty by State Properties
New York 204 35 239 24.9%
Massachusetts 99 8 107 11.2
Connecticut 65 7 72 7.5
Texas 64 — 64 6.7
New Jersey 45 4 49 5.1
Virginia 48 1 49 5.1
New Hampshire 45 — 45 4.7
South Carolina 45 — 45 4.7
Maryland 40 2 42 4.4
California 35 — 35 3.7
Washington State 31 — 31 3.2
Arizona 23 — 23 2.4
Colorado 23 — 23 2.4
Pennsylvania 22 — 22 2.3
Oregon 13 — 13 1.4
Arkansas 11 — 11 1.2
Hawaii 10 — 10 1.0
North Carolina 9 — 9 1.0
Ohio 9 — 9 1.0
Maine 7 — 7 0.7
Missouri 7 — 7 0.7
Nevada 6 — 6 0.6
Georgia 5 — 5 0.5
New Mexico 5 — 5 0.5
Florida 4 — 4 0.4
Kansas 4 — 4 0.4
Louisiana 4 — 4 0.4
Oklahoma 4 — 4 0.4
Rhode Island 4 — 4 0.4
Kentucky 3 — 3 0.3
Illinois 2 — 2 0.2
Washington, D.C. 2 — 2 0.2
Alabama 1 — 1 0.1
Delaware — 1 1 0.1
Minnesota 1 — 1 0.1
North Dakota 1 — 1 0.1
Total 901 58 959 100.0%
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The properties that we lease from third parties have a remaining lease term, including renewal and extension option terms,
averaging approximately 8.0 years. The following table sets forth information regarding lease expirations, including renewal and
extension option terms, for properties that we lease from third parties:

Number of Percent of Percent
Leases Total Leased of Total

CALENDAR YEAR Expiring Properties Properties
2021 9 15.5% 0.9%
2022 5 8.6 0.5
2023 2 3.5 0.2
2024 4 6.9 0.4
2025 2 3.5 0.2
Subtotal 22 38.0 2.2
Thereafter 36 62.0 3.8
Total 58 100% 6.0%

Revenues from rental properties for the year ended December 31, 2020 were $144.6 million, an average of approximately
$152,000 per property given the 952 average rental properties held during the year. Revenues from rental properties for the year ended
December 31, 2019, were $137.7 million, an average of $147,000 per property given the 937 average rental properties held during the
year. Rental property lease expirations and annualized contractual rent as of December 31, 2020, are as follows (in thousands, except
for number of properties):

Number of Annualized Percentage
Rental Contractual of Total
CALENDAR YEAR Properties (a) Rent (b) Annualized Rent
Redevelopment 6 $ — —
Vacant 7 — —
2021 24 2,047 1.5%
2022 32 2,815 2.1
2023 26 3,617 2.7
2024 26 3,712 2.7
2025 42 7,074 5.2
2026 82 14,259 10.6
2027 255 19,809 14.6
2028 45 7,842 5.8
2029 76 11,605 8.6
2030 20 1,729 1.3
Thereafter 318 60,743 44.9
Total 959 § 135,252 100.0%

(a) With respect to a unitary master lease that includes properties that we lease from third-parties, the expiration dates refer to the
dates that the leases with the third-parties expire and upon which date our tenant must vacate those properties, not the expiration
date of the unitary master lease itself.

(b) Represents the monthly contractual rent due from tenants under existing leases as of December 31, 2020, multiplied by 12.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings, many of which we consider to be routine and incidental to our business. Many of
these legal proceedings involve claims relating to alleged discharges of petroleum into the environment at current and former gasoline
stations. We routinely assess our liabilities and contingencies in connection with these matters based upon the latest available
information. The following is a description of material legal proceedings, including those involving private parties and governmental
authorities under federal, state and local laws regulating the discharge of hazardous substances into the environment. We are
vigorously defending all of the legal proceedings against us, including each of the legal proceedings listed below. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, we had accrued $4.3 million and $17.8 million, respectively, for certain of these matters which we believe were
appropriate based on information then currently available. It is possible that losses related to these legal proceedings could exceed the
amounts accrued as of December 31, 2020, and that such additional losses could cause a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price.
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MTBE Litigation — State of New Jersey

We were a party to a case involving a large number of gasoline station sites throughout the State of New Jersey brought by
various governmental agencies of the State of New Jersey, including the NJDEP. This New Jersey case (the “New Jersey MDL
Proceedings”) is among the many cases that were transferred from various courts throughout the country and consolidated in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York for coordinated Multi-District Litigation (“MDL”) proceedings.
The New Jersey MDL Proceedings allege various theories of liability due to contamination of groundwater with MTBE as the basis
for claims seeking compensatory and punitive damages. The State of New Jersey is seeking reimbursement of significant clean-up and
remediation costs arising out of the alleged release of MTBE containing gasoline in the State of New Jersey and is asserting various
natural resource damage claims as well as liability against owners and operators of gasoline station properties from which the releases
occurred. The New Jersey MDL Proceedings named us as a defendant along with approximately 50 petroleum refiners, manufacturers,
distributors and retailers of MTBE, or gasoline containing MTBE, including Atlantic Richfield, BP, Chevron, Citgo, ConocoPhillips,
Cumberland Farms, Duke Energy, ExxonMobil, Getty Petroleum Marketing, Inc., Gulf, Hess, Lyondell Chemical, Lyondell-Citgo,
Lukoil Americas, Marathon Oil, Mobil, Motiva, Shell, Sunoco, Unocal, and Valero. The majority of the named defendants have
settled their case with the State of New Jersey.

In 2020, we settled the New Jersey MDL Proceedings in accordance with the terms of a Judicial Consent Order (“JCO”), which
included payment by us of $13.5 million in exchange for satisfaction and release of claims made against us by various parties
including the NJDEP. Our settlement payment was within our previously established litigation loss reserve for the case. The JCO was
approved and entered by the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on December 17, 2020 and, in
accordance with the terms thereof, payment was made by the Company and the case against the Company dismissed.

MTBE Litigation — State of Pennsylvania

On July 7, 2014, our subsidiary, Getty Properties Corp., was served with a complaint filed by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (the “State”) in the Court of Common Pleas, Philadelphia County relating to alleged statewide MTBE contamination in
Pennsylvania. The named plaintiffs are the State, by and through (then) Pennsylvania Attorney General Kathleen G. Kane (as Trustee
of the waters of the State), the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (which governs and administers the Underground Storage Tank
Indemnification Fund), the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (vested with the authority to protect the
environment) and the Pennsylvania Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund. The complaint names us and more than 50
other defendants, including Exxon Mobil, BP, Chevron, Citgo, Gulf, Lukoil Americas, Getty Petroleum Marketing Inc., Marathon,
Hess, Shell Oil, Texaco, Valero, as well as other smaller petroleum refiners, manufacturers, distributors and retailers of MTBE or
gasoline containing MTBE who are alleged to have distributed, stored and sold MTBE gasoline in Pennsylvania. The complaint seeks
compensation for natural resource damages and for injuries sustained as a result of “defendants’ unfair and deceptive trade practices
and act in the marketing of MTBE and gasoline containing MTBE.” The plaintiffs also seek to recover costs paid or incurred by the
State to detect, treat and remediate MTBE from public and private water wells and groundwater. The plaintiffs assert causes of action
against all defendants based on multiple theories, including strict liability — defective design; strict liability — failure to warn; public
nuisance; negligence; trespass; and violation of consumer protection law.

The case was filed in the Court of Common Pleas, Philadelphia County, but was removed by defendants to the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and then transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York so that it may be managed as part of the ongoing MTBE MDL proceedings. In November 2015, plaintiffs filed a second
amended complaint naming additional defendants and adding factual allegations against the defendants. We have joined with other
defendants in the filing of a motion to dismiss the claims against us. This motion is pending with the Court. We intend to defend
vigorously the claims made against us. Our ultimate liability in this proceeding is uncertain and subject to numerous contingencies
which cannot be predicted and the outcome of which are not yet known.

MTBE Litigation — State of Maryland

On December 17, 2017, the State of Maryland, by and through the Attorney General on behalf of the Maryland Department of
Environment and the Maryland Department of Health (the “State of Maryland”), filed a complaint in the Circuit Court for Baltimore
City related to alleged statewide MTBE contamination in Maryland. The complaint was served upon us on January 19, 2018. The
complaint names us and more than 60 other defendants, including Exxon Mobil, APEX Oil, Astra Oil, Atlantic Richfield, BP,
Chevron, Citgo, ConocoPhillips, Hess, Kinder Morgan, Lukoil, Marathon, Shell, Sunoco, Texaco, Valero, Cumberland Farms, Duke
Energy, El Paso Merchant Energy-Petroleum, Energy Transfer Partners, Equilon Enterprises, ETP Holdco, George E. Warren
Corporation, Getty Petroleum Marketing, Inc., Gulf, Guttman Energy, Hartree Partners, Holtzman Oil, Motiva Enterprises, Nustar
Terminals Operations Partnership, Phillips 66, Premcor, 7-Eleven, Sheetz, Total Petrochemicals & Refining USA, Transmontaigne
Product Services, Vitol S.A., WAWA, and Western Refining. The complaint seeks compensation for natural resource damages and for
injuries sustained as a result of the defendants’ unfair and deceptive trade practices in the marketing of MTBE and gasoline containing
MTBE. The plaintiffs also seek to recover costs paid or incurred by the State of Maryland to detect, investigate, treat and remediate
MTBE from public and private water wells and groundwater, punitive damages and the award of attorneys’ fees and litigation costs.
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The plaintiffs assert causes of action against all defendants based on multiple theories, including strict liability — defective design;
strict liability — failure to warn; strict liability for abnormally dangerous activity; public nuisance; negligence; trespass; and violations
of Titles 4, 7 and 9 of the Maryland Environmental Code.

On February 14, 2018, defendants removed the case to the United States District Court for the District of Maryland. We intend
to defend vigorously the claims made against us. Our ultimate liability, if any, in this proceeding is uncertain and subject to numerous
contingencies which cannot be predicted and the outcome of which are not yet known.

Matters related to our former Newark, New Jersey Terminal and the Lower Passaic River

In 2004, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) issued General Notice Letters (“GNL”) to over 100
entities, including us, alleging that they are PRPs at the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site (“Superfund Site”), which includes the former
Diamond Shamrock Corporation manufacturing facility located at 80-120 Lister Ave. in Newark, New Jersey and a 17-mile stretch of
the Passaic River from Dundee Dam to the Newark Bay and its tributaries (the Lower Passaic River Study Area or “LPRSA”). In May
2007, over 70 GNL recipients, including us, entered into an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on Consent (“AOC”)
with the EPA to perform a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (“RI/FS”) for the LPRSA, which is intended to address the
investigation and evaluation of alternative remedial actions with respect to alleged damages to the LPRSA. Many of the parties to the
AOC, including us, are also members of a Cooperating Parties Group (“CPG”). The CPG agreed to an interim allocation formula for
purposes of allocating the costs to complete the RI/FS among its members, with the understanding that this interim allocation formula
is not binding on the parties in terms of any potential liability for the costs to remediate the LPRSA. The CPG submitted to the EPA its
draft RI/FS in 2015, which sets forth various alternatives for remediating the entire 17 miles of the LPRSA. In October 2018, the EPA
issued a letter directing the CPG to prepare a streamlined feasibility study for just the upper 9-miles of the LPRSA based on an
iterative approach using adaptive management strategies. On December 4, 2020, The CPG submitted a Final Draft Interim Remedy
Feasibility Study (“IR/FS”) to the EPA which identifies various targeted dredge and cap alternatives for the upper 9-miles of the
LPRSA. On December 11, 2020, EPA conditionally approved the CPG’s IR/FS for the upper 9-miles of the LPRSA, which recognizes
that interim actions and adaptive management may be appropriate before deciding a final remedy. It is anticipated that EPA will issue
a proposed plan for an interim remedy for the upper 9-miles, which will be published for public comment. Subject to EPA’s response
to any comments and/or objections received, it is anticipated that EPA will issue a Record of Decision (“ROD”) for an interim remedy
for the upper 9-mile portion of the LPRSA in 2021 (“Upper 9-mile IR ROD”).

In addition to the RI/FS activities, other actions relating to the investigation and/or remediation of the LPRSA have proceeded
as follows. First, in June 2012, certain members of the CPG entered into an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on
Consent (“10.9 AOC”) with the EPA to perform certain remediation activities, including removal and capping of sediments at the
river mile 10.9 area and certain testing. The EPA also issued a Unilateral Order to Occidental Chemical Corporation (“Occidental”),
the former owner/operator of the Diamond Shamrock Corporation facility responsible for the discharge of 2,3,8,8-TCDD (“dioxin”)
and other hazardous substances from the Lister facility. The Order directed Occidental to participate and contribute to the cost of the
river mile 10.9 work. Concurrent with the CPG’s work on the RI/FS, on April 11, 2014, the EPA issued a draft Focused Feasibility
Study (“FFS”) with proposed remedial alternatives to remediate the lower 8-miles of the LPRSA. The FFS was subject to public
comments and objections and, on March 4, 2016, the EPA issued a ROD for the lower 8-miles (“Lower 8-mile ROD”) selecting a
remedy that involves bank-to-bank dredging and installing an engineered cap with an estimated cost of $1.38 billion. On March 31,
2016, we and more than 100 other PRPs received from the EPA a “Notice of Potential Liability and Commencement of Negotiations
for Remedial Design” (“Notice”), which informed the recipients that the EPA intends to seek an Administrative Order on Consent and
Settlement Agreement with Occidental (who the EPA considers the primary contributor of dioxin and other pesticides generated from
the production of Agent Orange at its Diamond Shamrock Corporation facility and a discharger of other contaminants of concern
(“COCs”) to the Superfund Site for remedial design of the remedy selected in the Lower 8-mile ROD, after which the EPA plans to
begin negotiations with “major” PRPs for implementation and/or payment of the selected remedy. The Notice also stated that the EPA
believes that some of the PRPs and other parties not yet identified will be eligible for a cash out settlement with the EPA. On
September 30, 2016, Occidental entered into an agreement with the EPA to perform the remedial design for the Lower 8-mile ROD. In
December 2019, Occidental submitted a report to the EPA on the progress of the remedial design work, which is still ongoing.

Occidental has asserted that it is entitled to indemnification by Maxus Energy Corporation (“Maxus”) and Tierra Solutions, Inc.
(“Tierra”) for its liability in connection with the Site. Occidental has also asserted that Maxus and Tierra’s parent company, YPF, S.A.
(“YPF”) and certain of its affiliates must indemnify Occidental. On June 16, 2016, Maxus and Tierra filed for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In July 2017, an amended Chapter 11 plan of liquidation became effective and, in
connection therewith, Maxus and Tierra entered into a mutual contribution release agreement with certain parties, including us,
pertaining to certain past costs, but not future remedy costs.

By letter dated March 30, 2017, the EPA advised the recipients of the Notice that it would be entering into cash out settlements
with 20 PRPs to resolve their alleged liability for the remedial actions addressed in the Lower 8-mile ROD, who the EPA stated did
not discharge any of the eight hazardous substances identified as a COC in the ROD. The letter also stated that other parties who did
not discharge dioxins, furans or polychlorinated biphenyls (which are considered the COCs posing the greatest risk to the river) may
also be eligible for cash out settlements, and that the EPA would begin a process for identifying other PRPs for negotiation of similar
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cash out settlements. We were not included in the initial group of 20 parties identified by the EPA for cash out settlements, but we
believe we meet EPA’s criteria for a cash out settlement and should be considered for same in any future discussions. In January 2018,
the EPA published a notice of its intent to enter into a final settlement agreement with 15 of the initial group of parties to resolve their
respective alleged liability for the Lower 8-mile ROD work, each for a payment to the EPA in the amount of $0.3 million. In August
2017, the EPA appointed an independent third-party allocation expert to conduct allocation proceedings with most of the remaining
recipients of the Notice, which is anticipated to lead to additional offers of cash out settlements to certain additional parties and/or a
consent decree in which parties that are not offered a cash out settlement will agree to perform the Lower 8-mile ROD remedial
action. The allocation proceedings, which we are participating in, are still ongoing.

On June 30, 2018, Occidental filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey seeking cost
recovery and contribution under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act for its alleged
expenses with respect to the investigation, design, and anticipated implementation of the remedy for the Lower 8-mile ROD work. The
complaint lists over 120 defendants, including us, many of whom were also named in the EPA’s 2016 Notice. Factual discovery is
ongoing, and we are defending the claims consistent with our defenses in the related proceedings.

Many uncertainties remain regarding the anticipated interim remedy selection for the Upper 9-mile IR ROD and how the EPA
intends to implement either the Upper 9-mile IR ROD and/or the Lower 8-mile ROD work, including whether EPA will designate
certain PRPs as work parties and/or if EPA will identify PRPs for future cash-out settlement negotiations for the Upper 9-mile IR
ROD, the Lower 8-mile ROD work or both. Further, none of the above referenced AOCs and RODs relating to the LPRSA obligate
us to fund or perform any remedial action contemplated for the LPRSA and do not resolve liability issues for remedial work or the
restoration of or compensation for alleged natural resource damages to the LPRSA, which are not known at this time. Therefore, we
anticipate that performance of the EPA’s selected remedies for the LPRSA will be subject to future negotiation, potential enforcement
proceedings and/or possible litigation.

Based on currently known facts and circumstances, including, among other factors, anticipated allocations, our belief that there
was not any use or discharge of dioxins, furans or polychlorinated biphenyls in connection with our former petroleum storage
operations at our former Newark, New Jersey Terminal, and because there are numerous other parties who will likely bear the costs of
remediation and/or damages, the Company does not believe that resolution of this matter as relates to the Company is reasonably
likely to have a material impact on our results of operations. Nevertheless, our ultimate liability in the pending and possible future
proceedings pertaining to the LPRSA remains uncertain and subject to numerous contingencies which cannot be predicted and the
outcome of which are not yet known. Therefore, it is possible that our ultimate liability resulting from this matter and the impact on
our results of operations could be material.

Uniondale, New York Litigation

In September 2004, the State of New York commenced an action against us, United Gas Corp., Costa Gas Station, Inc., Vincent
Costa, Sharon Irni, The Ingraham Bedell Corporation, Richard Berger and Exxon Mobil Corporation in New York Supreme Court in
Albany County seeking recovery for reimbursement of investigation and remediation costs claimed to have been incurred by the New
York Environmental Protection and Spill Compensation Fund relating to contamination it alleges emanated from various gasoline
station properties located in the same vicinity in Uniondale, New York, including a site formerly owned by us and at which a
petroleum release and cleanup occurred. The complaint also seeks future costs for remediation, as well as interest and penalties. We
have served an answer to the complaint denying responsibility. In 2007, the State of New York commenced action against Shell Oil
Company, Shell Oil Products Company, Motiva Enterprises, LLC, and related parties, in the New York Supreme Court, Albany
County seeking basically the same relief sought in the action involving us. We have also filed a third-party complaint against Hess
Corporation, Sprague Operating Resources LLC (successor to RAD Energy Corp.), Service Station Installation of NY, Inc., and
certain individual defendants based on alleged contribution to the contamination that is the subject of the State’s claims arising from a
petroleum discharge at a gasoline station up-gradient from the site formerly owned by us. In 2016, the various actions filed by the
State of New York and our third-party actions were consolidated for discovery proceedings and trial. Discovery in this case is in later
stages and, as it nears completion, a schedule for trial will be established. We are unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss
in excess of the amount we have accrued for this lawsuit. It is possible that losses related to this case could exceed the amounts
accrued, as of December 31, 2020.

Lukoil Americas Case

In March 2016, we filed a civil lawsuit in the New York State Supreme Court, New York County, against Lukoil Americas
Corporation and certain of its current or former executives, seeking recovery of environmental remediation costs that we either have
incurred, or expect to incur, at properties previously leased to Marketing pursuant to a master lease. The lawsuit alleged various
theories of liability, including claims based on environmental liability statutes in effect in the states in which the properties are located,
as well as a breach of contract claim seeking to pierce Marketing’s corporate veil. We settled this case effective December 17, 2020
pursuant to the terms of a Settlement Agreement and General Release which among other things included a payment to the Company.
The case has been dismissed. For additional information see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None.
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Capital Stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (symbol: GTY). There were approximately 16,239 beneficial
holders of our common stock as of February 5, 2020, of which approximately 862 were holders of record.

For a discussion of potential limitations on our ability to pay future dividends see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — We may change our
dividend policy and the dividends we pay may be subject to significant volatility” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
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12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

Getty Realty Corp. 100.00 § 15568 § 17336 § 19694 § 230.06 $ 20425
Standard & Poor's 500 100.00 § 11196 § 13640 § 13042 § 17149 § 203.04
Peer Group 100.00 § 12127 § 12475 § 14058 §$§ 17645 $ 151.26

Assumes $100 invested at the close of the last day of trading on the New York Stock Exchange on December 31, 2014, in Getty
Realty Corp. common stock, Standard & Poor’s 500 and Peer Group.

*  Cumulative total return assumes reinvestment of dividends.

We have chosen as our Peer Group the following companies: Agree Realty Corporation, EPR Properties (formerly known as
Entertainment Properties Trust), National Retail Properties, Realty Income Corporation, Spirit Realty Capital, Inc. and STORE Capital

28



Corporation. We have chosen these companies as our Peer Group because a substantial segment of each of their businesses is owning
and leasing single-tenant net lease retail properties. We cannot assure you that our stock performance will continue in the future with
the same or similar trends depicted in the performance graph above. We do not make or endorse any predictions as to future stock
performance.

The above performance graph and related information shall not be deemed filed for the purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange
Act or otherwise subject to the liability of that Section and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing that we
make under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Item 6. Reserved
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements”; the sections in Part I entitled “Item 1A. Risk Factors”; and the consolidated financial statements and related notes in
“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

This section of this Form 10-K generally discusses 2020 and 2019 items and year-to-year comparisons between 2020 and 2019.
Discussions of 2018 items and year-to-year comparisons between 2019 and 2018 that are not included in this Form 10-K can be found
in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Part II, Item 7 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019.

General
Real Estate Investment Trust

We are a REIT specializing in the acquisition, ownership, leasing, financing and redevelopment of convenience stores, gasoline
stations and other automotive-related and retail real estate, including express car washes, instant oil change centers, automotive service
centers, automotive parts retailers and select other properties. As of December 31, 2020, we owned 901 properties and leased 58
properties from third-party landlords. As a REIT, we are not subject to federal corporate income tax on the taxable income we
distribute to our stockholders. In order to continue to qualify for taxation as a REIT, we are required, among other things, to distribute
at least 90% of our ordinary taxable income to our stockholders each year.

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a pandemic. The impact from the rapidly
changing market and economic conditions due to the COVID-19 pandemic remains uncertain. While we have not incurred significant
disruptions to our financial results thus far from the COVID-19 pandemic, we are unable to accurately predict the impact that COVID-
19 will have on our business, operations and financial result due to numerous evolving factors, including the severity of the disease,
the duration of the pandemic, actions that may be taken by governmental authorities, the impact to our tenants, including the ability of
our tenants to make their rental payments and any closures of tenants’ facilities. Additionally, while we expect to continue our overall
growth strategy during the 2021 and to fund our business operations from cash flows from our properties and our Revolving Facility,
the rapid developments and fluidity of COVID-19 may cause us to re-evaluate, if not suspend, our growth strategy and/or to rely more
heavily on borrowings under our Revolving Facility, proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock under our ATM Program,
or other sources of liquidity. See “Part I. Item. 1A. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

Our Triple-Net Leases

Substantially all of our properties are leased on a triple-net basis to convenience store operators, petroleum distributors and other
automotive-related and retail tenants. Our tenants either operate their business at our properties directly or sublet our properties and
supply fuel to third parties that operate the convenience store and gasoline station businesses. Our triple-net lease tenants are
responsible for the payment of all taxes, maintenance, repairs, insurance and other operating expenses relating to our properties, and
are also responsible for environmental contamination occurring during the terms of their leases and in certain cases also for
environmental contamination that existed before their leases commenced.

Substantially all of our tenants’ financial results depend on convenience store sales, the sale of refined petroleum products or
rental income from their subtenants. As a result, our tenants’ financial results are highly dependent on the performance of the
petroleum marketing industry, which is highly competitive and subject to volatility. (For additional information regarding risks related
to our tenants’ dependence on the performance of the petroleum industry, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Substantially all of our tenants
depend on the same industry for their revenues” in this Form 10-K.) During the terms of our leases, we monitor the credit quality of
our triple-net lease tenants by reviewing their published credit rating, if available, reviewing publicly available financial statements, or
reviewing financial or other operating statements which are delivered to us pursuant to applicable lease agreements, monitoring news
reports regarding our tenants and their respective businesses, and monitoring the timeliness of lease payments and the performance of
other financial covenants under their leases. For additional information regarding our real estate business, our properties and
environmental matters, see “Item 1. Business — Company Operations”, “Item 2. Properties” and “Environmental Matters” below.

Our Properties

Net Lease. As of December 31, 2020, we leased 946 of our properties to tenants under triple-net leases.

Our net lease properties include 829 properties leased under 31 separate unitary or master triple-net leases and 117 properties
leased under single unit triple-net leases. These leases generally provide for an initial term of 15 or 20 years with options for
successive renewal terms of up to 20 years and periodic rent escalations. Several of our leases provide for additional rent based on the
aggregate volume of fuel sold. In addition, certain of our leases require the tenants to invest capital in our properties, substantially all
of which is related to the replacement of USTs that are owned by our tenants.
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Redevelopment. As of December 31, 2020, we were actively redeveloping six of our properties either as a new convenience
and gasoline use or for alternative single-tenant net lease retail uses.

Vacancies. As of December 31, 2020, seven of our properties were vacant. We expect that we will either sell or enter into new
leases on these properties over time.

Investment Strategy and Activity

As part of our overall growth strategy, we regularly review acquisition and financing opportunities to invest in additional
convenience stores, gasoline stations and other automotive-related and retail real estate. We primarily pursue sale-leaseback
transactions and other real estate acquisitions that result in us owning fee simple interests in our properties. Our investment strategy
seeks to generate current income and benefit from long-term appreciation in the underlying value of our real estate. To achieve that
goal, we seek to invest in high quality individual properties and real estate portfolios that are in strong primary markets that serve high
density population centers. A key element of our investment strategy is to invest in properties that will enhance our geographic and
tenant diversification.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in 34 properties for an aggregate purchase price of
$150.0 million. In February 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in ten car wash properties located in the Kansas City Metropolitan
Statistical Area (“MSA”) for an aggregate purchase price of $50.3 million and entered into a unitary lease at the closing of the
transactions. In August 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in seven car wash properties located in the San Antonio MSA for an
aggregate purchase price of $28.3 million and entered into a unitary lease at the closing of the transaction. In October 2020, we
acquired fee simple interests in six convenience store and gasoline station properties located throughout the state of Texas for an
aggregate purchase price of $28.7 million and entered into a unitary lease at the closing of the transaction. In addition, during the year
ended December 31, 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in 11 convenience store and other automotive-related properties in various
transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $42.7 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, we acquired fee simple interests in 27 properties for an aggregate purchase price of
$87.2 million. In June 2019, we acquired fee simple interests in six convenience store and gasoline station properties located in the
Los Angeles MSA for $24.7 million and entered into a unitary lease at the closing of the transaction. In November 2019, we acquired
fee simple interests in four car wash properties located in the Las Vegas MSA for $14.1 million and entered into a unitary lease at the
closing of the transaction. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2019, we acquired fee simple interests in 17 convenience
store and other automotive-related properties in various transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $48.3 million.

Redevelopment Strategy and Activity

We believe that certain of our properties are well-suited for either new convenience store use or for alternative single-tenant net
lease retail uses, such as automotive parts and service, quick service restaurants, specialty retail and bank branches. We believe that
the redeveloped properties can be leased or sold at higher values than their current use.

For the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rent commenced on six and four completed redevelopment projects,
respectively, that were placed back into service in our net lease portfolio. Since the inception of our redevelopment program in 2015,
we have completed 19 redevelopment projects.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we spent $0.3 million (net of write-offs) of construction-in-progress costs related to our

redevelopment activities and transferred $1.6 million of construction-in-progress to buildings and improvements on our consolidated
balance sheet. For the year ended December 31, 2019, we spent $0.4 million (net of write-offs) of construction-in-progress costs
related to our redevelopment activities and transferred $0.5 million of construction-in-progress to buildings and improvements on our
consolidated balance sheet.

As of December 31, 2020, we had six properties under active redevelopment and others in various stages of feasibility planning
for potential recapture from our net lease portfolio, including four properties for which we have signed new leases and which will be
transferred to redevelopment when the appropriate entitlements, permits and approvals have been secured.

Asset Impairment

We perform an impairment analysis for the carrying amounts of our properties in accordance with GAAP when indicators of
impairment exist. We reduced the carrying amounts to fair value, and recorded impairment charges aggregating $4.3 million and $4.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, where the carrying amounts of the properties exceed the
estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be received during the assumed holding period which includes the estimated sales
value expected to be received at disposition. The impairment charges were attributable to the effect of adding asset retirement costs to
certain properties due to changes in estimates associated with our environmental liabilities, which increased the carrying values of
these properties in excess of their fair values, reductions in estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be received during the
assumed holding period for certain of our properties, and reductions in estimated sales prices from third-party offers based on signed
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contracts, letters of intent or indicative bids for certain of our properties. The evaluation and estimates of anticipated cash flows used
to conduct our impairment analysis are highly subjective and actual results could vary significantly from our estimates. For a
discussion of the risks associated with asset impairments, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Our assets may be subject to impairment
charges.”

Supplemental Non-GAAP Measures

We manage our business to enhance the value of our real estate portfolio and, as a REIT, place particular emphasis on
minimizing risk, to the extent feasible, and generating cash sufficient to make required distributions to stockholders of at least 90% of
our ordinary taxable income each year. In addition to measurements defined by GAAP, we also focus on Funds From Operations
(“FFO”) and Adjusted Funds From Operations (“AFFO”) to measure our performance. FFO and AFFO are generally considered by
analysts and investors to be appropriate supplemental non-GAAP measures of the performance of REITs. FFO and AFFO are not in
accordance with, or a substitute for, measures prepared in accordance with GAAP. In addition, FFO and AFFO are not based on any
comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles. Neither FFO nor AFFO represent cash generated from operating activities
calculated in accordance with GAAP and therefore these measures should not be considered an alternative for GAAP net earnings or
as a measure of liquidity. These measures should only be used to evaluate our performance in conjunction with corresponding GAAP
measures.

FFO is defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) as GAAP net earnings before
depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, gains or losses on dispositions of real estate, impairment charges and the
cumulative effect of accounting changes. Our definition of AFFO is defined as FFO less (i) certain revenue recognition adjustments
(defined below), (ii) changes in environmental estimates, (iii) accretion expense, (iv) environmental litigation accruals, (v) insurance
reimbursements, (vi) legal settlements and judgments, (vii) acquisition costs expensed and (viii) other unusual items that are not
reflective of our core operating performance. Other REITs may use definitions of FFO and/or AFFO that are different from ours and,
accordingly, may not be comparable.

We believe that FFO and AFFO are helpful to analysts and investors in measuring our performance because both FFO and
AFFO exclude various items included in GAAP net earnings that do not relate to, or are not indicative of, our core operating
performance. Specifically, FFO excludes items such as depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, gains or losses on
dispositions of real estate, and impairment charges. However, GAAP net earnings and FFO typically include certain other items that
the we exclude from AFFO, including the impact of revenue recognition adjustments comprised of deferred rental revenue (straight-
line rental revenue), the net amortization of above-market and below-market leases, adjustments recorded for the recognition of rental
income from direct financing leases and the amortization of deferred lease incentives (collectively, “Revenue Recognition
Adjustments”) that do not impact our recurring cash flow and which are not indicative of our core operating performance. Deferred
rental revenue results primarily from fixed rental increases scheduled under certain leases with our tenants. In accordance with GAAP,
the aggregate minimum rent due over the current term of these leases is recognized on a straight-line basis rather than when payment
is contractually due. The present value of the difference between the fair market rent and the contractual rent for in-place leases at the
time properties are acquired is amortized into revenues from rental properties over the remaining lives of the in-place leases. Income
from direct financing leases is recognized over the lease terms using the effective interest method, which produces a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investments in the leased properties. The amortization of deferred lease incentives represents our funding
commitment in certain leases, which deferred expense is recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rental revenue. GAAP
net earnings and FFO also include non-cash and/or unusual items such as changes in environmental estimates, environmental accretion
expense, allowances for credit loss on notes and mortgages receivable and direct finance leases, environmental litigation accruals,
insurance reimbursements, legal settlements and judgments, property acquisition costs expensed and loss on extinguishment of debt,
that do not impact our recurring cash flow and which are not indicative of our core operating performance.

We pay particular attention to AFFO which we believe provides a more accurate depiction of our core operating performance
than either GAAP net earnings or FFO. By providing AFFO, we believe that we are presenting useful information that assists analysts
and investors to better assess our core operating performance. Further, we believe that AFFO is useful in comparing the sustainability
of our core operating performance with the sustainability of the core operating performance of other real estate companies.
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A reconciliation of net earnings to FFO and AFFO is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Net earnings $ 69,388 $ 49,723 $ 47,706
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 30,191 25,161 23,636
Gains on dispositions of real estate (4,548) (1,063) (3,948)
Impairments 4,258 4,012 6,170
Funds from operations 99,289 77,833 73,564
Revenue recognition adjustments 895 (960) (2,223)
Allowance for credit loss on notes and mortgages receivable and direct
financing leases 368 — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1,233 — —
Changes in environmental estimates (3,135) (5,386) (1,319)
Accretion expense 1,841 2,006 2,409
Environmental litigation accruals 85 5,896 45)
Insurance reimbursements (142) (4,866) (2,570)
Legal settlements and judgments (21,300) (2,707) (147)
Adjusted funds from operations $ 79,134 $ 71,816 $ 69,669
Basic per share amounts:

Earnings per share $ 1.62 $ 1.19 $ 1.17

Funds from operations per share 232 1.86 1.81

Adjusted funds from operations per share $ 1.85 $ 1.72 $ 1.71
Diluted per share amounts:

Earnings per share $ 1.62 $ 1.19 $ 1.17

Funds from operations per share 2.31 1.86 1.80

Adjusted funds from operations per share $ 1.84 $ 1.72 $ 1.71
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 42,040 41,072 40,171

Diluted 42,070 41,110 40,191

Results of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020, compared to year ended December 31, 2019

Revenues from rental properties increased by $6.9 million to $144.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as
compared to $137.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in revenues from rental properties was primarily due

to $6.1 million of revenue from the properties acquired in 2020. Rental income contractually due from our tenants included in
revenues from rental properties was $128.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $119.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019. Tenant reimbursements, which are included in revenues from rental properties, and which consist of real
estate taxes and other municipal charges paid by us which are reimbursable by our tenants pursuant to the terms of triple-net lease
agreements, were $17.3 million and $17.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Interest income on
notes and mortgages receivable was $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $2.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019.

In accordance with GAAP, we recognize revenues from rental properties in amounts which vary from the amount of rent
contractually due during the periods presented. As a result, revenues from rental properties include Revenue Recognition Adjustments
comprised of non-cash adjustments recorded for deferred rental revenue due to the recognition of rental income on a straight-line basis
over the current lease term, the net amortization of above-market and below-market leases, recognition of rental income under direct
financing leases using the effective interest rate method which produces a constant periodic rate of return on the net investments in the
leased properties and the amortization of deferred lease incentives. Revenues from rental properties include Revenue Recognition
Adjustments which decreased rental revenue by $0.9 million and increased rental revenue by $1.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Property costs, which are primarily comprised of rent expense, real estate and other state and local taxes, municipal charges,
professional fees, maintenance expense and reimbursable tenant expenses, were $23.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
as compared to $25.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease in property costs for the year ended December 31,
2020, was principally due to a decrease in rent expense, professional fees related to property redevelopments and reimbursable real
estate taxes partially offset by an increase in other professional fees.
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Impairment charges were $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $4.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019. Impairment charges are recorded when the carrying value of a property is reduced to fair value. Impairment
charges for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, were attributable to the effect of adding asset retirement costs to certain
properties due to changes in estimates associated with our environmental liabilities, which increased the carrying values of these
properties in excess of their fair values, reductions in estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be received during the assumed
holding period for certain of our properties, and reductions in estimated sales prices from third-party offers based on signed contracts,
letters of intent or indicative bids for certain of our properties.

Environmental expenses were $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $5.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019. The decrease in environmental expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020, was principally due to a
$5.8 million decrease in environmental litigation accruals and a $0.6 million decrease in environmental legal and professional fees,
partially offset by a $2.1 million change in net environmental remediation costs and estimates. Environmental expenses vary from
period to period and, accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on the magnitude or the direction of change in reported
environmental expenses for one period, as compared to prior periods.

General and administrative expense was $17.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $15.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2020, was
principally due to a $0.7 million increase in stock-based compensation, a $0.7 million increase in other employee-related expenses and
a $0.6 million increase in legal and other professional fees.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $30.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $25.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily due to depreciation and
amortization of properties acquired offset by a decrease in depreciation charges related to asset retirement costs, the effect of certain
assets becoming fully depreciated, lease terminations and dispositions of real estate.

Gains on dispositions of real estate were $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $1.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2019. The gains were the result of the sale of 11 and nine properties during the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

Other income was $21.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $7.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019. For the year ended December 31, 2020, other income was primarily attributable to $21.3 million received from
legal settlements and judgments and $0.1 million received from environmental insurance reimbursements, partially offset by a $0.4
million allowance for credit loss on notes and mortgages receivable and direct financings leases. Other income for the year ended
December 31, 2019, was primarily attributable to $4.9 million received from environmental insurance reimbursements and $2.7
million received from legal settlements and judgments.

Interest expense was $26.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $24.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The increase was due to higher average borrowings outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2020, as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2019.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, FFO was $99.3 million, as compared to $77.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2019. For the year ended December 31, 2020, AFFO was $79.1 million, as compared to $71.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019. FFO for the year ended December 31, 2020, was impacted by changes in net earnings, but excludes a $0.3 million
increase in impairment charges, a $5.0 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense and a $3.4 million increase in gains
on dispositions of real estate. The increase in AFFO for the year ended December 31, 2020, also excludes a $18.6 million increase in
legal settlements and judgments, a $2.1 million increase in environmental estimates and accretion expense, a $4.8 million decrease in
insurance reimbursements, a $5.8 million decrease in environmental litigation accruals, a $1.9 million decrease in Revenue
Recognition Adjustments, a $1.2 million increase in loss on extinguishment of debt and a $0.4 million allowance for credit loss on
notes and mortgages receivable and direct financing leases.

Basic and diluted earnings per share was $1.62 per share for the year ended December 31, 2020, as compared to $1.19 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2019. Basic and diluted FFO per share for the year ended December 31, 2020, was $2.31 per share as
compared to $1.86 per share, for the year ended December 31, 2019. Basic and diluted AFFO per share for the year ended
December 31, 2020, was $1.85 and $1.84 per share, respectively, as compared to $1.72 per share for the year ended December 31,
2019.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are the cash flows from our operations, funds available under our Revolving Facility (which is
scheduled to mature in March 2022), proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock through offerings from time to time under
our ATM Program, and available cash and cash equivalents. Our business operations and liquidity are dependent on our ability to
generate cash flow from our properties. We believe that our operating cash needs for the next twelve months can be met by cash flows
from operations, borrowings under our Revolving Facility, proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock under our ATM
Program and available cash and cash equivalents.
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Our cash flow activities for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Net cash flow provided by operating activities $ 82,827 § 76,774 $ 66,361
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (127,417) (82,553) (78,946)
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities $ 77,980 $ (19,299) § 40,514

Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities increased by $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, to $82.8 million, as
compared to $76.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. Net cash provided by operating activities represents cash received
primarily from rental and interest income less cash used for property costs, environmental expense, general and administrative
expense and interest expense. The change in net cash flow provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018, is primarily the result of changes in revenues and expenses as discussed in “Results of Operations” above and the
other changes in assets and liabilities on our consolidated statements of cash flows.

Investing Activities

Our investing activities are primarily real estate-related transactions. Because we generally lease our properties on a triple-net
basis, we have not historically incurred significant capital expenditures other than those related to investments in real estate and our
redevelopment activities. Net cash flow used in investing activities increased by $44.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
to a use of $127.4 million, as compared to a use of $82.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in net cash flow
from investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2020, was primarily due to an increase of $62.8 million of property
acquisitions a $2.4 million increase in issuance of notes receivable and a $1.9 million increase in deposits for property acquisitions,
partially offset by an increase of $18.6 million in collections of notes and mortgages receivable and an increase of $3.8 million in
proceeds from dispositions of real estate.

Financing Activities

Net cash flow provided by financing activities increased by $97.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, to $78.0
million, as compared to a use of $19.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in net cash flow from financing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2020, was primarily due to an increase in net borrowings of $54.0 million and an increase
in net proceeds from issuances of common stock of $49.0 million, partially offset by an increase in dividends paid of $5.7 million.

Credit Agreement

On June 2, 2015, we entered into a $225.0 million senior unsecured credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with a group of
banks led by Bank of America, N.A. The Credit Agreement consisted of a $175.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Facility”) and a $50.0 million unsecured term loan (the “Term Loan”).

On March 23, 2018, we entered in to an amended and restated credit agreement (as amended, the “Restated Credit Agreement”)
amending and restating our Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the Restated Credit Agreement, we (a) increased the borrowing capacity
under the Revolving Facility from $175.0 million to $250.0 million, (b) extended the maturity date of the Revolving Facility from
June 2018 to March 2022, (c) extended the maturity date of the Term Loan from June 2020 to March 2023 and (d) amended certain
financial covenants and provisions.

Subject to the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement and our continued compliance with its provisions, we have the option to
(a) extend the term of the Revolving Facility for one additional year to March 2023 and (b) request that the lenders approve an
increase of up to $300.0 million in the amount of the Revolving Facility and/or Term Loan to $600.0 million in the aggregate.

The Restated Credit Agreement incurs interest and fees at various rates based on our total indebtedness to total asset value ratio
at the end of each quarterly reporting period. The Revolving Facility permits borrowings at an interest rate equal to the sum of a base
rate plus a margin of 0.50% to 1.30% or a LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.50% to 2.30%. The annual commitment fee on the undrawn
funds under the Revolving Facility is 0.15% to 0.25%. The Term Loan, prior to its repayment pursuant to a subsequent amendment to
the Restated Credit Agreement, bore interest equal to the sum of a base rate plus a margin of 0.45% to 1.25% or a LIBOR rate plus a
margin of 1.45% to 2.25%.

On September 19, 2018, we entered into an amendment (the “First Amendment”) of our Restated Credit Agreement. The First
Amendment modifies the Restated Credit Agreement to, among other things: (i) reflect that we had previously entered into (a) an
amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement with The Prudential Insurance Company of America (“Prudential”) and
certain of its affiliates and (b) a note purchase and guarantee agreement with the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“MetLife”)
and certain of its affiliates; and (ii) permit borrowings under each of the Revolving Facility and the Term Loan at three different
interest rates, including a rate based on the LIBOR Daily Floating Rate (as defined in the First Amendment) plus the Applicable Rate
(as defined in the First Amendment) for such facility.
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On September 12, 2019, in connection with prepayment of the Term Loan, we entered into a consent and amendment (the
“Second Amendment”) of our Restated Credit Agreement. The Second Amendment modifies the Restated Credit Agreement to,
among other things, (a) increase our borrowing capacity under the Revolving Facility from $250.0 million to $300.0 million and (b)
decrease lender commitments under the Term Loan to $0.0 million.

On December 14, 2020, we used a portion of the net proceeds from the Series I Notes, Series J Notes and Series K Notes (each
as described below) to repay $75.0 million of borrowings outstanding under our Restated Credit Agreement.

Senior Unsecured Notes

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a fifth amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “Fifth
Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement”) with Prudential and certain of its affiliates amending and restating our existing fourth
amended and restated note purchase agreement. Pursuant to the Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement, we agreed that
our (a) 6.0% Series A Guaranteed Senior Notes due February 25, 2021, in the original aggregate principal amount of $100.0 million
(the “Series A Notes”), (b) 5.35% Series B Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 2, 2023, in the original aggregate principal amount of
$75.0 million (the “Series B Notes”), (c) 4.75% Series C Guaranteed Senior Notes due February 25, 2025, in the aggregate principal
amount of $50.0 million (the “Series C Notes™) and (d) 5.47% Series D Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 21, 2028, in the aggregate
principal amount of $50.0 million (the “Series D Notes”) and (e) 3.52% Series F Guaranteed Senior Notes due September 12, 2029, in
the aggregate principal amount of $50.0 million (the “Series F Notes”) that were outstanding under the existing fourth restated
prudential note purchase agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential
Agreement and we authorized and issued our 3.43% Series I Guaranteed Senior Notes due November 25, 2030, in the aggregate
principal amount of $100.0 million (the “Series I Notes” and, together with the Series A Notes, Series B Notes, Series C Notes, Series
D Notes and Series F Notes, the “Notes”) to Prudential. On December 4, 2020, we completed the early redemption of our 6.0% Series
A Notes due February 25, 2021, in the original aggregate principal amount of $100.0 million. As a result of the early redemption, we
recognized a $1.2 million loss on extinguishment of debt on our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2020. The Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the principal balance of the
Series I Notes, or any of our previously issued Series B Notes, Series C Notes, Series D Notes, or Series F Notes prior to their
respective maturities.

On June 21, 2018, we entered into a note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “MetLife Note Purchase Agreement”) with
MetLife and certain of its affiliates. Pursuant to the MetLife Note Purchase Agreement, we authorized and issued our 5.47% Series E
Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 21, 2028, in the aggregate principal amount of $50.0 million (the “Series E Notes”). The MetLife
Note Purchase Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the principal balance of the Series E Notes prior to their
maturity.

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a first amendment to note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “First Amended and
Restated AIG Agreement”) with American General Life Insurance Company amending and restating our existing note purchase and
guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the First Amended and Restated AIG Agreement, we agreed that our 3.52% Series G Guaranteed
Senior Notes due September 12, 2029, in the aggregate principal amount of $50.0 million (the “Series G Notes”) that were outstanding
under the existing note purchase and guarantee agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the First Amended and
Restated AIG Agreement and we authorized and issued our $50.0 million of 3.43% Series J Guaranteed Senior Notes due November
25,2030 (the “Series J Notes”) to AIG. The First Amended and Restated AIG Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in
the principal balance of the Series J Notes or any of our previously issued Series G Notes prior to their respective maturities.

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a first amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “First Amended
and Restated MassMutual Agreement”) amending and restating our existing note purchase and guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the
First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement, we agreed that our 3.52% Series H Guaranteed Senior Notes due September 12,
2029, in the aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million (the “Series H Notes”) that were outstanding under the existing note purchase
and guarantee agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement and
we authorized and issued our $25.0 million of 3.43% Series K Guaranteed Senior Notes due November 25, 2030 (the “Series K
Notes”) to MassMutual. The First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the
principal balance of the Series K or any of our previously issued Series H Notes prior to their respective maturities.

We used the net proceeds from the issuance of the Series I Notes, Series J Notes and Series K Notes to prepay in full our Series
A Notes due February 25, 2021, and repay $75.0 million of borrowings outstanding under our Restated Credit Agreement.

The Notes, the Series E Notes, the Series G Notes, the Series H Notes, the Series I Notes, the Series J Notes and, the Series K
Notes, respectively issued thereunder, are collectively referred to as the “senior unsecured notes.”
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Debt Maturities

The amounts outstanding under our Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes, exclusive of extension options,
are as follows (in thousands):

Maturity Interest December 31, December 31,
Date Rate 2020 2019

Revolving Facility March 2022 1.85% $ 25,000 $ 20,000
Series A Notes February 2021 6.00% — 100,000
Series B Notes June 2023 5.35% 75,000 75,000
Series C Notes February 2025 4.75% 50,000 50,000
Series D Notes June 2028 5.47% 50,000 50,000
Series E Notes June 2028 5.47% 50,000 50,000
Series F Notes September 2029 3.52% 50,000 50,000
Series G Notes September 2029 3.52% 50,000 50,000
Series H Notes September 2029 3.52% 25,000 25,000
Series I Notes November 2030 3.43% 100,000 —
Series J Notes November 2030 3.43% 50,000 —
Series K Notes November 2030 3.43% 25,000 —

Total debt 550,000 470,000
Unamortized debt issuance costs, net (a) (2,307) (2,949)

Total debt, net $ 547,693 $ 467,051

(a) Unamortized debt issuance costs, related to the Revolving Facility, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, of $1,135 and $2,014,
respectively, are included in prepaid expenses and other assets on our consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2020, we are in compliance with all of the material terms of the Restated Credit Agreement and our senior
unsecured notes.

ATM Program

In March 2018, we established an at-the-market equity offering program (the “ATM Program”), pursuant to which we are able
to issue and sell shares of our common stock with an aggregate sales price of up to $125.0 million through a consortium of banks
acting as agents. Sales of the shares of common stock may be made, as needed, from time to time in at-the-market offerings as defined
in Rule 415 of the Securities Act, including by means of ordinary brokers’ transactions on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise
at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to prevailing market prices or as otherwise agreed to with the applicable
agent.

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we issued 2.2 million and 0.4 million shares of common stock and
received net proceeds of $63.2 million and $14.2 million, respectively, under the ATM Program. Future sales, if any, will depend on a
variety of factors to be determined by us from time to time, including among others, market conditions, the trading price of our
common stock, determinations by us of the appropriate sources of funding for us and potential uses of funding available to us.

Property Acquisitions and Capital Expenditures

As part of our overall business strategy, we regularly review opportunities to acquire additional convenience stores, gasoline
stations and other automotive-related and retail real estate, and we expect to continue to pursue acquisitions that we believe will
benefit our financial performance.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we acquired fee simple interests in 34 properties for an aggregate purchase price of
$150.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2019, we acquired fee simple interests in 27 properties for an aggregate purchase
price of $87.2 million. We accounted for the acquisitions of fee simple interests as asset acquisitions. For additional information
regarding our property acquisitions, see Note 13 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

We also seek opportunities to recapture select properties from our net lease portfolio and redevelop such properties either for a
new convenience and gasoline use or for alternative single-tenant net lease retail uses. For the year ended December 31, 2020, we
spent $0.3 million (net of write-offs) of construction-in-progress costs related to our redevelopment activities. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, we spent $0.4 million (net of write-offs) of construction-in-progress costs related to our redevelopment activities.

Because we generally lease our properties on a triple-net basis, we have not historically incurred significant capital
expenditures other than those related to acquisitions. However, our tenants frequently make improvements to the properties leased
from us at their expense. As of December 31, 2020, we have a remaining commitment to fund up to $6.8 million in the aggregate in
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capital improvements in certain properties previously leased to Marketing and now subject to unitary triple-net leases with other
tenants.

Dividends

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws with the year beginning January 1, 2001. To qualify for
taxation as a REIT, we must, among other requirements such as those related to the composition of our assets and gross income,
distribute annually to our stockholders at least 90% of our taxable income, including taxable income that is accrued by us without a
corresponding receipt of cash. We cannot provide any assurance that our cash flows will permit us to continue paying cash dividends.

It is also possible that instead of distributing 100% of our taxable income on an annual basis, we may decide to retain a portion
of our taxable income and to pay taxes on such amounts as permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. Payment of dividends is subject
to market conditions, our financial condition, including but not limited to, our continued compliance with the provisions of the
Restated Credit Agreement, our senior unsecured notes and other factors, and therefore is not assured. In particular, the Restated
Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes prohibit the payment of dividends during certain events of default.

Regular quarterly dividends paid to our stockholders aggregated $62.6 million, $56.9 million and $50.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. There can be no assurance that we will continue to pay dividends at historical
rates.

Contractual Obligations

Our significant contractual obligations and commitments, excluding extension options and unamortized debt issuance costs, as
of December 31, 2020, were comprised of borrowings under the credit agreement, our senior unsecured notes, operating and finance
lease payments due to landlords, estimated environmental remediation expenditures and our funding commitments for capital
improvements at certain properties.

In addition, as a REIT, we are required to pay dividends equal to at least 90% of our taxable income in order to continue to
qualify as a REIT. Our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2020, exclusive of extension options and
unamortized debt issuance costs, are summarized below (in thousands):

Three More

Less One to to Than

Than Three Five Five

Total One Year Years Years Years
Operating and finance leases $ 15570 $ 4,646 $ 6,049 § 3,058 $ 1,817
Credit agreement 25,000 — 25,000 — —
Senior unsecured notes 525,000 — 75,000 50,000 400,000
Interest on debt (a) 159,245 22,724 42,842 34,476 59,203
Estimated environmental remediation expenditures (b) 48,084 6,346 18,601 8,757 14,380
Capital improvements (c) 6,829 94 — 2,335 4,400
Total $ 779,728 $ 33,810 $ 167492 §$§ 98,626 $ 479,800

(a) For our Restated Credit Agreement, which bears interest at variable rates, future interest expense was calculated using the cost of
borrowing as of December 31, 2020.

(b) Estimated environmental remediation expenditures have been adjusted for inflation and discounted to present value.

(c) The actual timing of funding of capital improvements is dependent on the timing of such capital improvement projects and the
terms of our leases. Our commitments provide us with the option to either reimburse our tenants, or to offset rent when these
capital expenditures are made.

Generally, leases with our tenants are triple-net leases with the tenant responsible for the operations conducted at our properties
and for the payment of taxes, maintenance, repair, insurance, environmental remediation and other operating expenses.

We have no significant contractual obligations that are not fully recorded on our consolidated balance sheets or fully disclosed
in the notes to our consolidated financial statements. We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of
Regulation S-K promulgated by the Exchange Act.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP
requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements.
Although we have made estimates, judgments and assumptions regarding future uncertainties relating to the information included in
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our consolidated financial statements, giving due consideration to the accounting policies selected and materiality, actual results could
differ from these estimates, judgments and assumptions and such differences could be material.

Estimates, judgments and assumptions underlying the accompanying consolidated financial statements include, but are not
limited to, real estate, receivables, deferred rent receivable, direct financing leases, depreciation and amortization, impairment of long-
lived assets, environmental remediation obligations, litigation, accrued liabilities, income taxes and the allocation of the purchase price
of properties acquired to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The information included in our consolidated financial statements
that is based on estimates, judgments and assumptions is subject to significant change and is adjusted as circumstances change and as
the uncertainties become more clearly defined.

Our accounting policies are described in Note 1 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”. The SEC’s
Financial Reporting Release (“FRR”) No. 60, Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies (“FRR
60”), suggests that companies provide additional disclosure on those accounting policies considered most critical. FRR 60 considers
an accounting policy to be critical if it is important to our financial condition and results of operations and requires significant
judgment and estimates on the part of management in its application. We believe that our most critical accounting policies relate to
revenue recognition and deferred rent receivable, direct financing leases, impairment of long-lived assets, environmental remediation
obligations, litigation, income taxes, and the allocation of the purchase price of properties acquired to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as described below.

Revenue Recognition

We earn revenue primarily from operating leases with our tenants. We recognize income under leases with our tenants, on the
straight-line method, which effectively recognizes contractual lease payments evenly over the current term of the leases. The present
value of the difference between the fair market rent and the contractual rent for in-place leases at the time properties are acquired is
amortized into revenue from rental properties over the remaining lives of the in-place leases. A critical assumption in applying the
straight-line accounting method is that the tenant will make all contractual lease payments during the current lease term and that the
net deferred rent receivable balance will be collected when the payment is due, in accordance with the annual rent escalations
provided for in the leases. We may be required to reserve, or provide reserves for a portion of, the recorded deferred rent receivable if
it becomes apparent that the tenant may not make all of its contractual lease payments when due during the current term of the lease.

Direct Financing Leases

Income under direct financing leases is included in revenues from rental properties and is recognized over the lease terms using
the effective interest rate method which produces a constant periodic rate of return on the net investments in the leased properties. The
investments in direct financing leases represents the investments in leased assets accounted for as direct financing leases. The
investments in direct financing leases are increased for interest income earned and amortized over the life of the leases and reduced by
the receipt of lease payments.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Real estate assets represent “long-lived” assets for accounting purposes. We review the recorded value of long-lived assets for
impairment in value whenever any events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. We may become aware of indicators of potentially impaired assets upon tenant or landlord lease renewals, upon receipt
of notices of potential governmental takings and zoning issues, or upon other events that occur in the normal course of business that
would cause us to review the operating results of the property. We believe our real estate assets are not carried at amounts in excess of
their estimated net realizable fair value amounts.

Environmental Remediation Obligations

We provide for the estimated fair value of future environmental remediation obligations when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. See “Environmental Matters” below for additional information.
Environmental liabilities net of related recoveries are measured based on their expected future cash flows which have been adjusted
for inflation and discounted to present value. Since environmental exposures are difficult to assess and estimate and knowledge about
these liabilities is not known upon the occurrence of a single event, but rather is gained over a continuum of events, we believe that it
is appropriate that our accrual estimates are adjusted as the remediation treatment progresses, as circumstances change and as
environmental contingencies become more clearly defined and reasonably estimable. A critical assumption in accruing for these
liabilities is that the state environmental laws and regulations will be administered and enforced in the future in a manner that is
consistent with past practices. Environmental liabilities are estimated net of recoveries of environmental costs from state UST
remediation funds, with respect to past and future spending based on estimated recovery rates developed from our experience with the
funds when such recoveries are considered probable. A critical assumption in accruing for these recoveries is that the state UST fund
programs will be administered and funded in the future in a manner that is consistent with past practices and that future environmental
spending will be eligible for reimbursement at historical rates under these programs. We accrue environmental liabilities based on our
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share of responsibility as defined in our lease contracts with our tenants and under various other agreements with others or if
circumstances indicate that our counterparty may not have the financial resources to pay its share of the costs. It is possible that our
assumptions regarding the ultimate allocation method and share of responsibility that we used to allocate environmental liabilities may
change, which may result in material adjustments to the amounts recorded for environmental litigation accruals and environmental
remediation liabilities. We may ultimately be responsible to pay for environmental liabilities as the property owner if our tenants or
other counterparties fail to pay them. In certain environmental matters the effect on future financial results is not subject to reasonable
estimation because considerable uncertainty exists both in terms of the probability of loss and the estimate of such loss. The ultimate
liabilities resulting from such lawsuits and claims, if any, may be material to our results of operations in the period in which they are
recognized.

Litigation

Legal fees related to litigation are expensed as legal services are performed. We provide for litigation accruals, including certain
litigation related to environmental matters (see “Environmental Litigation” below for additional information), when it is probable that
a liability has been incurred and a reasonable estimate of the liability can be made. If the estimate of the liability can only be identified
as a range, and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, the minimum of the range is accrued for the
liability.

Income Taxes

Our financial results generally do not reflect provisions for current or deferred federal income taxes because we elected to be
treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws effective January 1, 2001. Our intention is to operate in a manner that will allow
us to continue to be treated as a REIT and, as a result, we do not expect to pay substantial corporate-level federal income taxes. Many
of the REIT requirements, however, are highly technical and complex. If we were to fail to meet the requirements, we may be subject
to federal income tax, excise taxes, penalties and interest or we may have to pay a deficiency dividend to eliminate any earnings and
profits that were not distributed. Certain states do not follow the federal REIT rules and we have included provisions for these taxes in
property costs.

Allocation of the Purchase Price of Properties Acquired

Upon acquisition of real estate and leasehold interests, we estimate the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting of land,
buildings and improvements) “as if vacant” and identified intangible assets and liabilities (consisting of leasehold interests, above-
market and below-market leases, in-place leases and tenant relationships) and assumed debt. Based on these estimates, we allocate the
purchase price to the applicable assets and liabilities. Assumptions used are property and geographic specific and may include, among
other things, capitalization rates, market rental rates and EBITDA to rent coverage ratios.

Environmental Matters
General

We are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, including matters relating to the protection of the
environment such as the remediation of known contamination and the retirement and decommissioning or removal of long-lived assets
including buildings containing hazardous materials, USTs and other equipment. Environmental costs are principally attributable to
remediation costs which are incurred for, among other things, removing USTs, excavation of contaminated soil and water, installing,
operating, maintaining and decommissioning remediation systems, monitoring contamination and governmental agency compliance
reporting required in connection with contaminated properties.

We enter into leases and various other agreements which contractually allocate responsibility between the parties for known and
unknown environmental liabilities at or relating to the subject properties. We are contingently liable for these environmental
obligations in the event that our tenant does not satisfy them, and we are required to accrue for environmental liabilities that we
believe are allocable to others under our leases if we determine that it is probable that our tenant will not meet its environmental
obligations. It is possible that our assumptions regarding the ultimate allocation method and share of responsibility that we used to
allocate environmental liabilities may change, which may result in material adjustments to the amounts recorded for environmental
litigation accruals and environmental remediation liabilities. We assess whether to accrue for environmental liabilities based upon
relevant factors including our tenants’ histories of paying for such obligations, our assessment of their financial capability, and their
intent to pay for such obligations. However, there can be no assurance that our assessments are correct or that our tenants who have
paid their obligations in the past will continue to do so. We may ultimately be responsible to pay for environmental liabilities as the
property owner if our tenant fails to pay them.

The estimated future costs for known environmental remediation requirements are accrued when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The accrued liability is the aggregate of our estimate of the fair
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value of cost for each component of the liability, net of estimated recoveries from state UST remediation funds considering estimated
recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds.

For substantially all of our triple-net leases, our tenants are contractually responsible for compliance with environmental laws
and regulations, removal of USTs at the end of their lease term (the cost of which in certain cases is partially borne by us) and
remediation of any environmental contamination that arises during the term of their tenancy. Under the terms of our leases covering
properties previously leased to Marketing (substantially all of which commenced in 2012), we have agreed to be responsible for
environmental contamination at the premises that was known at the time the lease commenced, and for environmental contamination
which existed prior to commencement of the lease and is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation) during the
first 10 years of the lease term (or a shorter period for a minority of such leases). After expiration of such 10-year (or, in certain cases,
shorter) period, responsibility for all newly discovered contamination, even if it relates to periods prior to commencement of the lease,
is contractually allocated to our tenant. Our tenants at properties previously leased to Marketing are in all cases responsible for the cost
of any remediation of contamination that results from their use and occupancy of our properties. Under substantially all of our other
triple-net leases, responsibility for remediation of all environmental contamination discovered during the term of the lease (including
known and unknown contamination that existed prior to commencement of the lease) is the responsibility of our tenant.

We anticipate that a majority of the USTs at properties previously leased to Marketing will be replaced over the next several
years because these USTs are either at or near the end of their useful lives. For long-term, triple-net leases covering sites previously
leased to Marketing, our tenants are responsible for the cost of removal and replacement of USTs and for remediation of
contamination found during such UST removal and replacement, unless such contamination was found during the first 10 years of the
lease term and also existed prior to commencement of the lease. In those cases, we are responsible for costs associated with the
remediation of such preexisting contamination. We have also agreed to be responsible for environmental contamination that existed
prior to the sale of certain properties assuming the contamination is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation)
during the first five years after the sale of the properties.

In the course of certain UST removals and replacements at properties previously leased to Marketing where we retained
continuing responsibility for preexisting environmental obligations, previously unknown environmental contamination was and
continues to be discovered. As a result, we have developed an estimate of fair value for the prospective future environmental liability
resulting from preexisting unknown environmental contamination and have accrued for these estimated costs. These estimates are
based primarily upon quantifiable trends which we believe allow us to make reasonable estimates of fair value for the future costs of
environmental remediation resulting from the removal and replacement of USTs. Our accrual of the additional liability represents our
estimate of the fair value of cost for each component of the liability, net of estimated recoveries from state UST remediation funds
considering estimated recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds. In arriving at our accrual, we analyzed the ages
of USTs at properties where we would be responsible for preexisting contamination found within 10 years after commencement of a
lease (for properties subject to long-term triple-net leases) or five years from a sale (for divested properties), and projected a cost to
closure for preexisting unknown environmental contamination.

We measure our environmental remediation liabilities at fair value based on expected future net cash flows, adjusted for
inflation (using a range of 2.0% to 2.75%), and then discount them to present value (using a range of 4.0% to 7.0%). We adjust our
environmental remediation liabilities quarterly to reflect changes in projected expenditures, changes in present value due to the
passage of time and reductions in estimated liabilities as a result of actual expenditures incurred during each quarter. As of
December 31, 2020, we had accrued a total of $48.1 million for our prospective environmental remediation obligations. This accrual
consisted of (a) $11.7 million, which was our estimate of reasonably estimable environmental remediation liability, including
obligations to remove USTs for which we are responsible, net of estimated recoveries and (b) $36.4 million for future environmental
liabilities related to preexisting unknown contamination. As of December 31, 2019, we had accrued a total of $50.7 million for our
prospective environmental remediation obligations. This accrual consisted of (a) $12.4 million, which was our estimate of reasonably
estimable environmental remediation liability, including obligations to remove USTs for which we are responsible, net of estimated
recoveries and (b) $38.3 million for future environmental liabilities related to preexisting unknown contamination.

Environmental liabilities are accreted for the change in present value due to the passage of time and, accordingly, $1.8 million,
$2.0 million and $2.4 million of net accretion expense was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which is included in environmental expenses. In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, we
recorded credits to environmental expenses aggregating $3.1 million, $5.4 million and $1.3 million, respectively, where decreases in
estimated remediation costs exceeded the depreciated carrying value of previously capitalized asset retirement costs. Environmental
expenses also include project management fees, legal fees and environmental litigation accruals.

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we increased the carrying values of certain of our properties by $2.6
million and $1.9 million, respectively, due to changes in estimated environmental remediation costs. The recognition and subsequent
changes in estimates in environmental liabilities and the increase or decrease in carrying values of the properties are non-cash
transactions which do not appear on our consolidated statements of cash flows.
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Capitalized asset retirement costs are being depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the UST, a 10-year period if the
increase in carrying value is related to environmental remediation obligations or such shorter period if circumstances warrant, such as
the remaining lease term for properties we lease from others. Depreciation and amortization expense related to capitalized asset
retirement costs in our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, were $4.0
million, $4.1 million and $4.3 million, respectively. Capitalized asset retirement costs were $39.6 million (consisting of $23.6 million
of known environmental liabilities and $16.0 million of reserves for future environmental liabilities) as of December 31, 2020, and
$39.7 million (consisting of $22.2 million of known environmental liabilities and $17.5 million of reserves for future environmental
liabilities) as of December 31, 2019. We recorded impairment charges aggregating $3.5 million and $3.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for capitalized asset retirement costs.

Environmental exposures are difficult to assess and estimate for numerous reasons, including the amount of data available upon
initial assessment of contamination, alternative treatment methods that may be applied, location of the property which subjects it to
differing local laws and regulations and their interpretations, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and
equipment, the availability of state UST remediation funds and the possibility of existing legal claims giving rise to allocation of
responsibilities to others, as well as the time it takes to remediate contamination and receive regulatory approval. In developing our
liability for estimated environmental remediation obligations on a property by property basis, we consider, among other things, laws
and regulations, assessments of contamination and surrounding geology, quality of information available, currently available
technologies for treatment, alternative methods of remediation and prior experience. Environmental accruals are based on estimates
derived upon facts known to us at this time, which are subject to significant change as circumstances change, and as environmental
contingencies become more clearly defined and reasonably estimable.

Any changes to our estimates or our assumptions that form the basis of our estimates may result in our providing an accrual, or
adjustments to the amounts recorded, for environmental remediation liabilities.

In July 2012, we purchased a 10-year pollution legal liability insurance policy covering substantially all of our properties at that
time for preexisting unknown environmental liabilities and new environmental events. The policy has a $50.0 million aggregate limit
and is subject to various self-insured retentions and other conditions and limitations. Our intention in purchasing this policy was to
obtain protection predominantly for significant events. In addition to the environmental insurance policy purchased by the Company,
we also took assignment of certain environmental insurance policies, and rights to reimbursement for claims made thereunder, from
Marketing, by order of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court during Marketing’s bankruptcy proceedings. Under these assigned polices, we have
received and expect to continue to receive reimbursement of certain remediation expenses for covered claims.

In light of the uncertainties associated with environmental expenditure contingencies, we are unable to estimate ranges in excess
of the amount accrued with any certainty; however, we believe that it is possible that the fair value of future actual net expenditures
could be substantially higher than amounts currently recorded by us. Adjustments to accrued liabilities for environmental remediation
obligations will be reflected in our consolidated financial statements as they become probable and a reasonable estimate of fair value
can be made.

Environmental Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of our business. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, we had accrued $4.3 million and $17.8 million, respectively, for certain of these matters which we believe were
appropriate based on information then currently available. It is possible that our assumptions regarding the ultimate allocation method
and share of responsibility that we used to allocate environmental liabilities may change, which may result in our providing an accrual,
or adjustments to the amounts recorded, for environmental litigation accruals. Matters related to our former Newark, New Jersey
Terminal and the Lower Passaic River, our MTBE litigations in the states of Pennsylvania and Maryland, and our lawsuit with the
State of New York pertaining to a property formerly owned by us in Uniondale, New York, in particular, could cause a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. For
additional information with respect to these and other pending environmental lawsuits and claims, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings”
and Note 3 in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk, primarily as a result of our $300.0 million senior unsecured credit agreement entered into
on March 23, 2018, and amended on September 19, 2018 and September 12, 2019 (as amended, the “Restated Credit Agreement”),
with a group of commercial banks led by Bank of America, N.A. The Restated Credit Agreement currently consists of a $300.0
million unsecured revolving facility (the “Revolving Facility”), which is scheduled to mature in March 2022. Subject to the terms of
the Restated Credit Agreement and our continued compliance with its provisions, we have the option to (a) extend the term of the
Revolving Facility for one additional year to March 2023 and (b) request that the lenders approve an increase of up to $300.0 million
in the amount of the Revolving Facility to $600.0 million in the aggregate. The Restated Credit Agreement incurs interest and fees at
various rates based on our total indebtedness to total asset value ratio at the end of each quarterly reporting period. The Revolving
Facility permits borrowings at an interest rate equal to the sum of a base rate plus a margin of 0.50% to 1.30% or a LIBOR rate plus a
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margin of 1.50% to 2.30%. The annual commitment fee on the undrawn funds under the Revolving Facility is 0.15% to 0.25%. We
use borrowings under the Restated Credit Agreement to finance acquisitions and for general corporate purposes. Borrowings
outstanding at variable interest rates under the Restated Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2020, were $25.0 million.

Based on our outstanding borrowings under the Restated Credit Agreement of $25.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2020, an increase in market interest rates of 1.0% for 2021 would decrease our 2021 net income and cash flows by approximately $0.3
million. This amount was determined by calculating the effect of a hypothetical interest rate change on our borrowings floating at
market rates, and assumes that the $25.0 million outstanding borrowings under the Restated Credit Agreement is indicative of our
future average floating interest rate borrowings for 2021 before considering additional borrowings required for future acquisitions or
repayment of outstanding borrowings from proceeds of future equity offerings. The calculation also assumes that there are no other
changes in our financial structure or the terms of our borrowings. Our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates will increase or
decrease in the future with increases or decreases in the outstanding amount under our Restated Credit Agreement and with increases
or decreases in amounts outstanding under borrowing agreements entered into with interest rates floating at market rates.

In order to minimize our exposure to credit risk associated with financial instruments, we place our temporary cash investments,
if any, with high credit quality institutions. Temporary cash investments, if any, are currently held in an overnight bank time deposit
with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and these balances, at times, may exceed federally insurable limits.

As discussed elsewhere in this report, the COVID-19 pandemic may negatively impact our business and results of operations.
As we cannot predict the duration or scope of COVID-19 there is potential for future negative financial impactsto our
results that could be material. Our business and results of operations will be, and our financial condition may be, impacted by COVID-
19 pandemic and such impact could be materially adverse. See “Part 1. Item. 1A. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K for additional information.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

GETTY REALTY CORP. INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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GETTY REALTY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS:
Real Estate:
Land $ 707,613  $ 669,351
Buildings and improvements 537,272 442,220
Construction in progress 734 2,080
1,245,619 1,113,651
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (186,964) (165,892)
Real estate held for use, net 1,058,655 947,759
Real estate held for sale, net 872 —
Real estate, net 1,059,527 947,759
Investment in direct financing leases, net 77,238 82,366
Notes and mortgages receivable 11,280 30,855
Cash and cash equivalents 55,075 21,781
Restricted cash 1,979 1,883
Deferred rent receivable 44,155 41,252
Accounts receivable 3,811 3,063
Right-of-use assets - operating 24,319 21,191
Right-of-use assets - finance 763 987
Prepaid expenses and other assets 71,365 60,640
Total assets $ 1,349,512 $ 1,211,777
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Borrowings under credit agreement $ 25,000 $ 20,000
Senior unsecured notes, net 523,828 449,065
Environmental remediation obligations 48,084 50,723
Dividends payable 17,332 15,557
Lease liability - operating 25,045 21,844
Lease liability - finance 3,541 4,191
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 47,081 60,958
Total liabilities 689,911 622,338
Commitments and contingencies — —
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000,000 authorized; unissued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 43,605,759 and
41,367,846 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 436 414
Additional paid-in capital 722,608 656,127
Dividends paid in excess of earnings (63,443) (67,102)
Total stockholders’ equity 659,601 589,439
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,349,512  §$ 1,211,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GETTY REALTY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Revenues:

Revenues from rental properties $ 144,601 $ 137,736  $ 133,019

Interest on notes and mortgages receivable 2,745 2,919 3,087

Total revenues 147,346 140,655 136,106

Operating expenses:

Property costs 23,520 24,978 23,645

Impairments 4,258 4,012 6,170

Environmental 1,054 5,428 4,151

General and administrative 17,294 15,377 15,131

Depreciation and amortization 30,191 25,161 23,636

Total operating expenses 76,317 74,956 72,733

Gains on dispositions of real estate 4,548 1,063 3,948
Operating income 75,577 66,762 67,321

Other income, net 21,129 7,593 2,730

Interest expense (26,085) (24,632) (22,345)

Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,233) — —
Net earnings $ 69,388 $ 49,723  § 47,706
Basic earnings per common share:

Net Earnings $ 1.62 $ 1.19 § 1.17
Diluted earnings per common share:

Net Earnings $ 1.62 $ 1.19 § 1.17
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 42,040 41,072 40,171

Diluted 42,070 41,110 40,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GETTY REALTY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flow provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Impairment charges
Gains on dispositions of real estate
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Deferred rent receivable
Allowance for credit loss on notes and mortgages receivable and direct financing leases
Amortization of above-market and below-market leases
Amortization of investment in direct financing leases
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Accretion expense
Stock-based compensation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Environmental remediation obligations
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash flow provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property acquisitions
Capital expenditures
Addition to construction in progress
Proceeds from dispositions of real estate
Deposits for property acquisitions
Issuance of notes and mortgages receivable
Collection of notes and mortgages receivable
Net cash flow used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under credit agreements
Repayments under credit agreements
Proceeds from senior unsecured notes
Repayments under senior unsecured notes
Payment for extinguishment of debt
Payments of finance lease liability
Payments of cash dividends
Payments of debt issuance costs
Security deposits refunded
Payments in settlement of restricted stock units
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net - ATM
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities
Change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest

Income taxes

Environmental remediation obligations

Non-cash transactions

Dividends declared but not yet paid

Issuance of notes and mortgages receivable related to property
dispositions

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

$ 69,388 $ 49,723 $ 47,706

30,191 25,161 23,636

4,258 4,012 6,170
(4,548) (1,063) (3,948)

1,233 — —
(2,903) (3,530) (4,112)

368 — —
(314) (623) (808)

4,210 3,526 3,015

1,053 971 871

1,841 2,006 2,409

3,130 2,468 1,777
(1,048) (546) (344)
(1,253) (503) (708)
(9,490) (12,931) (11,210)

(13,289) 8,103 1,907

82,827 76,774 66,361
(149,955) (87,157) (77,972)
(282) (14) (3,794)
(275) (365) (2,657)

5,433 1,558 3,303
(2,368) (510) (430)
(2,932) (464) (530)

22,962 4,399 3,134
(127,417) (82,553) (78,946)

140,000 75,000 95,000
(135,000) (175,000) (130,000)

175,000 125,000 100,000

(100,000) — —

(1,233) — —
(650) (542) (468)
(62,626) (56,889) (50,503)
(410) (556) (3,393)
31) (347) (260)

(257) (115) —

63,187 14,150 30,138

77,980 (19,299) 40,514

33,390 (25,078) 27,929

23,664 48,742 20,813

$ 57,054 $ 23,664 $ 48,742

Year ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

$ 25,651 $ 23,030 $ 20,790

350 304 244

6,355 7,544 9,891

17,332 15,557 14,495

$ 792 $ 1,206 $ 3,743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GETTY REALTY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Getty Realty Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). We do not distinguish our principal business or our operations on a geographical basis for
purposes of measuring performance. We manage and evaluate our operations as a single segment. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP, which requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses during the period reported. Estimates,
judgments and assumptions underlying the accompanying consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, real estate,
receivables, deferred rent receivable, direct financing leases, depreciation and amortization, impairment of long-lived assets,
environmental remediation costs, environmental remediation obligations, litigation, accrued liabilities, income taxes and the allocation
of the purchase price of properties acquired to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Application of these estimates and
assumptions requires exercise of judgment as to future uncertainties and, as a result, actual results could differ materially from these
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact
on previously reported net earnings.

Real Estate

Real estate assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. For acquisitions of real estate we estimate
the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting of land, buildings and improvements) “as if vacant” and identified intangible
assets and liabilities (consisting of leasehold interests, above-market and below-market leases, in-place leases and tenant relationships)
and assumed debt. Based on these estimates, we allocate the estimated fair value to the applicable assets and liabilities. Fair value is
determined based on an exit price approach, which contemplates the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Assumptions used are property and
geographic specific and may include, among other things, capitalization rates, market rental rates and EBITDA to rent coverage ratios.

We expense transaction costs associated with business combinations in the period incurred. Acquisitions of real estate which do
not meet the definition of a business are accounted for as asset acquisitions. The accounting model for asset acquisitions is similar to
the accounting model for business combinations except that the acquisition costs are capitalized and allocated to the individual assets
acquired and liabilities assumed on a relative fair value basis. For additional information regarding property acquisitions, see Note 13
— Property Acquisitions.

We capitalize direct costs, including costs such as construction costs and professional services, and indirect costs associated
with the development and construction of real estate assets while substantive activities are ongoing to prepare the assets for their
intended use. The capitalization period begins when development activities are underway and ends when it is determined that the asset
is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

We evaluate the held for sale classification of our real estate as of the end of each quarter. Assets that are classified as held for
sale are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

When real estate assets are sold or retired, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization is eliminated from the
respective accounts and any gain or loss is credited or charged to income. We evaluate real estate sale transactions where we provide
seller financing to determine sale and gain recognition in accordance with GAAP. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to income when incurred.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of real estate is computed on the straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
generally range from 16 to 25 years for buildings and improvements, or the term of the lease if shorter. Asset retirement costs are
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depreciated over the shorter of the remaining useful lives of USTs or 10 years for asset retirement costs related to environmental
remediation obligations, which costs are attributable to the group of assets identified at a property. Leasehold interests and in-place
leases are amortized over the remaining term of the underlying lease.

Direct Financing Leases

Income under direct financing leases is included in revenues from rental properties and is recognized over the lease terms using
the effective interest rate method which produces a constant periodic rate of return on the net investments in the leased properties. The
investments in direct financing leases are increased for interest income earned and amortized over the life of the leases and reduced by
the receipt of lease payments. We consider direct financing leases to be past-due or delinquent when a contractually required payment
is not remitted in accordance with the provisions of the underlying agreement.

On June 16, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments —
Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurements of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”). The accounting standard
became effective for us and was adopted on January 1, 2020. Upon adoption, we had five unitary leases subject to this standard
classified as a direct financing leases with a net investment balance aggregating $82,366,000 prior to the credit loss adjustment. In
these direct financing leases, the payment obligations of the lessees are collateralized by real estate properties. Historically, we have
had no collection issues related to these direct financing leases; therefore, we assessed the probability of default on these leases based
on the lessee’s financial condition, business prospects, remaining term of the lease, expected value of the underlying collateral upon its
repossession, and our historical loss experience related to other leases in which we are the lessor. Based on the aforementioned
considerations, we estimated a credit loss reserve related to these direct financing leases totaling $578,000, which was recognized as a
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings and as a reduction of the investment in direct financing leases balance on our consolidated
balance sheets on January 1, 2020. Periods prior to the adoption date that are presented for comparative purposes were not adjusted.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, we recorded an additional allowance for credit losses of $340,000 on our net investments
in direct financing leases due to changes in expected economic conditions, which was included within other income in our
consolidated statements of operations.

We review our direct financing leases each reporting period to determine whether there were any indicators that the value of our
net investments in direct financing leases may be impaired and adjust the allowance for any estimated changes in the credit loss with
the resulting change recorded through our consolidated statement of operations. When determining a possible impairment, we take
into consideration the collectability of direct financing lease receivables for which a reserve would be required. In addition, we

determine whether there has been a permanent decline in the current estimate of the residual value of the property.

When we enter into a contract to sell properties that are recorded as direct financing leases, we evaluate whether we believe that
it is probable that the disposition will occur. If we determine that the disposition is probable and therefore the property’s holding
period is reduced, we record an allowance for credit losses to reflect the change in the estimate of the undiscounted future rents.
Accordingly, the net investment balance is written down to fair value.

Notes and Mortgages Receivable

Notes and mortgages receivable consists of loans originated by us in conjunction with property dispositions and funding
provided to tenants in conjunction with property acquisitions and capital improvements. Notes and mortgages receivable are recorded
at stated principal amounts. In conjunction with our adoption of ASU 2016-13 on January 1, 2020, we estimate our credit loss reserve
for our notes and mortgages receivable using the weighted average remaining maturity (“WARM?”) method, which has been identified
as an acceptable loss-rate method for estimating credit loss reserves in the FASB Staff Q&A Topic 326, No. 1. The WARM method
requires us to reference historic loan loss data across a comparable data set and apply such loss rate to our notes and mortgages
portfolio over its expected remaining term, taking into consideration expected economic conditions over the relevant timeframe. We
applied the WARM method for our notes and mortgages portfolio, which share similar risk characteristics. Application of the WARM
method to estimate a credit loss reserve requires significant judgment, including (i) the historical loan loss reference data, (ii) the
expected timing and amount of loan repayments, and (iii) the current credit quality of our portfolio and our expectations of
performance and market conditions over the relevant time period. To estimate the historic loan losses relevant to our portfolio, we
used our historical loan performance since the launch of our loan origination business in 2013. Upon adoption of ASU 2016-13 on
January 1, 2020, we recorded a credit loss reserve of $309,000, which was recognized as a cumulative adjustment to retained earnings
and as a reduction of the aggregate outstanding principal balance of $30,855,000 on the notes and mortgages receivable balance on our
consolidated balance sheets on January 1, 2020. Periods prior to the adoption date that are presented for comparative purposes were
not adjusted. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2020, we recorded an additional allowance for credit losses of $28,000
on these notes and mortgages receivable due to changes in expected economic conditions, which was included within other income in
our consolidated statements of operations.

From time to time, we may originate construction loans for the construction of income-producing properties. During the year
ended December 31, 2020, we funded a construction loan in the amount of $2.9 million, which was repaid as of December 31, 2020,
and we exercised our option to purchase the property. At December 31, 2020, there were no outstanding balances for construction
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loans. Our construction loans generally provide for funding only during the construction phase, which is typically up to nine months,
although our policy is to consider construction periods as long as 24 months. Funds are disbursed based on inspections in accordance
with a schedule reflecting the completion of portions of the project. We also review and inspect each property before disbursement of
funds during the term of the construction loan. At the end of the construction phase, the construction loan will be repaid with the
proceeds from the sale of the property. We have the option to purchase the property at the end of the construction period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Our
cash and cash equivalents are held in the custody of financial institutions, and these balances, at times, may exceed federally insurable
limits.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash that is contractually restricted or held in escrow pursuant to various agreements with
counterparties. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, restricted cash of $1,979,000 and $1,883,000, respectively, consisted of security
deposits received from our tenants.

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Rent Receivable

On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), (“Topic 606”) using the
modified retrospective method applying it to any open contracts as of January 1, 2018. The new guidance provides a unified model to
determine how revenue is recognized. To determine the proper amount of revenue to be recognized, we perform the following steps:
(i) identify the contract with the customer, (ii) identify the performance obligations within the contract, (iii) determine the transaction
price, (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied. Our primary source of revenue consists of revenue from rental properties and tenant reimbursements that is
derived from leasing arrangements, which is specifically excluded from the standard, and thus had no material impact on our
consolidated financial statements or notes to our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Lease payments from operating leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases. The cumulative
difference between lease revenue recognized under this method and the contractual lease payment terms is recorded as deferred rent
receivable on our consolidated balance sheets. We review our accounts receivable, including its deferred rent receivable, related to
base rents, straight-line rents, tenant reimbursements and other revenues for collectability. Our evaluation of collectability primarily
consists of reviewing past due account balances and considers such factors as the credit quality of our tenant, historical trends of the
tenant, changes in tenant payment terms, current economic trends, including the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic, and
other facts and circumstances related to the applicable tenants. In addition, with respect to tenants in bankruptcy, we estimate the
probable recovery through bankruptcy claims. If a tenant’s accounts receivable balance is considered uncollectable, we will write off
the related receivable balances and cease to recognize lease income, including straight-line rent unless cash is received. If the
collectability assessment subsequently changes to probable, any difference between the lease income that would have been recognized
if collectability had always been assessed as probable and the lease income recognized to date, is recognized as a current-period
adjustment to revenues from rental properties. Our reported net earnings are directly affected by our estimate of the collectability of
our accounts receivable.

In April 2020, the FASB issued interpretive guidance relating to the accounting for lease concessions provided as a result of
COVID-19. In this guidance, entities can elect not to apply lease modification accounting with respect to such lease concessions and
instead, treat the concession as if it was a part of the existing contract. This guidance is only applicable to COVID-19 related lease
concessions that do not result in a substantial increase in the rights of the lessor or the obligations of the lessee. Some concessions will
provide a deferral of payments with no substantive changes to the consideration in the original contract. A deferral affects the timing
of cash receipts, but the amount of the consideration is substantially the same as that required by the original contract. The FASB staff
provides two ways to account for those deferrals:

(1) Account for the concessions as if no changes to the lease contract were made. Under that accounting, a lessor
would increase its lease receivable. In its income statement, a lessor would continue to recognize income during
the deferral period.

(2) Account for the deferred payments as variable lease payments.
We elected to treat lease concessions with option (1) above for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The present value of the difference between the fair market rent and the contractual rent for above-market and below-market
leases at the time properties are acquired is amortized into revenues from rental properties over the remaining terms of the in-place
leases. Lease termination fees are recognized as other income when earned upon the termination of a tenant’s lease and relinquishment
of space in which we have no further obligation to the tenant.
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The sales of nonfinancial assets, such as real estate, are to be recognized when control of the asset transfers to the buyer, which
will occur when the buyer has the ability to direct the use of or obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the asset. This
generally occurs when the transaction closes and consideration is exchanged for control of the property.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Assets are written down to fair value when events and circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired and the projected
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amount of those assets. Assets held for
disposal are written down to fair value less estimated disposition costs.

We recorded impairment charges aggregating $4,258,000, $4,012,000 and $6,170,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively. Our estimated fair values, as they relate to property carrying values, were primarily based upon
(i) estimated sales prices from third-party offers based on signed contracts, letters of intent or indicative bids, for which we do not
have access to the unobservable inputs used to determine these estimated fair values, and/or consideration of the amount that currently
would be required to replace the asset, as adjusted for obsolescence (this method was used to determine $1,111,000 of the $4,258,000
in impairments recognized during the year ended December 31, 2020) and (ii) discounted cash flow models (this method was used to
determine $117,000 of the $4,258,000 in impairments recognized during the year ended December 31, 2020). During the year ended
December 31, 2020, we recorded $3,030,000 of the $4,258,000 in impairments recognized due to the accumulation of asset retirement
costs as a result of changes in estimates associated with our estimated environmental liabilities which increased the carrying values of
certain properties in excess of their fair values. For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, impairment charges
aggregating $932,000, $1,202,000 and $1,268,000, respectively, were related to properties that were previously disposed of by us.

The estimated fair value of real estate is based on the price that would be received from the sale of the property in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In general, we consider multiple internal valuation techniques when
measuring the fair value of a property, all of which are based on unobservable inputs and assumptions that are classified within
Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy. These unobservable inputs include assumed holding periods ranging up to 15 years, assumed
average rent increases of 2.0% annually, income capitalized at a rate of 8.0% and cash flows discounted at a rate of 7.0%. These
assessments have a direct impact on our net income because recording an impairment loss results in an immediate negative adjustment
to net income. The evaluation of anticipated cash flows is highly subjective and is based in part on assumptions regarding future rental
rates and operating expenses that could differ materially from actual results in future periods. Where properties held for use have been
identified as having a potential for sale, additional judgments are required related to the determination as to the appropriate period
over which the projected undiscounted cash flows should include the operating cash flows and the amount included as the estimated
residual value. This requires significant judgment. In some cases, the results of whether impairment is indicated are sensitive to
changes in assumptions input into the estimates, including the holding period until expected sale.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of our financial instruments are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at amounts which, in our
estimation based upon an interpretation of available market information and valuation methodologies, reasonably approximate their
fair values, except those separately disclosed in the notes below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates of fair
value that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and revenues and expenses during the period reported using a hierarchy (the “Fair Value Hierarchy”) that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the fair value. The Fair Value Hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy are as follows: “Level 1” — inputs that reflect
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access at the measurement date;
“Level 2” — inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly, including inputs in
markets that are not considered to be active; and “Level 3” — inputs that are unobservable. Certain types of assets and liabilities are
recorded at fair value either on a recurring or non-recurring basis. Assets required or elected to be marked-to-market and reported at
fair value every reporting period are valued on a recurring basis. Other assets not required to be recorded at fair value every period
may be recorded at fair value if a specific provision or other impairment is recorded within the period to mark the carrying value of the
asset to market as of the reporting date. Such assets are valued on a non-recurring basis.

Environmental Remediation Obligations

We record the fair value of a liability for an environmental remediation obligation as an asset and liability when there is a legal
obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset and the liability can be reasonably estimated. Environmental
remediation obligations are estimated based on the level and impact of contamination at each property. The accrued liability is the
aggregate of our estimate of the fair value of cost for each component of the liability. The accrued liability is net of estimated
recoveries from state UST remediation funds considering estimated recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds.

51



Net environmental liabilities are currently measured based on their expected future cash flows which have been adjusted for inflation
and discounted to present value. We accrue for environmental liabilities that we believe are allocable to other potentially responsible
parties if it becomes probable that the other parties will not pay their environmental remediation obligations.

Litigation

Legal fees related to litigation are expensed as legal services are performed. We provide for litigation accruals, including certain
litigation related to environmental matters, when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and a reasonable estimate of the
liability can be made. If the estimate of the liability can only be identified as a range, and no amount within the range is a better
estimate than any other amount, the minimum of the range is accrued for the liability. We accrue our share of environmental litigation
liabilities based on our assumptions of the ultimate allocation method and share that will be used when determining our share of
responsibility.

Income Taxes

We file a federal income tax return on which are consolidated our tax items and the tax items of our subsidiaries that are pass-
through entities. Effective January 1, 2001, we elected to qualify, and believe that we are operating so as to qualify, as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on qualifying REIT income,
provided that distributions to our stockholders equal at least the amount of our taxable income as defined under the Internal Revenue
Code. We accrue for uncertain tax matters when appropriate. The accrual for uncertain tax positions is adjusted as circumstances
change and as the uncertainties become more clearly defined, such as when audits are settled or exposures expire. Tax returns for the
years 2017, 2018 and 2019, and tax returns which will be filed for the year ended 2020, remain open to examination by federal and
state tax jurisdictions under the respective statutes of limitations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

On June 16, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13 to amend the accounting for credit losses for certain financial instruments.
Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes its estimate of expected credit losses as an allowance, which the FASB believes will
result in more timely recognition of such losses. ASU 2016-13 applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and certain other
instruments, including notes and mortgages receivable and net investments in direct financing leases. This standard does not apply to
receivables arising from operating leases, which are within the scope of Topic 842. ASU 2016-13 became effective for us and was
adopted on January 1, 2020 and required a modified retrospective approach through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
earnings. We recorded a credit loss reserve related to our direct financing leases totaling $578,000, which was recognized as a
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings and as a reduction of the investment in direct financing leases balance on our consolidated
balance sheets on January 1, 2020. In addition, we recorded a credit loss reserve as of January 1, 2020 of $309,000 related to our notes
and mortgages receivable balance, which was recognized as a cumulative adjustment to retained earnings.

On March 12, 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) (“ASU 2020-04"). ASU 2020-04
contains practical expedients for reference rate reform related activities that impact debt, leases, derivatives and other contracts. The
guidance in ASU 2020-04 provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepted accounting principles to
contract modifications and hedging relationships, subject to meeting certain criteria, that reference LIBOR or another reference rate
expected to be discontinued. We are currently evaluating the impact the adoption of ASU 2020-04 will have on our consolidated
financial statements.

NOTE 2. — LEASES

As of December 31, 2020, we owned 901 properties and leased 58 properties from third-party landlords. These 959 properties
are located in 35 states across the United States and Washington, D.C. Substantially all of our properties are leased on a triple-net
basis to convenience store retailers, petroleum distributors and other automotive-related and retail tenants. Our tenants either operate
their business at our properties directly or sublet our properties and supply fuel to third parties that operate the convenience store and
gasoline station businesses. Our triple-net lease tenants are responsible for the payment of all taxes, maintenance, repairs, insurance
and other operating expenses relating to our properties, and are also responsible for environmental contamination occurring during the
terms of their leases and in certain cases also for environmental contamination that existed before their leases commenced. Our tenants
either operate our properties directly or sublet our properties and supply fuel to third parties that operate the convenience stores and
gasoline stations businesses. Our triple-net lease tenants are responsible for the payment of all taxes, maintenance, repairs, insurance
and other operating expenses relating to our properties, and are also responsible for environmental contamination occurring during the
terms of their leases and in certain cases also for environmental contamination that existed before their leases commenced. For
additional information regarding environmental obligations, see Note 5 — Environmental Obligations.
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Substantially all of our tenants’ financial results depend on convenience store sales, the sale of refined petroleum products,
and/or rental income from their subtenants. As a result, our tenants’ financial results are highly dependent on the performance of the
petroleum marketing industry, which is highly competitive and subject to volatility. During the terms of our leases, we monitor the
credit quality of our triple-net lease tenants by reviewing their published credit rating, if available, reviewing publicly available
financial statements, or reviewing financial or other operating statements which are delivered to us pursuant to applicable lease
agreements, monitoring news reports regarding our tenants and their respective businesses, and monitoring the timeliness of lease
payments and the performance of other financial covenants under their leases.

We adopted ASU 2016-02 as of January 1, 2019. ASU 2016-02 amends the existing accounting standards for lease accounting,
including requiring lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets. Under ASU 2016-02, lessor accounting will remain
similar to lessor accounting under previous GAAP, while aligning with the FASB’s new revenue recognition guidance.

For leases in which we are the lessor, we are (i) retaining classification of our historical leases as we are not required to reassess
classification upon adoption of the new standard, (ii) expensing indirect leasing costs in connection with new or extended tenant
leases, the recognition of which would have been deferred under prior accounting guidance and (iii) aggregating revenue from our
lease components and non-lease components (comprised of tenant reimbursements) into revenue from rental properties.

Revenues from rental properties for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, were $144,601,000, $137,736,000 and
$133,019,000, respectively. Rental income contractually due from our tenants included in revenues from rental properties was
$128,246,000, $119,293,000 and $114,105,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

In accordance with GAAP, we recognize rental revenue in amounts which vary from the amount of rent contractually due during
the periods presented. As a result, revenues from rental properties include non-cash adjustments recorded for deferred rental revenue
due to the recognition of rental income on a straight-line basis over the current lease term, the net amortization of above-market and
below-market leases, rental income recorded under direct financing leases using the effective interest method which produces a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investments in the leased properties and the amortization of deferred lease incentives
(collectively, “Revenue Recognition Adjustments”). Revenue Recognition Adjustments included in revenues from rental properties
resulted in a reduction in revenue of $895,000, for the year ended December 31, 2020 and increases in revenue of $960,000 and

$2,223,000 for the years ended December , 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Tenant reimbursements, which are included in revenues from rental properties and which consist of real estate taxes and other
municipal charges paid by us which were reimbursed by our tenants pursuant to the terms of triple-net lease agreements, were
$17,250,000, $17,483,000 and $16,691,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

We incurred $351,000, $373,000 and $579,000 of lease origination costs for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectively. This deferred expense is recognized on a straight-line basis as amortization expense in our consolidated statements
of operations over the terms of the various leases.

The components of the $77,238,000 investment in direct financing leases as of December 31, 2020, are lease payments
receivable of $113,256,000 plus unguaranteed estimated residual value of $13,928,000 less unearned income of $49,028,000 and
$918,000 allowance for credit losses. The components of the $82,366,000 investment in direct financing leases as of December 31,
2019, are lease payments receivable of $126,412,000 plus unguaranteed estimated residual value of $13,928,000 less unearned income
of $57,974,000.

In accordance with ASU 2016-13, we applied changes in loss reserves related to these direct financing leases totaling $578,000,
as a cumulative adjustment to retained earnings and as a reduction of the investment in direct financing leases balance on our
consolidated balance sheets on January 1, 2020. During the year ended December 31, 2020, we recorded an additional allowance for
credit losses of $340,000 on our net investments in direct financing leases due to changes in expected economic conditions, which was
included within other income in our consolidated statements of operations.

Future contractual annual rentals receivable from our tenants, which have terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2020,
are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Direct
Leases Financing Leases
2021 $ 120,540 S 13,339
2022 121,134 13,420
2023 120,530 13,467
2024 118,757 13,611
2025 117,934 13,512
Thereafter 655,985 45,907
Total $ 1,254,880 $ 113,256
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For leases in which we are the lessee, ASU 2016-02 requires leases with durations greater than twelve months to be recognized
on our consolidated balance sheets. We elected the package of transition provisions available for expired or existing contracts, which
allowed us to carryforward our historical assessments of (i) whether contracts are or contain leases, (ii) lease classification and
(iii) initial direct costs.

As of January 1, 2019, we recognized operating lease right-of-use assets of $25,561,000 (net of deferred rent expense) and
operating lease liabilities of $26,087,000, which were presented on our consolidated financial statements. The right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are carried at the present value of the remaining expected future lease payments. When available, we use the rate
implicit in the lease to discount lease payments to present value; however, our current leases did not provide a readily determinable
implicit rate. Therefore, we estimated our incremental borrowing rate to discount the lease payments based on information available
and considered factors such as interest rates available to us on a fully collateralized basis and terms of the leases. ASU 2016-02 did not
have a material impact on our consolidated balance sheets or on our consolidated statements of operations. The most significant
impact was the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for operating leases, while our accounting for finance leases
remained substantially unchanged.

The following presents the lease-related assets and liabilities (in thousands):

December 31,
2020

Assets

Right-of-use assets - operating $ 24,319

Right-of-use assets - finance 763
Total lease assets $ 25,082
Liabilities

Lease liability - operating $ 25,045

Lease liability - finance 3,541
Total lease liabilities $ 28,586

The following presents the weighted average lease terms and discount rates of our leases:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)

Operating leases 9.2

Finance leases 10.6
Weighted-average discount rate

Operating leases (a) 4.80%

Finance leases 17.30%

(a) Upon adoption of the new lease standard, discount rates used for existing leases were established at January 1, 2019.

The following presents our total lease costs (in thousands):

December 31,
2020
Operating lease cost $ 3,999
Finance lease cost
Amortization of leased assets 650
Interest on lease liabilities 719
Short-term lease cost 82
Total lease cost $ 5,450
The following presents supplemental cash flow information related to our leases (in thousands):
December 31,
2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 3,798
Operating cash flows for finance leases 719
Financing cash flows for finance leases $ 650
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As of December 31, 2020, scheduled lease liabilities mature as follows (in thousands):

Operating Direct
Leases Financing Leases
2021 $ 3471  § 1,273
2022 3,780 1,093
2023 3,680 856
2024 3,532 785
2025 3,155 475
Thereafter 13,880 1,546
Total lease payments 31,498 6,028
Less: amount representing interest (6,453) (2,487)
Present value of lease payments 3 25,045 $ 3,541

We have obligations to lessors under non-cancelable operating leases which have terms in excess of one year, principally for
convenience store and gasoline station properties. The leased properties have a remaining lease term averaging approximately eight
years, including renewal options. Future minimum annual rentals payable under such leases, excluding renewal options, are as
follows: 2021 — $4,646,000, 2022 — $3,374,000, 2023 — $2,675,000, 2024 — $2,021,000, 2025 — $1,037,000 and $1,817,000 thereafter.

Rent expense, substantially all of which consists of minimum rentals on non-cancelable operating leases, amounted to
$3,769,000, $4,664,000 and $4,660,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in
property costs. Rent received under subleases for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, was $7,892,000, $8,699,000
and $9,023,000, respectively, and is included in rental revenue discussed above.

Major Tenants
As of December 31, 2020, we had four significant tenants by revenue:

e We leased 150 convenience store and gasoline station properties in three separate unitary leases and two stand-alone
leases to subsidiaries of Global Partners LP (NYSE: GLP) (“Global”). In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of
Global represented 16% and 18% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries of Global are guaranteed by the parent company.

e  We leased 129 convenience store and gasoline station properties in four separate unitary leases to subsidiaries of
ARKO Corp. (NASDAQ: ARKO) (“Arko”). In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Arko represented 15% of
our total revenues for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. All of our unitary leases with subsidiaries
of Arko are guaranteed by the parent company.

e We leased 77 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to three separate unitary leases to Apro, LLC
(d/b/a “United Oil”). In the aggregate, our leases with United Oil represented 12% and 13% of our total revenues for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

e  We leased 74 convenience store and gasoline station properties pursuant to two separate unitary leases to subsidiaries
of Chestnut Petroleum Dist., Inc. (“Chestnut”). In the aggregate, our leases with subsidiaries of Chestnut represented
10% and 11% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The largest of these
unitary leases, covering 56 of our properties, is guaranteed by the parent company, its principals and numerous
Chestnut affiliates.

Getty Petroleum Marketing Inc.

Getty Petroleum Marketing Inc. (“Marketing”) was our largest tenant from 1997 until 2012 under a unitary triple-net master
lease that was terminated in April 2012, as a consequence of Marketing’s bankruptcy, at which time we either sold or released these
properties. As of December 31, 2020, 355 of the properties we own or lease were previously leased to Marketing, of which 317
properties are subject to long-term triple-net leases with petroleum distributors in 14 separate property portfolios and 29 properties are
leased as single unit triple-net leases. The leases covering properties previously leased to Marketing are unitary triple-net lease
agreements generally with an initial term of 15 years and options for successive renewal terms of up to 20 years. Rent is scheduled to
increase at varying intervals during both the initial and renewal terms of the leases. Several of the leases provide for additional rent
based on the aggregate volume of fuel sold. In addition, the majority of the leases require the tenants to invest capital in our properties,
substantially all of which are related to the replacement of USTs that are owned by our tenants. As of December 31, 2020, we have a
remaining commitment to fund up to $6,829,000 in the aggregate with our tenants for our portion of such capital improvements. Our
commitment provides us with the option to either reimburse our tenants or to offset rent when these capital expenditures are made.
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This deferred expense is recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rental revenue in our consolidated statements of
operations over the life of the various leases.

As part of the triple-net leases for properties previously leased to Marketing, we transferred title of the USTs to our tenants, and
the obligation to pay for the retirement and decommissioning or removal of USTs at the end of their useful lives, or earlier if
circumstances warranted, was fully or partially transferred to our new tenants. We remain contingently liable for this obligation in the
event that our tenants do not satisfy their responsibilities. Accordingly, through December 31, 2020, we removed $13,813,000 of asset
retirement obligations and $10,808,000 of net asset retirement costs related to USTs from our balance sheet. The cumulative change of
$1,317,000 (net of accumulated amortization of $1,688,000) is recorded as deferred rental revenue and will be recognized on a
straight-line basis as additional revenues from rental properties over the terms of the various leases.

NOTE 3. — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Credit Risk

In order to minimize our exposure to credit risk associated with financial instruments, we place our temporary cash investments,
if any, with high credit quality institutions. Temporary cash investments, if any, are currently held in an overnight bank time deposit
with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and these balances, at times, may exceed federally insurable limits.

Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of our business. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, we had accrued $4,275,000 and $17,820,000, respectively, for certain of these matters which we
believe were appropriate based on information then currently available. We recorded provisions aggregating $85,000 and $5,896,000,

for the year ended December 31, 2020, and 2019, respectively, for environmental litigation accruals for certain of these matters. We
are unable to estimate ranges in excess of the amount accrued with any certainty for these matters. It is possible that our assumptions
regarding the ultimate allocation method and share of responsibility that we used to allocate environmental liabilities may change,
which may result in our providing an accrual, or adjustments to the amounts recorded, for environmental litigation accruals. Matters
related to our former Newark, New Jersey Terminal and the Lower Passaic River, our methyl tertiary butyl ether (a fuel derived from
methanol, commonly referred to as “MTBE”) litigations in the states of New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Maryland, and our lawsuit with
the State of New York pertaining to a property formerly owned by us in Uniondale, New York, in particular, could cause a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, ability to pay dividends or stock price. During the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we received $21,300,000 and $2,707,000, respectively, for former legal litigation
settlements.

Matters related to our former Newark, New Jersey Terminal and the Lower Passaic River.

In 2004, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) issued General Notice Letters (“GNL”) to over 100
entities, including us, alleging that they are PRPs at the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site (“Superfund Site”), which includes the former
Diamond Shamrock Corporation manufacturing facility located at 80-120 Lister Ave. in Newark, New Jersey and a 17-mile stretch of
the Passaic River from Dundee Dam to the Newark Bay and its tributaries (the Lower Passaic River Study Area or “LPRSA”). In May
2007, over 70 GNL recipients, including us, entered into an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on Consent (“AOC”)
with the EPA to perform a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (“RI/FS”) for the LPRSA, which is intended to address the
investigation and evaluation of alternative remedial actions with respect to alleged damages to the LPRSA. Many of the parties to the
AOC, including us, are also members of a Cooperating Parties Group (“CPG”). The CPG agreed to an interim allocation formula for
purposes of allocating the costs to complete the RI/FS among its members, with the understanding that this interim allocation formula
is not binding on the parties in terms of any potential liability for the costs to remediate the LPRSA. The CPG submitted to the EPA its
draft RI/FS in 2015, which sets forth various alternatives for remediating the entire 17 miles of the LPRSA. In October 2018, the EPA
issued a letter directing the CPG to prepare a streamlined feasibility study for just the upper 9-miles of the LPRSA based on an
iterative approach using adaptive management strategies. On December 4, 2020, The CPG submitted a Final Draft Interim Remedy
Feasibility Study (“IR/FS”) to the EPA which identifies various targeted dredge and cap alternatives for the upper 9-miles of the
LPRSA. On December 11, 2020, EPA conditionally approved the CPG’s IR/FS for the upper 9-miles of the LPRSA, which recognizes
that interim actions and adaptive management may be appropriate before deciding a final remedy. It is anticipated that EPA will issue
a proposed plan for an interim remedy for the upper 9-miles, which will be published for public comment. Subject to EPA’s response
to any comments and/or objections received, it is anticipated that EPA will issue a Record of Decision (“ROD”) for an interim remedy
for the upper 9-mile portion of the LPRSA in 2021 (“Upper 9-mile IR ROD”).

In addition to the RI/FS activities, other actions relating to the investigation and/or remediation of the LPRSA have proceeded
as follows. First, in June 2012, certain members of the CPG entered into an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on
Consent (“10.9 AOC”) with the EPA to perform certain remediation activities, including removal and capping of sediments at the
river mile 10.9 area and certain testing. The EPA also issued a Unilateral Order to Occidental Chemical Corporation (“Occidental”),
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the former owner/operator of the Diamond Shamrock Corporation facility responsible for the discharge of 2,3,8,8-TCDD (“dioxin”)
and other hazardous substances from the Lister facility. The Order directed Occidental to participate and contribute to the cost of the
river mile 10.9 work. Concurrent with the CPG’s work on the RI/FS, on April 11, 2014, the EPA issued a draft Focused Feasibility
Study (“FFS”) with proposed remedial alternatives to remediate the lower 8-miles of the LPRSA. The FFS was subject to public
comments and objections and, on March 4, 2016, the EPA issued a ROD for the lower 8-miles (“Lower 8-mile ROD”) selecting a
remedy that involves bank-to-bank dredging and installing an engineered cap with an estimated cost of $1,380,000,000. On March 31,
2016, we and more than 100 other PRPs received from the EPA a “Notice of Potential Liability and Commencement of Negotiations
for Remedial Design” (“Notice”), which informed the recipients that the EPA intends to seek an Administrative Order on Consent and
Settlement Agreement with Occidental (who the EPA considers the primary contributor of dioxin and other pesticides generated from
the production of Agent Orange at its Diamond Shamrock Corporation facility and a discharger of other contaminants of concern
(“COCs”) to the Superfund Site for remedial design of the remedy selected in the Lower 8-mile ROD, after which the EPA plans to
begin negotiations with “major” PRPs for implementation and/or payment of the selected remedy. The Notice also stated that the EPA
believes that some of the PRPs and other parties not yet identified will be eligible for a cash out settlement with the EPA. On
September 30, 2016, Occidental entered into an agreement with the EPA to perform the remedial design for the Lower 8-mile ROD. In
December 2019, Occidental submitted a report to the EPA on the progress of the remedial design work, which is still ongoing.

Occidental has asserted that it is entitled to indemnification by Maxus Energy Corporation (“Maxus”) and Tierra Solutions, Inc.
(“Tierra”) for its liability in connection with the Site. Occidental has also asserted that Maxus and Tierra’s parent company, YPF, S.A.
(“°YPF”) and certain of its affiliates must indemnify Occidental. On June 16, 2016, Maxus and Tierra filed for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In July 2017, an amended Chapter 11 plan of liquidation became effective and, in
connection therewith, Maxus and Tierra entered into a mutual contribution release agreement with certain parties, including us,
pertaining to certain past costs, but not future remedy costs.

By letter dated March 30, 2017, the EPA advised the recipients of the Notice that it would be entering into cash out settlements
with 20 PRPs to resolve their alleged liability for the remedial actions addressed in the Lower 8-mile ROD, who the EPA stated did
not discharge any of the eight hazardous substances identified as a COC in the ROD. The letter also stated that other parties who did
not discharge dioxins, furans or polychlorinated biphenyls (which are considered the COCs posing the greatest risk to the river) may
also be eligible for cash out settlements, and that the EPA would begin a process for identifying other PRPs for negotiation of similar
cash out settlements. We were not included in the initial group of 20 parties identified by the EPA for cash out settlements, but we
believe we meet EPA’s criteria for a cash out settlement and should be considered for same in any future discussions. In January 2018,
the EPA published a notice of its intent to enter into a final settlement agreement with 15 of the initial group of parties to resolve their
respective alleged liability for the Lower 8-mile ROD work, each for a payment to the EPA in the amount of $280,600. In August
2017, the EPA appointed an independent third-party allocation expert to conduct allocation proceedings with most of the remaining
recipients of the Notice, which is anticipated to lead to additional offers of cash out settlements to certain additional parties and/or a
consent decree in which parties that are not offered a cash out settlement will agree to perform the Lower 8-mile ROD remedial
action. The allocation proceedings, which we are participating in, are still ongoing.

On June 30, 2018, Occidental filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey seeking cost
recovery and contribution under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act for its alleged
expenses with respect to the investigation, design, and anticipated implementation of the remedy for the Lower 8-mile ROD work. The
complaint lists over 120 defendants, including us, many of whom were also named in the EPA’s 2016 Notice. Factual discovery is
ongoing, and we are defending the claims consistent with our defenses in the related proceedings.

Many uncertainties remain regarding the anticipated interim remedy selection for the Upper 9-mile IR ROD and how the EPA
intends to implement either the Upper 9-mile IR ROD and/or the Lower 8-mile ROD work, including whether EPA will designate
certain PRPs as work parties and/or if EPA will identify PRPs for future cash-out settlement negotiations for the Upper 9-mile IR
ROD, the Lower 8-mile ROD work or both. Further, none of the above referenced AOCs and RODs relating to the LPRSA obligate
us to fund or perform any remedial action contemplated for the LPRSA and do not resolve liability issues for remedial work or the
restoration of or compensation for alleged natural resource damages to the LPRSA, which are not known at this time. Therefore, we
anticipate that performance of the EPA’s selected remedies for the LPRSA will be subject to future negotiation, potential enforcement
proceedings and/or possible litigation.

Based on currently known facts and circumstances, including, among other factors, anticipated allocations, our belief that there
was not any use or discharge of dioxins, furans or polychlorinated biphenyls in connection with our former petroleum storage
operations at our former Newark, New Jersey Terminal, and because there are numerous other parties who will likely bear the costs of
remediation and/or damages, the Company does not believe that resolution of this matter as relates to the Company is reasonably
likely to have a material impact on our results of operations. Nevertheless, our ultimate liability in the pending and possible future
proceedings pertaining to the LPRSA remains uncertain and subject to numerous contingencies which cannot be predicted and the
outcome of which are not yet known. Therefore, it is possible that our ultimate liability resulting from this matter and the impact on
our results of operations could be material.
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MTBE Litigation — State of New Jersey

We were a party to a case involving a large number of gasoline station sites throughout the State of New Jersey brought by
various governmental agencies of the State of New Jersey, including the NJDEP. This New Jersey case (the “New Jersey MDL
Proceedings”) is among the many cases that were transferred from various courts throughout the country and consolidated in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York for coordinated Multi-District Litigation (“MDL”) proceedings.
The New Jersey MDL Proceedings allege various theories of liability due to contamination of groundwater with MTBE as the basis
for claims seeking compensatory and punitive damages. The State of New Jersey is seeking reimbursement of significant clean-up and
remediation costs arising out of the alleged release of MTBE containing gasoline in the State of New Jersey and is asserting various
natural resource damage claims as well as liability against owners and operators of gasoline station properties from which the releases
occurred. The New Jersey MDL Proceedings named us as a defendant along with approximately 50 petroleum refiners, manufacturers,
distributors and retailers of MTBE, or gasoline containing MTBE. The majority of the named defendants have settled their case with
the State of New Jersey.

In 2020, we settled the New Jersey MDL Proceedings in accordance with the terms of a Judicial Consent Order (“JCO”), which
included payment by us of $13,500,000 in exchange for satisfaction and release of claims made against us by various parties including
the NJDEP. Our settlement payment was within our previously established litigation loss reserve for the case. The JCO was approved
and entered by the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on December 17, 2020 and, in accordance with
the terms thereof, payment was made by the Company and the case against the Company dismissed.

MTBE Litigation — State of Pennsylvania

On July 7, 2014, our subsidiary, Getty Properties Corp., was served with a complaint filed by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (the “State”) in the Court of Common Pleas, Philadelphia County relating to alleged statewide MTBE contamination in
Pennsylvania. The named plaintiffs are the State, by and through (then) Pennsylvania Attorney General Kathleen G. Kane (as Trustee
of the waters of the State), the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (which governs and administers the Underground Storage Tank
Indemnification Fund), the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (vested with the authority to protect the
environment) and the Pennsylvania Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund. The complaint names us and more than 50
other petroleum refiners, manufacturers, distributors and retailers of MTBE or gasoline containing MTBE who are alleged to have
distributed, stored and sold MTBE gasoline in Pennsylvania. The complaint seeks compensation for natural resource damages and for
injuries sustained as a result of “defendants’ unfair and deceptive trade practices and act in the marketing of MTBE and gasoline
containing MTBE.” The plaintiffs also seek to recover costs paid or incurred by the State to detect, treat and remediate MTBE from
public and private water wells and groundwater. The plaintiffs assert causes of action against all defendants based on multiple
theories, including strict liability — defective design; strict liability — failure to warn; public nuisance; negligence; trespass; and
violation of consumer protection law.

The case was filed in the Court of Common Pleas, Philadelphia County, but was removed by defendants to the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and then transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York so that it may be managed as part of the ongoing MTBE MDL proceedings. In November 2015, plaintiffs filed a second
amended complaint naming additional defendants and adding factual allegations against the defendants. We have joined with other
defendants in the filing of a motion to dismiss the claims against us. This motion is pending with the Court. We intend to defend
vigorously the claims made against us. Our ultimate liability in this proceeding is uncertain and subject to numerous contingencies
which cannot be predicted and the outcome of which are not yet known.

MTBE Litigation — State of Maryland

On December 17, 2017, the State of Maryland, by and through the Attorney General on behalf of the Maryland Department of
Environment and the Maryland Department of Health (the “State of Maryland”), filed a complaint in the Circuit Court for Baltimore
City related to alleged statewide MTBE contamination in Maryland. The complaint was served upon us on January 19, 2018. The
complaint names us and more than 60 other defendants. The complaint seeks compensation for natural resource damages and for
injuries sustained as a result of the defendants’ unfair and deceptive trade practices in the marketing of MTBE and gasoline containing
MTBE. The plaintiffs also seek to recover costs paid or incurred by the State of Maryland to detect, investigate, treat and remediate
MTBE from public and private water wells and groundwater, punitive damages and the award of attorneys’ fees and litigation costs.
The plaintiffs assert causes of action against all defendants based on multiple theories, including strict liability — defective design;
strict liability — failure to warn; strict liability for abnormally dangerous activity; public nuisance; negligence; trespass; and violations
of Titles 4, 7 and 9 of the Maryland Environmental Code.

On February 14, 2018, defendants removed the case to the United States District Court for the District of Maryland. We intend
to defend vigorously the claims made against us. Our ultimate liability, if any, in this proceeding is uncertain and subject to numerous
contingencies which cannot be predicted and the outcome of which are not yet known.
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Uniondale, New York Litigation

In September 2004, the State of New York commenced an action against us, United Gas Corp., Costa Gas Station, Inc., Vincent
Costa, Sharon Irni, The Ingraham Bedell Corporation, Richard Berger and Exxon Mobil in New York Supreme Court in Albany
County seeking recovery for reimbursement of investigation and remediation costs claimed to have been incurred by the New York
Environmental Protection and Spill Compensation Fund relating to contamination it alleges emanated from various gasoline station
properties located in the same vicinity in Uniondale, New York, including a site formerly owned by us and at which a petroleum
release and cleanup occurred. The complaint also seeks future costs for remediation, as well as interest and penalties. We served an
answer to the complaint denying responsibility. In 2007, the State of New York commenced action against Shell, Motiva, and related
parties, in the New York Supreme Court, Albany County seeking basically the same relief sought in the action involving us. We also
filed a third-party complaint against Hess, Sprague Operating Resources LLC (successor to RAD Energy Corp.), Service Station
Installation of NY, Inc., and certain individual defendants based on alleged contribution to the contamination that is the subject of the
State’s claims arising from a petroleum discharge at a gasoline station up-gradient from the site formerly owned by us. In 2016, the
various actions filed by the State of New York and our third-party actions were consolidated for discovery proceedings and trial.
Discovery in this case is in later stages and, as it nears completion, a schedule for trial will be established. We are unable to estimate
the possible loss or range of loss in excess of the amount we have accrued for this lawsuit. It is possible that losses related to this case
could exceed the amounts accrued, as of December 31, 2020.

Lukoil Americas Case

In March 2016, we filed a civil lawsuit in the New York State Supreme Court, New York County, against Lukoil Americas
Corporation and certain of its current or former executives, seeking recovery of environmental remediation costs that we either have
incurred, or expect to incur, at properties previously leased to Marketing pursuant to a master lease. The lawsuit alleged various
theories of liability, including claims based on environmental liability statutes in effect in the states in which the properties are located,
as well as a breach of contract claim seeking to pierce Marketing’s corporate veil. We settled this case effective December 17, 2020
pursuant to the terms of a Settlement Agreement and General Release which among other things included a payment to the Company
of $20,500,000 (net of contingency fees paid to the law firm representing the Company in this litigation). The case has been
dismissed.

NOTE 4. — DEBT

The amounts outstanding under our Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes are as follows (in thousands):

Maturity Interest December 31, December 31,
Date Rate 2020 2019

Revolving Facility March 2022 1.85% $ 25,000 $ 20,000
Series A Notes February 2021 6.00% — 100,000
Series B Notes June 2023 5.35% 75,000 75,000
Series C Notes February 2025 4.75% 50,000 50,000
Series D Notes June 2028 5.47% 50,000 50,000
Series E Notes June 2028 5.47% 50,000 50,000
Series F Notes September 2029 3.52% 50,000 50,000
Series G Notes September 2029 3.52% 50,000 50,000
Series H Notes September 2029 3.52% 25,000 25,000
Series I Notes November 2030 3.43% 100,000 —
Series J Notes November 2030 3.43% 50,000 —
Series K Notes November 2030 3.43% 25,000 —

Total debt 550,000 470,000
Unamortized debt issuance costs, net (a) (2,307) (2,949)

Total debt, net $ 547,693 $ 467,051

(a) Unamortized debt issuance costs, related to the Revolving Facility, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, of $1,135 and $2,014,
respectively, are included in prepaid expenses and other assets on our consolidated balance sheets.
Credit Agreement

On June 2, 2015, we entered into a $225,000,000 senior unsecured credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with a group of
banks led by Bank of America, N.A. The Credit Agreement consisted of a $175,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Facility””) and a $50,000,000 unsecured term loan (the “Term Loan”).
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On March 23, 2018, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (as amended, the “Restated Credit Agreement”)
amending and restating our Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the Restated Credit Agreement, we (a) increased the borrowing capacity
under the Revolving Facility from $175,000,000 to $250,000,000, (b) extended the maturity date of the Revolving Facility from June
2018 to March 2022, (c) extended the maturity date of the Term Loan from June 2020 to March 2023 and (d) amended certain
financial covenants and provisions.

Subject to the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement and our continued compliance with its provisions, we have the option to
(a) extend the term of the Revolving Facility for one additional year to March 2023 and (b) request that the lenders approve an
increase of up to $300,000,000 in the amount of the Revolving Facility and/or the Term Loan to $600,000,000 in the aggregate.

The Restated Credit Agreement incurs interest and fees at various rates based on our total indebtedness to total asset value ratio
at the end of each quarterly reporting period. The Revolving Facility permits borrowings at an interest rate equal to the sum of a base
rate plus a margin of 0.50% to 1.30% or a LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.50% to 2.30%. The annual commitment fee on the undrawn
funds under the Revolving Facility is 0.15% to 0.25%. The Term Loan prior to its repayment pursuant to a subsequent amendment to
the Restated Credit Agreement bore interest at a rate equal to the sum of a base rate plus a margin of 0.45% to 1.25% or a LIBOR rate
plus a margin of 1.45% to 2.25%.

On September 19, 2018, we entered into an amendment (the “First Amendment”) of our Restated Credit Agreement. The First
Amendment modifies the Restated Credit Agreement to, among other things: (i) reflect that we had previously entered into (a) an
amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement with The Prudential Insurance Company of America (“Prudential”) and
certain of its affiliates and (b) a note purchase and guarantee agreement with the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“MetLife”)
and certain of its affiliates; and (ii) permit borrowings under each of the Revolving Facility and the Term Loan at three different
interest rates, including a rate based on the LIBOR Daily Floating Rate (as defined in the First Amendment) plus the Applicable Rate
(as defined in the First Amendment) for such facility.

On September 12, 2019, in connection with prepayment of the Term Loan, we entered into a consent and amendment (the
“Second Amendment”) of our Restated Credit Agreement. The Second Amendment modifies the Restated Credit Agreement to,
among other things, (a) increase our borrowing capacity under the Revolving Facility from $250,000,000 to $300,000,000 and
(b) decrease lender commitments under the Term Loan to $0.

On December 14, 2020, we used a portion of the net proceeds from the Series I Notes, Series J Notes and Series K Notes (each
as described below) to repay $75,000,000 of borrowings outstanding under our Restated Credit Agreement.

Senior Unsecured Notes

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a fifth amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “Fifth
Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement”) with Prudential and certain of its affiliates amending and restating our existing fourth
amended and restated note purchase agreement. Pursuant to the Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement, we agreed that
our (a) 6.0% Series A Guaranteed Senior Notes due February 25, 2021, in the original aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000
(the “Series A Notes™), (b) 5.35% Series B Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 2, 2023, in the original aggregate principal amount of
$75,000,000 (the “Series B Notes™), (c) 4.75% Series C Guaranteed Senior Notes due February 25, 2025, in the aggregate principal
amount of $50,000,000 (the “Series C Notes™) and (d) 5.47% Series D Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 21, 2028, in the aggregate
principal amount of $50,000,000 (the “Series D Notes™) and (e) 3.52% Series F Guaranteed Senior Notes due September 12, 2029, in
the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 (the “Series F Notes”) that were outstanding under the existing fourth restated
prudential note purchase agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential
Agreement and we authorized and issued our 3.43% Series | Guaranteed Senior Notes due November 25, 2030, in the aggregate
principal amount of $100,000,000 (the “Series I Notes” and, together with the Series A Notes, Series B Notes, Series C Notes, Series
D Notes and Series F Notes, the “Notes”). On December 4, 2020, we completed the early redemption of our 6.0% Series A Notes due
February 25, 2021, in the original aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000. As a result of the early redemption, we recognized
a $1,233,000 loss on extinguishment of debt on our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
Fifth Amended and Restated Prudential Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the principal balance of the Series I
Notes, or any of our previously issued Series B Notes, Series C Notes, Series D Notes, or Series F Notes prior to their respective
maturities.

On June 21, 2018, we entered into a note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “MetLife Note Purchase Agreement”) with
MetLife and certain of its affiliates. Pursuant to the MetLife Note Purchase Agreement, we authorized and issued our 5.47% Series E
Guaranteed Senior Notes due June 21, 2028, in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 (the “Series E Notes”). The MetLife
Note Purchase Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the principal balance of the Series E Notes prior to their
maturity.

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a first amendment to note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “First Amended and
Restated AIG Agreement”) with American General Life Insurance Company amending and restating our existing note purchase and
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guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the First Amended and Restated AIG Agreement, we agreed that our 3.52% Series G Guaranteed
Senior Notes due September 12, 2029, in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 (the “Series G Notes”) that were outstanding
under the existing note purchase and guarantee agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the First Amended and
Restated AIG Agreement and we authorized and issued our $50,000,000 of 3.43% Series J Guaranteed Senior Notes due November
25, 2030 (the “Series J Notes”) to AIG. The First Amended and Restated AIG Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in
the principal balance of the Series J Notes or any of our previously issued Series G Notes prior to their respective maturities.

On December 4, 2020, we entered into a first amended and restated note purchase and guarantee agreement (the “First Amended
and Restated MassMutual Agreement”) amending and restating our existing note purchase and guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the
First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement, we agreed that our 3.52% Series H Guaranteed Senior Notes due September 12,
2029, in the aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million (the “Series H Notes”) that were outstanding under the existing note purchase
and guarantee agreement would continue to remain outstanding under the First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement and
we authorized and issued our $25.0 million of 3.43% Series K Guaranteed Senior Notes due November 25, 2030 (the “Series K
Notes) to MassMutual. The First Amended and Restated MassMutual Agreement does not provide for scheduled reductions in the
principal balance of the Series K or any of our previously issued Series H Notes prior to their respective maturities.

Covenants

The Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes contain customary financial covenants such as leverage,
coverage ratios and minimum tangible net worth, as well as limitations on restricted payments, which may limit our ability to incur
additional debt or pay dividends. The Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes also contain customary events of
default, including cross defaults to each other, change of control and failure to maintain REIT status (provided that the senior
unsecured notes require a mandatory offer to prepay the notes upon a change in control in lieu of a change of control event of default).
Any event of default, if not cured or waived in a timely manner, would increase by 200 basis points (2.00%) the interest rate we pay
under the Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes, and could result in the acceleration of our indebtedness under
the Restated Credit Agreement and our senior unsecured notes. We may be prohibited from drawing funds under the Revolving
Facility if there is any event or condition that constitutes an event of default under the Restated Credit Agreement or that, with the
giving of any notice, the passage of time, or both, would be an event of default under the Restated Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2020, we are in compliance with all of the material terms of the Restated Credit Agreement and our senior
unsecured notes, including the various financial covenants described herein.
Debt Maturities

As of December 31, 2020, scheduled debt maturities, including balloon payments, are as follows (in thousands):

Revolving Senior
Facility Unsecured Notes Total
2021 $ —  § — 8§ —
2022 (a) 25,000 — 25,000
2023 — 75,000 75,000
2024 — — —
2025 — 50,000 50,000
Thereafter — 400,000 400,000
Total $ 25,000 § 525,000 $ 550,000

(a) The Revolving Facility matures in March 2022. Subject to the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement and our continued
compliance with its provisions, we have the option to extend the term of the Revolving Facility for one additional year to
March 2023.

NOTE 5. — ENVIRONMENTAL OBLIGATIONS

We are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, including matters relating to the protection of the
environment such as the remediation of known contamination and the retirement and decommissioning or removal of long-lived assets
including buildings containing hazardous materials, USTs and other equipment. Environmental costs are principally attributable to
remediation costs which are incurred for, among other things, removing USTs, excavation of contaminated soil and water, installing,
operating, maintaining and decommissioning remediation systems, monitoring contamination and governmental agency compliance
reporting required in connection with contaminated properties.

We enter into leases and various other agreements which contractually allocate responsibility between the parties for known and
unknown environmental liabilities at or relating to the subject properties. We are contingently liable for these environmental
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obligations in the event that our tenant does not satisfy them, and we are required to accrue for environmental liabilities that we
believe are allocable to others under our leases if we determine that it is probable that our tenant will not meet its environmental
obligations. It is possible that our assumptions regarding the ultimate allocation method and share of responsibility that we used to
allocate environmental liabilities may change, which may result in material adjustments to the amounts recorded for environmental
litigation accruals and environmental remediation liabilities. We assess whether to accrue for environmental liabilities based upon
relevant factors including our tenants’ histories of paying for such obligations, our assessment of their financial capability, and their
intent to pay for such obligations. However, there can be no assurance that our assessments are correct or that our tenants who have
paid their obligations in the past will continue to do so. We may ultimately be responsible to pay for environmental liabilities as the
property owner if our tenant fails to pay them.

The estimated future costs for known environmental remediation requirements are accrued when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The accrued liability is the aggregate of our estimate of the fair
value of cost for each component of the liability, net of estimated recoveries from state UST remediation funds considering estimated
recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds.

For substantially all of our triple-net leases, our tenants are contractually responsible for compliance with environmental laws
and regulations, removal of USTs at the end of their lease term (the cost of which in certain cases is partially borne by us) and
remediation of any environmental contamination that arises during the term of their tenancy. Under the terms of our leases covering
properties previously leased to Marketing (substantially all of which commenced in 2012), we have agreed to be responsible for
environmental contamination at the premises that was known at the time the lease commenced, and for environmental contamination
which existed prior to commencement of the lease and is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation) during the
first 10 years of the lease term (or a shorter period for a minority of such leases). After expiration of such 10-year (or, in certain cases,
shorter) period, responsibility for all newly discovered contamination, even if it relates to periods prior to commencement of the lease,
is contractually allocated to our tenant. Our tenants at properties previously leased to Marketing are in all cases responsible for the cost
of any remediation of contamination that results from their use and occupancy of our properties. Under substantially all of our other
triple-net leases, responsibility for remediation of all environmental contamination discovered during the term of the lease (including
known and unknown contamination that existed prior to commencement of the lease) is the responsibility of our tenant.

We anticipate that a majority of the USTs at properties previously leased to Marketing will be replaced over the next several
years because these USTs are either at or near the end of their useful lives. For long-term, triple-net leases covering sites previously
leased to Marketing, our tenants are responsible for the cost of removal and replacement of USTs and for remediation of
contamination found during such UST removal and replacement, unless such contamination was found during the first 10 years of the
lease term and also existed prior to commencement of the lease. In those cases, we are responsible for costs associated with the
remediation of such preexisting contamination. We have also agreed to be responsible for environmental contamination that existed
prior to the sale of certain properties assuming the contamination is discovered (other than as a result of a voluntary site investigation)
during the first five years after the sale of the properties.

In the course of certain UST removals and replacements at properties previously leased to Marketing where we retained
continuing responsibility for preexisting environmental obligations, previously unknown environmental contamination was and
continues to be discovered. As a result, we have developed an estimate of fair value for the prospective future environmental liability
resulting from preexisting unknown environmental contamination and have accrued for these estimated costs. These estimates are
based primarily upon quantifiable trends which we believe allow us to make reasonable estimates of fair value for the future costs of
environmental remediation resulting from the removal and replacement of USTs. Our accrual of the additional liability represents our
estimate of the fair value of cost for each component of the liability, net of estimated recoveries from state UST remediation funds
considering estimated recovery rates developed from prior experience with the funds. In arriving at our accrual, we analyzed the ages
of USTs at properties where we would be responsible for preexisting contamination found within 10 years after commencement of a
lease (for properties subject to long-term triple-net leases) or five years from a sale (for divested properties), and projected a cost to
closure for preexisting unknown environmental contamination.

We measure our environmental remediation liabilities at fair value based on expected future net cash flows, adjusted for
inflation (using a range of 2.0% to 2.75%), and then discount them to present value (using a range of 4.0% to 7.0%). We adjust our
environmental remediation liabilities quarterly to reflect changes in projected expenditures, changes in present value due to the
passage of time and reductions in estimated liabilities as a result of actual expenditures incurred during each quarter. As of
December 31, 2020, we had accrued a total of $48,084,000 for our prospective environmental remediation obligations. This accrual
consisted of (a) $11,718,000, which was our estimate of reasonably estimable environmental remediation liability, including
obligations to remove USTs for which we are responsible, net of estimated recoveries and (b) $36,366,000 for future environmental
liabilities related to preexisting unknown contamination. As of December 31, 2019, we had accrued a total of $50,723,000 for our
prospective environmental remediation obligations. This accrual consisted of (a) $12,470,000, which was our estimate of reasonably
estimable environmental remediation liability, including obligations to remove USTs for which we are responsible, net of estimated
recoveries and (b) $38,253,000 for future environmental liabilities related to preexisting unknown contamination.
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Environmental liabilities are accreted for the change in present value due to the passage of time and, accordingly, $1,841,000,
$2,006,000 and $2,409,000 of net accretion expense was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which is included in environmental expenses. In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, we
recorded credits to environmental expenses aggregating $3,136,000, $5,386,000 and $1,319,000, respectively, where decreases in
estimated remediation costs exceeded the depreciated carrying value of previously capitalized asset retirement costs. Environmental
expenses also include project management fees, legal fees and environmental litigation accruals. For the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, changes in environmental estimates aggregating, $154,000, $324,000 and $560,000, respectively, were related
to properties that were previously disposed of by us.

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we increased the carrying values of certain of our properties by
$2,596,000 and $1,875,000, respectively, due to changes in estimated environmental remediation costs. The recognition and
subsequent changes in estimates in environmental liabilities and the increase or decrease in carrying values of the properties are non-
cash transactions which do not appear on our consolidated statements of cash flows.

Capitalized asset retirement costs are being depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the UST, a 10-year period if the
increase in carrying value is related to environmental remediation obligations or such shorter period if circumstances warrant, such as
the remaining lease term for properties we lease from others. Depreciation and amortization expense related to capitalized asset
retirement costs in our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, were
$4,020,000, $4,132,000 and $4,255,000, respectively. Capitalized asset retirement costs were $39,610,000 (consisting of $23,573,000
of known environmental liabilities and $16,037,000 of reserves for future environmental liabilities) as of December 31, 2020, and
$39,684,000 (consisting of $22,150,000 of known environmental liabilities and $17,534,000 of reserves for future environmental
liabilities) as of December 31, 2019. We recorded impairment charges aggregating $3,502,000 and $3,730,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for capitalized asset retirement costs.

Environmental exposures are difficult to assess and estimate for numerous reasons, including the amount of data available upon
initial assessment of contamination, alternative treatment methods that may be applied, location of the property which subjects it to
differing local laws and regulations and their interpretations, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and
equipment, the availability of state UST remediation funds and the possibility of existing legal claims giving rise to allocation of
responsibilities to others, as well as the time it takes to remediate contamination and receive regulatory approval. In developing our
liability for estimated environmental remediation obligations on a property by property basis, we consider, among other things, laws
and regulations, assessments of contamination and surrounding geology, quality of information available, currently available
technologies for treatmen